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Financial Highlights

MBRHE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue increased by approximately 32.6% to RMB747.9 million (2023:

RMB564.0 million).

Gross profit increased by approximately 41.89% to RMB538.3 million (2023:

RMB379.7 million).

Profit for the Year of RMB34.6 million (2023: Profit of RMB52.6 million).

Profit per share was RMB3.65 cents (2023: Profit per share RMB5.56 cents).

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend (2023:
Nil) for the Year or any special dividend (2023: Nil).
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Chairman’s
Statement

EE RN

To the Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited* (the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”).
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* For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRIE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In 2024, the global economic growth slowed overall, with pronounced
regional divergence: developed economies experienced sluggish growth,
while emerging markets demonstrated resilience. As a key driver of global
economic growth, China’s economic growth outpaced the global average,
with consumption upgrades and exports of the “New Trio” (electric vehicles,
lithium-ion batteries and photovoltaic products) emerging as new growth
drivers. While inflation cooled in major economies, it remained persistent,
leading to a shift toward more accommodative monetary policies. Geopolitical
conflicts continued, with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and the Israel-Palestine
crisis causing surges to energy prices and trade costs. Although a stabilisation
in China-US relations may present opportunities for global supply chain
adjustments, the risk of “decoupling” remains.

In 2024, the Group successfully achieved its strategic objectives established
at the beginning of the Year. It focused resources on developing cross-border
e-commerce, optimised promotional strategies on e-commerce platforms,
and enhanced the influence of the Good Health brand and key products.
The Group enhanced its research and development efforts for new products
to shorten research and development cycles, strengthened supply chain
management, and expanded production capacity to reduce manufacturing
and procurement lead times, thereby enhancing working capital efficiency.

In 2025, geopolitical conflicts, debt crises, trade barriers, a restructuring global
manufacturing landscape, and many other factors will continue to create
uncertainties for global economic development. As the global economy
continues to face policy competition and sluggish growth amid the cooling
inflation and trade recovery, China is required to strike a balance between
“revitalising domestic demand” and “breaking through external barriers” for its
economic growth. Policy stability, structural reforms, mitigation of real estate
and financial risks, and international cooperation will be critical in addressing
these challenges. If China’s high-quality development can effectively drive
consumption and spark innovation, new momentum may be injected into the
global economy.

The Chinese consumer healthcare industry remains in a stage of high-quality
and rapid development. China’s large population and their increasing health
awareness form a solid foundation for the demand for healthcare products,
offering huge advantages and opportunities. Omnichannel marketing
strategies, including the extensive integration of online and offline platforms
and precise marketing on social media, effectively enhance consumer
shopping experiences and brand stickiness. The combination of online
e-commerce platforms and offline physical stores has expanded market
coverage, while interactions on social media platforms further enhance brand
recognition. In terms of cross-border products, due to a growing demand for
high-quality healthcare products among consumers, imported healthcare
products become increasingly popular in the market. As the development of
cross-border e-commerce platforms provides convenient purchasing channels,
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRIE

overseas brands enter the PRC market more smoothly, satisfying the consumer
demands for international brands. As the younger generation reigns in the
market, they focus more on appearance, personal care, and healthy lifestyles,
including the intake of dietary supplements and sports nutrition products. In
the future, the demand in the younger generation market will shift towards
innovation, fashion, and sustainability. As a result, companies will be required
to better cater to consumers’ personalities and values in their product
development and marketing efforts.

In 2025, the Group will specifically focus on the following efforts:

(1) in pursuit of e-commerce platform growth, strive to achieve the goal
of being the top seller in the core product categories on e-commerce
platforms. Meanwhile, the Group will promote new innovative products
to expand the brand’s consumer base;

(2)  to strengthen the supply chain management, by identifying high-
quality suppliers and improving production capacity. To promptly meet
customer demands, the Group will strive to shorten production and
procurement cycles, while enhancing operational efficiency; and

(3)  toexpand the Group's revenue scale, while optimising the cost-income
output of marketing and promotional expenses, thereby improving
overall profitability.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express that the Group would grip
the opportunity to promote Good Health series as well as expand its health
products in several sales channels of food business in the PRC, New Zealand
and Australia in order to improve the health conditions of people.

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

26 March 2025
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Product Information
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GOOD HEALTH
bRmERI
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Hi Cal™ Liquid Calcium & Vitamin D
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Grape Seed 55,000 Capsules
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Product Information

EmER

GOOD HEALTH
bR m %I

EinCardio-Concentrated Fish Oil Capsules Milk Thistle 35,000 Capsules
BRERMBE DREBE
Omega 3 Fish Oil Capsules Cranberry Plus EPO Capsules
fonBE EHEARERE
Bilberry & Lutein Capsules Joint Active with UC-Il Capsules
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Product Information
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Red Super Krill Soft Capsules
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Viralex Revive Drink
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Modified Milk Powder with Lactoferrin
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Product Information
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GOOD HEALTH
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godanealth

Hodified Milk Powde

with Lactase

Modified Milk Powder with Lactase Calcium Iron and Zinc Nutrient Sprinkles
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lactoferrin PLUS
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obiotic Powder
Solid Beverage

10Bilon CFU per sochet

Probiotic Powder Solid Beverage Lactoferrin PLUS Milk Powder
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Product Information

EmEH

GOOD HEALTH
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Alage Oil DHA Kids Capsules Kids Growth Chews
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Kids Vision Chews Gummy Candy Series
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the Group focused its resources on the cross-border e-commerce
business of the nutritional supplements under the Good Health brand, with
the related business maintaining rapid growth. The Group's revenue for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB747.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB183.9 million as compared to approximately RMB564.0
million in 2023, representing an increase of approximately 32.6%. The Group
recorded a profit of approximately RMB34.6 million for the Year, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB18.0 million as compared to a profit of
approximately RMB52.6 million in 2023.

In 2024, to enhance the influence of the nutritional supplements under the
Good Health brand on cross-border e-commerce platforms and in order
to maintain rapid revenue growth, the Group continuously increased its
investments in marketing and promotion on cross-border e-commerce
platforms. The Group optimised product positioning, marketing and
promotional content and formats, customer acquisition methods, transaction
scenarios and other aspects, based on the characteristics of target customers.
In addition to marketing and promotion on major domestic cross-border
e-commerce platforms, the Group also leveraged various sales promotion
scenarios, including collaborations with influencers on RedNote, bilibili,
Moments (A3 & &), brand-owned live streaming rooms and influencer live
streaming rooms. In addition to major Chinese e-commerce platforms, the
Group also acquires customers through different means, including distributors,
pharmacies, and duty-free stores in the travel sector. The Group's overseas
diversified sales platforms mainly include international distribution networks
that broadly distributed in various countries, including the United Kingdom,
Germany, Netherlands, Singapore, South Africa, Vietnam, and Thailand, etc,,
and large chain pharmacies, health goods supermarkets and tourist souvenir
shops in New Zealand and Australia.

In 2024, to meet customer demands, the Group continued to increase its
investments in research and development, with a view to launch more
products suitable for its target customers. During the Year, the Group launched
a total of 26 new products, including 3 New Goodhealth series product, 22
Good Health series products and 1 Living Nature series product. The new
products mainly comprised DHA and PS Capsules, Virawell Powder, Oyster Pro
Oil, Colostrum Powder contains Immunoglobulin G, Probiotic Advanced Triple
Action, Cranberry PLUS Evening Primrose Oil etc..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

The Group’s revenue in 2024 amounted to approximately RMB747.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB183.9 million as compared
to approximately RMB564.0 million in 2023, representing an increase of
approximately 32.6%. In 2024, the Group recorded a profit of approximately
RMB34.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB18.0 million as
compared to that of approximately RMB52.6 million in 2023. The Company’s
earnings per share was approximately RMB3.65 cents (2023: earnings per share
was approximately RMB5.56 cents) based on the weighted average number of
946,298,370 (2023: 946,298,370) ordinary shares of the Company in issue during
the Year.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group in 2024 amounted to approximately RMB747.9
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB183.9 million as
compared to approximately RMB564.0 million in 2023, representing an
increase of approximately 32.6%. During the Year, the Group continued to
increase its promotional efforts for the Good Health brand on cross-border
e-commerce platforms. The increase in revenue for the Year was mainly driven
by the significant growth in Good Heath brand’s revenue from cross-border
e-commerce platforms.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 41.8% from approximately
RMB379.7 million in 2023 to approximately RMB538.3 million for the Year. The
Group's gross profit margin in 2024 increased from approximately 67.3% in
2023 to approximately 72.0% for the Year. Such increase in gross profit margin
was mainly due to higher gross profit margins in cross-border e-commerce
platforms. The revenue from the cross-border e-commerce platforms
accounted for a higher proportion to the overall revenue of the Group for the
Year, thus improving the Group's overall gross profit margin.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains, which mainly comprised bank interest
income, government grants and rental income, amounted to approximately
RMB6.7 million for the Year, representing a decrease from approximately
RMB8.5 million in 2023. This was mainly due to the decrease in government
grants and rental income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
63.4% from approximately RMB250.0 million in 2023 to approximately
RMB408.6 million for the Year, representing approximately 44.3% and 54.6%
of the Group's revenue in 2023 and for the Year, respectively. Such increase
in selling and distribution expenses was mainly due to the Group's increased
investment in marketing and promotional resources on cross-border
e-commerce platforms.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately 22.7% from
approximately RMB72.2 million in 2023 to approximately RMB88.6 million for
the Year, representing approximately 12.8% and 11.8% of the Group’s revenue
in 2023 and for the Year, respectively. Such increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the Group's efforts to better incentivise its management,
resulting in salary increases for certain members of the management.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately RMB6.3 million
for the Year and an income tax expense of approximately RMB5.5 million in
2023. The income tax expense increased during the Year was mainly due to
the increase in profit of Good Health Products Limited, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries. The Group's effective tax rates in 2023 and for the Year were 9.5%
and 15.4%, respectively.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a profit of approximately
RMB34.6 million in 2024, representing a decrease of approximately RMB18.0
million as compared to a profit of approximately RMB52.6 million in 2023.

The decrease in profit was mainly due to (i) the increase in marketing and
promotional expenses for cross-border e-commerce platforms; and (i) the
increase in remuneration of the management.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

The Group recorded a foreign exchange loss of approximately RMB18.5 million
in 2024, and a foreign exchange gain of approximately RMB1.7 million in
2023. The loss for the Year was mainly due to the significant decrease in the
exchange rate of the New Zealand dollar against the Renminbi.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flow

During the Year, the Group's cash and cash equivalents decreased by
approximately RMB13.0 million, which mainly comprised the net cash inflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB1.0 million, net cash outflow
from investing activities of approximately RMB6.0 million, net cash outflow
used in financing activities of approximately RMB4.5 million and exchange
losses of approximately RMB3.5 million.

Inventories

The Group's inventories amounted to approximately RMB119.1 million as at 31
December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB108.9 million).
The Group’s inventories include raw materials, work-in-progress, finished
goods and goods merchandise. The balance of inventories increased by
approximately 9.4% compared with that as at 31 December 2023. The increase
in inventories during the Year is primarily due to the significant growth in Good
Health brand'’s revenue from cross border e-commerce platforms, resulting
in an increased inventories of such finished goods sold through the relevant
channel by the Group. The inventory turnover days were approximately
196 days for the Year (2023: approximately 181 days), increased by 15 days
compared with that of 2023. Such increase was mainly due to the Group's
further expansion of e-commerce channels, with the management expecting
revenue from e-commerce channels to continue growing in the future. In
anticipation of a significant increase in sales in the future, inventory levels were
raised at the end of the Year.

Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB41.9 million
as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB32.5
million), representing an increase of approximately RMB9.4 million or
approximately 28.9%. Such increase in trade receivables was mainly driven by
an increases in revenue from e-commerce channels.

Trade payables

The Group's trade payables decreased by approximately RMB20.3 million or
approximately 61.3% to approximately RMB12.8 million as at 31 December
2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB33.1 million). Such decrease
in trade payables was mainly due to a decrease in purchase of raw materials at
the end of the Year as compared to the previous period, resulting in a decrease
in the balance of trade payables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group conducts in-bound transactions principally in RMB and outbound
transactions principally in New Zealand dollar, United States dollar, and
Australian dollar. The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring of its foreign exchange exposures. The Directors
consider the Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuation to be controlled.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any hedging or other alternative
policies to deal with such exposure during the Year.

Borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any outstanding borrowings
or pledge of assets.

Gearing position

The gearing ratio, which represented total net debt (including lease
liabilities, trade payables and other payables and accruals) divided by total
equity attribute to owners of the parent and net debt multiplied by 100%,
was approximately 22.0% and 18.7% as at 31 December 2023 and 2024,
respectively.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group invested approximately RMB7.4 million (2023:
approximately RMB1.7 million) for the additions of property, plant and
equipment.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments or contingent liabilities (as at 31 December 2023: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1. An increase in the price of raw materials and packaging materials could
adversely affect our business. The Group's products are composed of
certain raw materials such as nutraceuticals, herb extracts, vitamins and
mineral products as well as packaging materials. The Group is affected by
the increase in the prices of these raw materials and packaging materials,
which are determined principally by market forces and the Group's
bargaining power vis-a-vis the Group's suppliers. If the prices of these
raw materials and packaging materials were to increase significantly, the
Group may not be able to offset all price increases by raising the prices
of the Group's products. Moreover, the Group may lose competitive
advantage if the prices of the Group’s products increase significantly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

The Group's failure to appropriately respond to changing consumer
preferences and introduce new products could significantly harm
customer relationships and product sales of the Group. The continued
success of the Group is particularly subject to changing consumer trends
and preferences and the Company'’s ability to anticipate and respond
to these changes. If the Company is not able to respond in a timely or
commercially appropriate manner to these changes, relationships with
customers of the Group and product sales could be harmed significantly.
Furthermore, the nutritional supplements industry is characterised by
rapid and frequent changes in demand for new products. The Company’s
failure to accurately predict these trends and introduce new products
could negatively impact consumer opinion of the Company. This could
harm customer relationships and cause losses to the market share of the
Group. The success of new product offerings of the Group depends on a
number of factors, including the ability to accurately anticipate customer
needs, innovate and develop new products, successfully commercialise
new products in a timely manner, competitively pricing the products of
the Group, manufacture and deliver products in sufficient volumes and
in a timely manner, and differentiate product offerings from competitors.
If the Group does not introduce new products or make enhancements
to meet the changing needs of customers in a timely manner, some of
the products of the Group could become obsolete, which could have an
adverse effect on the operating results of the Group.

Foreign exchange risk and fluctuations in exchange rates could have
an adverse effect on business and investors’ environment. The Group
is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for its purchases in United
States dollars, Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars from third-
party manufacturers in Australia and New Zealand. The appreciation
or depreciation of RMB against United States dollars, Australian dollars
and New Zealand dollars may have a significant impact on the Group's
profitability. For example, a depreciation of RMB could increase costs
of purchasing products from Australia and New Zealand, as such
depreciation would require the Group to convert more RMB to obtain
the equivalent foreign currency necessary to tender payment. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure
to foreign currency risk. The value of RMB against foreign currencies,
including United States dollars, Australian dollars and New Zealand
dollars, fluctuates and is affected by, among other things, changes in
the PRC and international political and economic conditions and the
PRC government's fiscal, monetary and currency policies. There remains
significant international pressure on the PRC government to adopt a
more flexible currency policy. The Group cannot predict how RMB will
fluctuate in the future. As a result, the fluctuation in the exchange rate
between RMB and other currencies could have an adverse effect on the
Group's business, financial condition and operating results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Quiality and dedicated staff are indispensable assets to the Group's success
in the competitive market. By providing comprehensive trainings and
corporate culture education periodically, the employees are able to obtain
on-going trainings and development in the nutritional supplements
industry. Furthermore, the Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurated with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits
to all employees. The Group reviews its human resources and remuneration
policies periodically to ensure they are in line with market practice and
regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a work
force of 477 employees (as at 31 December 2023: 349 employees). The total
salaries and related costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB120.8
million (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB89.8 million).
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Directors, Supervisors Senior Management and Employees

NEEBEREES

S

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of 6 Directors, including

BEE - &%

S

RAFHAY EFSHecREFTMAN B

3 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors. 3HEMITESRIBBUIEHNITES -
The information of the Directors is set out as follows: EENEMEINNOT
Date of joining Date of
Name Age the Group Position/Title appointment Roles and responsibilities
e FH MAXKENAHY B EE ZEEH ABRBE
Mr. Gui Pinghu 65 24 May 1999 Chairman and 24 May 1999 Chairman of the strategy and development
executive Director committee of the Board (“Strategy and
Development Committee”);
being responsible for strategic
development of the Company
HEERLE 655% 199F5A248 EEREWTES 199658248 EFEBETHRLEREZES
(BMRBRESS))ERE
BEARDAIEBMEER
Ms. Zhang Yuan 55 25May 1999 Chief executive officer 17 June 2011 General manager, being responsible
and executive for the management, organisation,
Director implementation of Board decisions;
and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board ("Nomination
Committee’ )
RRZ L 555% 199F5A25H HEWTERNMTES 201MFe6A17A  HLE ARERE A EHESS
REREEERTELEER
((REZB8)KE
Ms. Zhu Feifei 43 29 July 2003 Chief production officer 25 October 2012 Chief production officer; a member of
and executive Director the remuneration committee of the
Board ('Remuneration Committee’)
ARRLL 435 2003F7A298 HEHELEERNTEE W0NFI10AE BHELEE SECETHHZEe
((FMEEE])KE
Mr. Yu Bo 54 26 January 2022 Independent 26 January 2022 Chairman of the Nomination Committee;
non-executive Director amember of each of the audit committee
of the Board ("Audit Committee”)
and Strategy and Development Committee
RREE S45% 202F 18268  BMIFNITES 20261268 REZECIR EEQETER
ZEg([BREEE) R
EMkBEREZEEKE
Mr. Ye Bangyin 54 23 October 2024 Independent 23 October 2024 Chairman of the Audit Committee;
non-executive a member of each of the
Director Remuneration Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
ERREAE 545% 2024F10A 238 BUFRTES 204F10A238 BREZELIR FMEEER
BRI EREZEENE
Mr. Cheng Jianming 58 23 October 2024 Independent 23 October 2024 Chairman of the Remuneration
non-executive Committee; a member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee
RERALE 585% 2024F10A238 BUFRTES 2024%10A238  HHMZESIR BERZEEEGR
REZEEKE
\h ”v
ARPEBMEROHOEBRAT —T_MFFR 21




Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

B EE  =AEEERES

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (1 #), aged 65, the founder of the Group, is the chairman
of the Board (“Chairman”) and was appointed as an executive Director on
24 May 1999. Mr. Gui is also a director of Australia Cobayer Health Food Co.
Pty Ltd. ("Cobayer”) and Good Health Products Limited ("GHP”") (Shanghai
Weiyi Investment Management Co., Ltd.'s ("Shanghai Weiyi") wholly-owned
subsidiary). He is primarily responsible for the strategic development of the
Company.

Mr. Gui graduated from Nanjing Xiaozhuang University (formerly known
as Nanjing Institute of Education* (F§ /L #X & £ %)), majoring in Chinese
in July 1989 and was awarded a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Fudan University in
June 2010. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gui and his spouse were
interested in approximately 60.44% of the H shares of the Company (the “H
Shares”).

Mr. Gui was the general manager of Hainan East & West Advertisement Art
Company* (B R R A7 & & 2172 A) from November 1992 to October
1994, the general manager of Nanjing Tangshan Garden Hotel* (F /5
I FE BB 15 ) between January 1995 and December 1996 and the general
manager of Nanjing Xin Chuang Mould and Die Factory* (& = #7 8l £ &
f§) from January 1997 to December 1998. In May 1999, he established the
Company and has since then been the Director. Mr. Gui has more than 20 years
of experience in the nutritional supplements industry.

Ms. Zhang Yuan (3R &), aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Group (“Chief Executive Officer’) on 17
June 2011. Ms. Zhang is also a director of Shanghai Weiyi, GHP, Living Nature
Natural Products Limited and Living Nature Limited. Ms. Zhang is primarily
responsible for the management, organisation and implementation of Board
decisions. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhang was interested in
approximately 0.72% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the nutritional supplements
industry. She was appointed as the office supervisor of the Company in May
1999 and the deputy general manager of the Company in January 2008.

Ms. Zhang obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration,
which was a part-time programme from Nanjing University in June 2012.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

B EE  sAEEERES

Ms. Zhu Feifei (5k ), aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director on
25 October 2012. Ms. Zhu is also a director of Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-tech Co.
Limited* (B R R AEEEHE A BR A A]) and Niuhao Health Nutrition (Nanjing)
Co. Limited* (AT 2R &2 ([ 5B RAF]). Ms. Zhu is primarily responsible
for the production of the Group. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhu
was interested in approximately 0.07% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhu joined the Company as a sales clerk of the sales department in July
2003. She was promoted to be the chief production officer in January 2008.
She was appointed as a Director in October 2012.

Ms. Zhu graduated from a part-time programme of the Open University of
China (formerly known as China Central Radio and Television University* (F9 5
EEE AR A ER) majoring in Business Administration in January 2008.

Mr. Yu Bo (5R¥), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 January 2022.

Mr. Yu obtained a doctoral degree in management from Nanjing University in
2006 and a master degree in business administration from Nanjing University
in 2001.

Mr. Yu has been appointed as a director of Nanjing Hexi New City Technology
Venture Capital Fund Co,, Ltd* (B3 5UR BT BHE BIE IR E S| BE S AR
A7) since December 2011. He has also been a director of Nanjing Sinar Mas
& Zi Jin Venture Capital Management Co. Ltd* (BI R & RS AR E B
BBR A A]) since January 2012, in which he served as its president between
2018 and 2020, a director of Nanjing Jinmei Film and Television Investment
Management Co., Ltd* (AR EEFZHRIEEETEBRAF]) (which was
deregistered on July 2024) from September 2014 to July 2024, and the vice
chairman of Nanjing Hongtu Venture Capital Co, Ltd* (B 4L LEIZIEEE
fR 72 A]) since September 2017.

Since May 2020, Mr. Yu has become an independent director of Shenzhen
Jiachuang Video Technology Co., Ltd* OFRIITTEAIR MRS BER A
R]), the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code:300264.57). Since October 2020, Mr. Yu has become an independent
director of GemPharmatech Co,, Ltd.* (TERE X ZEFE A VR RHBER A
B]) (stock code: 688046.SH). He has also taken up the role of chief economist at
Nanjing Southeast Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (I S R 1% & &
BB R /AT]) since May 2021, and has also been appointed as a director
of Nanjing Innovation Investment Group Co,, Ltd* (FA R BIFTIR E LB HR
& (LA 7)) since September 2021.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors Senior Management and Employees
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Mr. Ye Bangyin (E #B$R ), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2024.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the Nanjing University of
Finance & Economics* (7 5 1 42 K E2) (previously known as Nanjing Institute
of Food Economics* (R A f8 B £ B £ Fx)) in 1991, a master's degree in
accounting from the China University of Geoscience* (Bl 1t & K £ ) in 2008
and a doctoral degree in Resource Industry Economy from the China University
of Geoscience* (FF B # & K £2) in 2014. Between July 2020 and February
2022, Mr. Ye was appointed as the vice dean of the Guofu Zhongshen College*
(Bl & 2] 2 7) of Nanjing Audit University (B 2 28 51 X ). Since May
2023, Mr. Ye was appointed as the executive dean of Zhongshen College (7
ZEEAPT). In March 2024, Mr. Ye was shortlisted in the List of Jiangsu Province
CPA Teacher Database* (L&A sk i @ 5HAIIT XM EEAE A E)
December 2020, Mr. Ye has been appointed as an independent director of
Duolun Technology Corp Ltd* (Z fw Bt i& 0 B R A &), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603528.5H). Since February
2021, Mr. Ye has been appointed as an independent director of Nanjing Hanrui
Cobalt Co, Ltd* (Fg R 2= 81 # % IR {9 B IR 2 A), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300618.SZ). Since May 2021, Mr. Ye
has also been appointed as an independent director of Nanjing Public Utilities
Development Co, Ltd* (FA R A B BRI M AR A ), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000421 .SZ).

. Since

Mr. Cheng Jianming (T2 # B), aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2024.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine, a master’'s degree
in Chinese medicine and a doctoral degree in Chinese Medicine from the
Nanjing University of Chinese Medicine (Fg & A 8 2 K £) (previously
known as Nanjing University of Traditional Chinese Medicine (F§ . 1 & £
BT ) ('NJUCM") in 1988, 2002 and in 2011 respectively. In September 2013,
Mr. Cheng was awarded the second class Marine Science and Technology
Award (/& # BLE H 1i7 #2) for recognition of his work in marine science
and technology innovation (J& /¥ B} 2 1 17 &) ¥7 T 1F) from the State
Oceanic Administration (B4 X /& % /&). Since July 2014, Mr. Cheng has been
a researcher in the school of Chinese medicine in NJUCM. In January 2021, Mr.
Cheng was awarded the second class award in the 2020 Jiangsu Science and
Technology Award* (2020 4F [& )T #k & B} 22 547 42) for related technologies
and industrial demonstration of high-value utilisation of shellfish resources
VI BBEERSELCNBEBRMRERAETEH). N
December 2021, Mr. Cheng was appointed as the head of the Jiangsu Province
Classic Prescription Engineering Research Center* ((T #% & 48 2% 77 T2
R ALY of NJUCM. In February 2024, Mr. Cheng was appointed as a doctoral
supervisor* (18 Tt 3£ & #§ 2K A ) in the school of pharmacy of NJUCM.

in Jiangsu*

* For identification purpose only
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SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors (“Supervisors”) of the Company ("Board of
Supervisors’) currently consists of four members. The following table sets out
certain information about the Supervisors.

E=
ArAEE((BEENe((EEg)) BAHhM
BB - TREINEEHNHLDER -

Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
mE Fi# MAXEENEH B B ZERH AERBE
Ms. Yu Min 46 16 September 2002 Chairman of the Board of 25 October 2012 the national offline maternal
Supervisors and child marketing director
R L 46 5% 20029 A 16 A EEeXR 02F 108258 2BERTHLREHEE
Ms. Wang Ping 38 30June 2009 Supervisor 5 June 2020 Human resources manager of
the Company
Izt 385% 2009F 6 A30H E=x 2000F6 A5H  ARBANERKE
Ms. Lu Jiachun 46 20 June 2001 Employee representative 25 October 2012 Accounting clerk
Supervisor
BEfEAE Lt 4675% 200146 A20H BIRKRES 012%10A258 RIRE
Ms. Chen Xiu 40 30 August 2003 Employee representative 16 May 2013 Supervision specialist
Supervisor
BRFBL L 405% 200348 A30H BTRRES 2013 5A168 EE®HS
Ms. Yu Min (R#), aged 46, was appointed as the chairman of the Board of R Z =+ - 4657 * K2012F 10825 HER T

Supervisors on 25 October 2012.

Ms. Yu graduated from Jinling Institute of Technology* (& [ &l EFk)
(formerly known as Nanjing Agricultural School* (F R B ZEHRIE2RK))
majoring in Accounting in June 1999. As at the date of this annual report, Ms.
Yu was interested in approximately 0.07% of the H Shares.

In 2002, Ms. Yu joined the Company as an accounting clerk and was promoted
to be the sales manager of Nanjing in September 2004 and customer relations
manager in January 2008. Ms. Yu was subsequently appointed as the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors and continued to be the customer relations
manager. In July 2018, Ms. Yu was promoted as the general manager of the
sales department of the Group in Nanjing. In July 2024, Ms. Yu was appointed
as the national offline maternal and child marketing director* (2 BI4R T 512
ENFHAREL) of the Company.

Ms. Wang Ping (£ ), aged 38, was appointed as a Supervisor on 5 June
2020. Ms. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and
literature, majoring in broadcasting and hosting art, from Changzhou Institute
of Technology* (& M TZ5%) in June 2009. Ms. Wang has joined the Company
since June 2009. She first joined the Company as a conference moderator and
was later promoted to a human resources officer. She is currently the human
resources manager of the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Lu Jiachun (BE{E#), aged 46, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 25 October 2012. Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from a part-time programme of the Open
University of China in October 2005.

Ms. Lu has been an accounting clerk of the Group since June 2001. In October
012, she was appointed as a member of the Board of Supervisors.

Ms. Chen Xiu (BR55), aged 40, was appointed as the employee representative
Supervisor on 16 May 2013. Ms. Chen graduated from Jiangsu Institute of
Commerce* (TERAEE B FMTEET) (formerly known as Jiangsu Vocational
(LA X B IR EER

and Technical Institute of Economics and Commerce*
Bt)) majoring in Accounting in July 2004

BEfEMi Lt - 4658 R2012F10A25HEER
TABTRRESE - BEL 72005910 AH
SHERAMASER T HERE4 26 -

B+ B200Feo AE—HETAEBMT
BRB - R20NF 108 FEZEAESEK

<]

m s

\
’

BRFBLL 405% RN2013F 5 16HEERT
BB TIRRES ML ITR2004F7AEE
RIIESERERNSR (B IHEEERE
BHEPERT) ®ETEE -

Ms. Chen joined the Group in August 2003 as a customer service clerk. Since  BRZEH2003F 8 A MAREBTERXE -
July 2009, she has been a supervision specialist. B2009F 7 At I —ERETEEERS -
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREEE
Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
" A Fi: MAXEENBEH B B ZEBH AERBE
Ms. Zhi Hui (2 #F) 44 4 June 2002 Secretary of the Board, 25 October 2012 Secretary of the Board,
joint company secretaries company secretarial
matters
XA 445% 200296 A48 EEegnE 2012F10A25H EFEWE
BE AR E NEWEEH
Mr. Li Bin (Z238) 45 1July2013 Chief financial officer 1 July 2013 Finance management
S 455% 201347 A1 8 BREVBE 201357 A1 R B E e
Mr.WuJun (Rf&) 41 4 September 2006 Financial controller 1 September 2013 Finance management
RERE 415% 20065F9 A4 H 54t 20139 A1 H MisER

Ms. Zhi Hui (327F), aged 44, has more than 10 years of experience in the
nutritional supplements industry. She joined the Group in June 2002 as an
office clerk. She was promoted as the human resources manager of the
Company in January 2008. In October 2012, she became the secretary to
the Board and served as the joint company secretaries of the Company
concurrently. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhi was interested in
approximately 0.08% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhi graduated from Sanjiang University majoring in Modern Company
Secretary in June 2002.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Li Bin (Z=3R), aged 45, was appointed as the chief financial officer of the
Company in July 2013. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of accounting experience.
He obtained a bachelor degree in Accounting from the Nanjing University
of Finance and Economics in August 2003 and was admitted as a Certified
Management Accountant of the United States in July 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the financial controller of the finance
department of Nanjing SIXIN Scientific-Technological Application Research
Institute Co., Ltd.* (FARFRHLE AW AR A R]), a company
engaging in the development and production of Silicone and non-Silicone
foam control agents, between October 2003 and March 2007. He worked in the
finance department of CEEG (Nanjing) New Energy Co., Ltd.* (7 & & 5.(F )
¥eeRBBR /A A]), a company that engages in the research and development,
production, sale and services of solar energy components, between June 2007
and September 2009 and the finance department of the solar energy business
unit of Jiangsu Sainty International Group Machinery Import and Export
Corporation Limited* (T #k%& K Bl & B#ME E ORH AR AR, a
company that engages in import and export trade, between October 2009 and
October 2010.

Mr. Wu Jun (218), aged 41, was appointed as the financial controller of the
Company in September 2013. Mr. Wu has more than 10 years of experience in
the nutritional supplements industry. He joined the Group in September 2006
as an accounting clerk of the finance department of Hangzhou Zhongyan
Biological Products Co. Limited* (Fu/FR A AE MR A AR A A]) and became
an accounting clerk of the finance department of the company in August 2008.
He was promoted as the finance manager of the Company in January 2011.

Mr. Wu graduated from Nanjing University of Technology (F8 5 T 3 K £2)
majoring in Project Management in June 2006.

* For identification purpose only
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhi Hui (2 7), serves as the secretary to the Board and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
"Senior Management” above for her biography.

Mr. Yau Tsz Lun (5% 7 %) was appointed as the joint company secretary and
the authorized representatives, all with effect from 23 August 2024. Mr. Yau
is a Manager of Company Secretarial Services of Tricor Services Limited, Asia’s
leading business expansion specialist. Mr. Yau has over 6 years of experience
in the company secretarial field. He has been providing professional corporate
services, corporate governance and compliance services to Hong Kong listed
companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Mr. Yau is
a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an Associate
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yau Tsz Lun (35 F ) is a Manager of Company Secretarial Services of
Tricor Services Limited, Asia’s leading business expansion specialist. Mr. Yau
has over 6 years of experience in the company secretarial field. He has been
providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as
well as multinational, private and offshore companies.

Mr. Yau is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an
Associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various committees. In
accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the corporate
governance practice prescribed in the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Company has formed four Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, and the Strategy and Development Committee.
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Audit Committee

The Board established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of internal audit function, scope of audit and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. At
present, the Audit Committee comprises Mr. Ye Bangyin, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Cheng Jianming, the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ye Bangyin is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and reviewing and/or approving the
matters relating to the share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. At
present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Cheng Jianming and Mr.
Ye Bangyin, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhu Feifei, an
executive Director. Mr. Cheng Jianming is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Board established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession planning
of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. At present, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Cheng Jianming, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang
Yuan, an executive Director. Mr. Yu Bo is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

Strategy and Development Committee

The Board established a Strategy and Development Committee with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Strategy and Development
Committee are to conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the
long-term development strategies and material investment decisions of the
Company. At present, the Strategy and Development Committee comprises
Mr. Gui Pinghu, the Chairman and an executive Director, and Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Ye Bangyin, the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the
chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.
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EMPLOYEES ==

The Group maintains good working relations with its staff. It has not ASEHEES THFRTNTIERE EHRE
experienced any significant problems with the recruitment and retention NBEBERLYENEETAA S EETME
of experienced employees. In addition, it has not suffered from any material ~ ARIRE oM REBE B FE KL EHU K
disruption of its normal business operations as a result of labour disputes or B4 4k B T ME& S EMEATIE -

strikes.

In the PRC, in accordance with relevant national and local labour and social EHFE - REFBER Kt 4B Rt &8
welfare laws and regulations, the Group is required to pay in respect of its ~ FSARRA > NEBBAH PR E B HMH
employees in the PRC various social security funds including basic pension ZHE#4 ZREE S  BEEZAEEZREB £
insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational ~ REEFERE - K ERK - THERER - EAK
injury insurance, critical illness insurance, insurance for maternity leave and &R - LERBEEEAES -

housing provident fund.

\\“ Y
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the trading
of packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and New Zealand.
Particulars of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, for the year ended 31 December 2024, it has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from
its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manages
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and adopting
green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade equipment such
as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to increase overall operating
efficiency. To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group measures and
records the energy consumption intensity from time to time.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 164 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil) or any special dividend (2023: Nil).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) who have waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report for a business review of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during
2024 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
2024 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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RESERVES

The amount of the Company’s accumulated losses as at 31 December 2024
was RMB284.5 million. Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 167 of this annual report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans, borrowings or pledge
of assets as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). Please refer to note 32 to the
financial statement in this annual report for further information in relation to
financial risk management of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% and the revenue attributable to the Group's
largest customer was less than 10%.

For the Year, the total purchases attributable to the Group'’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was less than 10%.

For the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the number of the Company's issued shares, had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2024 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)
Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhu Feifei
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ye Bangyin (appointed with effect from 23 October 2024)

Mr. Cheng Jianming (appointed with effect from 23 October 2024)

Mr. Yu Bo

Ms. Cai Tianchen (22K &) (resigned with effect from 22 October 2024) Nt
Mr. Wang Wei (£ 3£ ) (resigned with effect from 22 October 2024) et

Note:  Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei each resigned as an independent non-executive Director

as each of them have served on the Board for six years, and to devote more time on her/his

other commitments.

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM").

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during 2024 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Ms. Yu Min (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Ping

Ms. Lu Jiachun

Ms. Chen Xiu

The Board of Supervisors has held four meetings during 2024. Details of the
meetings and events conducted by the Board of Supervisors during 2024 are
set out in the work report of the Board of Supervisors of this annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 21 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of appointment
(for non-executive Directors) with the Company for a term of three years and
shall be elected by Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office, which
the successive terms of office of independent non-executive Directors shall not
exceed six years, in accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
"Articles”).

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years and may be re-elected. No Director or Supervisor has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising from
the Group's activities which such Directors and officers may be held liable.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at AGM. Other emoluments
will be determined and recommended by the members of the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities, performance of the
Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and the five highest
paid employees of the Company are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends which will be
reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also
distribute discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS, ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTION OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts, arrangements or transactions of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries were a party subsisted at the end of 2024 or at
any time during the same year in which any Director or Supervisor or any
entity connected with the Director or Supervisor had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not entered
into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to manage or
administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EE EERSAEEAEREBG
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND RHEROHNERR AR
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors, 202412 A31H B%H EERAQ TS
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the share capital and A EE A B RA QRIS A EE (FERE
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within % M HA S 15 6] ([ 5 REBEHKHI]) EXVvER)
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO") B AN KR AERAR (D A B BN IBEES K
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO,  BRE §f1 55 352 (& ETR R B e MRS A B
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuantto  SRARIE B <2 BT £ i AR BIBH 8k C3FT &l L 3817
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the ~ AZEE#EITHEHF R ZRIEESTA ([ZESFA])
"Model Code’) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules on the Stock 7B &1& A A &) K B <2 P i #E 25 K sk & #0712
Exchange, are set out below: T~

Number Approximate
of shares shareholding
held as at percentage

Class of share 31 December in the total

Capacity Nature of interest of the Company 2024 share capital®
20245 iy

128318 BRA YA

=47 BEME ARRBRGER FERGHE EREK®
(%)

Mr. Gui Pinghu Director Beneficial owner H Shares 518,937,108 (L) 54.84%
('Mr. Gui")? % ExEBA HE&
BEEHEs Interest of spouse H Shares 52,965,000 (L) 5.60%
([HEEE] [y HiR
Ms. Zhang Yuan Director Beneficial owner H Shares 6,817,550 (L) 0.72%
RIRA T 5= ERBEBA H A%
Ms. Zhu Feifei Director Beneficial owner H Shares 659,340 (L) 0.07%
RRA 2+ S ERAEA H i
Ms. Yu Min Supervisor Beneficial owner H Shares 659,340 (L) 0.07%
X Ex ERBEA H iR
Y
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Notes:
(1) The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

) Mr. Gui is the spouse of Ms. Wu Yanmei. Under the SFO, Mr. Gui was deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares in which Ms. Wu Yanmei was interested.

(3) As at 31 December 2024, the number of total issued shares of the Company was 946,298,370
H Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, or any of their spouses, or
children under 18 years of age, has any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors” and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”, at no
time in 2024 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors and Supervisors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors and
Supervisors, or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company
or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the persons who
hold 5% or more of the class shares in the issued share capital of the Company
(other than Directors and Supervisors), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as it was

known to Directors are set out below:

Nature of interest

sIMORBEIINT

Number
of shares
held as at

Class of share 31 December

of the Company p\pZ

H2024 5
12A31H

ARARGBER FEROBE

FERRRROREBR G ERS
593

BEBNE  R2024F 128318 EEARFA
RIEES NG G0 FB6IEETEMEFENE
MRS RARRERTR AT A
BIRED 5% sk LA E AL (BEREERRIN A9

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
R

RA A
ERESHL®
(%)

Ms. Wu Yanmei® Beneficial owner H Shares 52,965,000 (L) 5.60%
REGR T ERBEA H %
Interest of spouse H Shares 518,937,108 (L) 54.84%
friB s H &
Mr. Gui Ke Beneficial owner H Shares 65,923,000 (L) 6.97%
EREE ERBEA H &
Ms. Li Shi®” Interest of spouse H Shares 65,923,000 (L) 6.97%
FHaLw fEEs H %
Hin Sang Group (International) Beneficial owner H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 6.25%
Holding Co. Ltd."®
TTHEE (B ERERAR BEmEEA H &
Genwealth Group Holding Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 6.25%
Company Limited®/® corporation
fTERBEEZERERARO REEE R H iR
Ms. Kwan Lai Man®© Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 6.25%
corporation
BREZL Lo REEE R H iR
Interest of spouse H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.04%
fEEx H A%
Mr. Pang Siu Hin® Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 6.25%
corporation
ZOITRES XEEE R H &
Beneficial owner H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.04%
ERBEA H &
Y
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Notes:
1M The letter “L" represents long position in such securities.

2) Ms. Wu Yanmei is the spouse of Mr. Gui. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu Yanmei was deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui was interested.

3) As at 31 December 2024, the number of total issued shares of the Company was 946,298,370
H Shares.

4) Ms. Li Shi is the spouse of Mr. Gui Ke. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Shi was deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui Kei was interested.

(5) These 59,121,600 H Shares were held by Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd., an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands whose issued
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893). Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. was held as to 50.68% by Genwealth Group Holding Company Limited,
which is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Accordingly, Genwealth Group Holding
Company Limited, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man were deemed to hold interests in
these H Shares under the SFO.

(6) Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Under the SFO, Ms. Kwan Lai Man was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin was
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors, Supervisors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Company for the Year and
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of reference which are in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Mr. Ye Bangyin and Mr. Cheng Jianming. The
Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the review and supervision of
the financial reporting process, and risk management and internal control
system. It has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and the audited final results of the Group for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations. Please refer to
section “Good Health Employee Fundraising to Support Cancer Association”
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this annual report for
details of the donations made by the Group.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Directors, managing directors, alternate Directors, secretary and other
officers for the time being of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company, and their
respective executors or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any
of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of legal action
against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company,
or existed during the Year.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

During the Year, there were no material investments, acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, there were no significant events affecting the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or applicable
laws of the PRC where the Company is incorporated.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
(as defined under the Listing Rules) during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Gui Pinghu and Ms. Wu Yanmei, both being the controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules), have made non-competition undertakings in favour
of the Company. They have confirmed compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors,
is of the opinion that the relevant controlling Shareholders have been in
compliance with the non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during 2024.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as the code of
conduct for the Directors in their dealings in the Company’s securities.

The Company has made specific enquiry to the Directors and supervisors of
the Company (“Supervisors”) and all the Directors and Supervisors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during the Year.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all applicable
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules during the Year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has been
established in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yu Bo, Mr. Ye Bangyin and Mr. Cheng Jianming. Mr. Ye Bangyin
serves as the chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for the review and supervision of the financial reporting
process, and risk management and internal control system. It has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and the audited
final results of the Group for the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Year. The Company did
not hold any treasury shares during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the listing of shares of the

Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the issue of the over-
allotment shares amounted to approximately HK$428.7 million (equivalent to
RMB336.4 million).

As at 31 December 2024,

U]

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

42

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB73.7 million and RMB0.8 million
has been used on the acquisition of GHP and expanding and enhancing
the production capacity of the Group, and for Living Nature’s product
function enhancement;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB97.1 million has been used to
build a R&D testing centre;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB20.2 million has been used to
build information technology and logistics centre;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB97.6 million has been used on
the marketing and promotion activities;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB13.5 million has been used to
expand the sales network and explore new markets; and

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB33.6 million has been used for
working capital.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25 July 2024, the AR A & B EI7 20245 7 A 25 H ) A & Fr 3%
PAN

Company intended to fully utilise the unutilised Net Proceeds of approximately & * AN A Al 5T BIFE 2025 F F o0 2 A - 22 A
RMB4.5 million as at 31 December 2023 by mid-2025. As at 31 December 2024,
all of the Net Proceeds have been utilised in accordance with the proposed
application set out in the circular of the Company dated 22 September 2017.

During the Year, the Company utilised the Net Proceeds in the following

FER2023F 12 A3 HMARAMBRIAFEY
ARBEASHE L A2024F 124318 A
BB HREFECZRBAAR B A20174F
SHLHEMBMHFI RN EZARETE

manner:

e EARFE - ARBFAFRIAFENER
TR

Amount of
Amount of Net Proceeds Amount of
Net Proceeds yet used during Net Proceeds yet
to be utilised as at the year ended to be utilised as at
Intended use of Net Proceeds 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2024
R2023 F BZE2024%F R2024F
12A318#K 12ANHLEE 12A31HK
FEREFHEZ2BERR ABAFRBREFEE CDHAMSREFE APFAMSHRFH
Building R&D and testing centre and Approximately Approximately Nil
maintenance cost of the R&D and testing RMB2.0 million RMB2.0 million
centre
B EE BORIS AR D A R B I MARKE208E8T HARBE208BET =
AP O EEER
Expanding and enhancing the production Approximately Approximately Nil
capacity and efficiency of the Group RMB1.6 million RMB1.6 million
BARRARE B ERERAE AR 16BET AR 1 6BET =
Establishing information and logistics Approximately Approximately Nil
control centre and maintenance cost of the RMBO0.9 million RMBO.9 million
information and logistics control centre
A BRSO LA R & AR HWARKEOBET AR IBET =z
W PR 1 R D B
Total: Approximately Approximately Nil
RMB4.5 million RMBA4.5 million
#Et WARBAasHERTL HNARWISEER Z
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT AWMERENT M

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued

share capital was held by public as at the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 were audited by Ernst & Young, who holds office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution of the reappointment of Ernst
& Young as the external auditor of the Company respectively will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

OUTLOOK

In 2024, the global economic growth slowed overall, with pronounced
regional divergence: developed economies experienced sluggish growth,
while emerging markets demonstrated resilience. As a key driver of global
economic growth, China’s economic growth outpaced the global average,
with consumption upgrades and exports of the “New Trio”" (electric vehicles,
lithium-ion batteries and photovoltaic products) emerging as new growth
drivers. While inflation cooled in major economies, it remained persistent,
leading to a shift toward more accommodative monetary policies. Geopolitical
conflicts continued, with the Russia-Ukraine conflict and the Israel-Palestine
crisis causing surges to energy prices and trade costs. Although a stabilisation
in China-US relations may present opportunities for global supply chain
adjustments, the risk of “decoupling” remains.

In 2024, the Group successfully achieved its strategic objectives established
at the beginning of the Year. It focused resources on developing cross-border
e-commerce, optimised promotional strategies on e-commerce platforms,
and enhanced the influence of the Good Health brand and key products.
The Group enhanced its research and development efforts for new products
to shorten research and development cycles, strengthened supply chain
management, and expanded production capacity to reduce manufacturing
and procurement lead times, thereby enhancing working capital efficiency.

In 2025, geopolitical conflicts, debt crises, trade barriers, a restructuring global
manufacturing landscape, and many other factors will continue to create
uncertainties for global economic development. As the global economy
continues to face policy competition and sluggish growth amid the cooling
inflation and trade recovery, China is required to strike a balance between
“revitalising domestic demand” and “breaking through external barriers” for its
economic growth. Policy stability, structural reforms, mitigation of real estate
and financial risks, and international cooperation will be critical in addressing
these challenges. If China’s high-quality development can effectively drive
consumption and spark innovation, new momentum may be injected into the
global economy.
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EEERE

The Chinese consumer healthcare industry remains in a stage of high-quality
and rapid development. China's large population and their increasing health
awareness form a solid foundation for the demand for healthcare products,
offering huge advantages and opportunities. Omnichannel marketing
strategies, including the extensive integration of online and offline platforms
and precise marketing on social media, effectively enhance consumer
shopping experiences and brand stickiness. The combination of online
e-commerce platforms and offline physical stores has expanded market
coverage, while interactions on social media platforms further enhance brand
recognition. In terms of cross-border products, due to a growing demand for
high-quality healthcare products among consumers, imported healthcare
products become increasingly popular in the market. As the development of
cross-border e-commerce platforms provides convenient purchasing channels,
overseas brands enter the PRC market more smoothly, satisfying the consumer
demands for international brands. As the younger generation reigns in the
market, they focus more on appearance, personal care, and healthy lifestyles,
including the intake of dietary supplements and sports nutrition products. In
the future, the demand in the younger generation market will shift towards
innovation, fashion, and sustainability. As a result, companies will be required
to better cater to consumers’ personalities and values in their product
development and marketing efforts.

In 2025, the Group will specifically focus on the following efforts:

(1) in pursuit of e-commerce platform growth, strive to achieve the goal
of being the top seller in the core product categories on e-commerce
platforms. Meanwhile, the Group will promote new innovative products
to expand the brand’s consumer base;

(2)  to strengthen the supply chain management, by identifying high-
quality suppliers and improving production capacity. To promptly meet
customer demands, the Group will strive to shorten production and
procurement cycles, while enhancing operational efficiency; and

(3)  to expand the Group’s revenue scale, while optimising the cost-income

output of marketing and promotional expenses, thereby improving
overall profitability.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 26 March 2025
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Work Report of the Board of Supervisors
EEgTERE

During the reporting period of 2024, the Board of Supervisors carefully and
thoroughly performed its supervisory functions in favor of the Company and
the Shareholders in a responsible manner according to the Company Law,
the Articles and the Rules of Procedures for the Board of Supervisors, and the
requirements under the relevant law and regulations, while duly monitoring
and examining the operations and financial conditions of the Company, as well
as the supervision by the Supervisors over the performance of duties by the
members of the Board, the managers and other senior management members
of the Company, according to the laws.

I.  DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors convened four meetings.

On 26 March 2024, it considered the 2023 Work Report of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company, the Resolution on the 2023 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, the 2023 Financial Settlement of
the Company and the Resolution regarding the 2024 Financial Budget
of the Company, the Resolution on 2023 Profit Distribution Plan of the
Company, the Resolution regarding the Appointment of Accountant
and the Authorisation Granted at the General Meeting to the Board to
Determine Its Remuneration, the Resolution regarding the Authorisation
Granted at the General Meeting to the Board to Determine the
Remunerations of the Directors and Supervisors, the Resolution on 2024
Non-withdrawal of Statutory Reserve of the Company, the Resolution
where the Board is granted the general mandate at the General Meeting
to issue, allocate, and deal with additional Domestic Shares and H Shares,
both numbers of which will be no more than 20% of the total amount
of Domestic Shares and H Shares of the Company in issue at that time
respectively, and the Board is authorised to revise the Articles, as it sees
fit, for the purposes of reflecting the new shareholding structure upon
the allotment or issue of additional shares under the relevant mandate.

On 23 August 2024, it considered the Resolution on Interim Results for
2024 and Interim Dividend Distributions, the Resolution on Material
Internal Audit Findings for the Period Ended 30 June 2024 and the
Resolution on Proposed Measures regarding Employees in respect of
Financial Reporting, Internal Auditing and other Misbehaviours.

On 25 September 2024, the meeting of the Board of Supervisors
reviewed the Resolution on Nomination of Supervisors of the Fifth
Session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company and the Resolution
on the Compensation of Supervisors of the Company.

On 23 October 2024, the meeting of the Board of Supervisors reviewed
the Resolution on Election of the Chairman of the Fifth Session of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company.
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Work Report of the Board of Supervisors
EEgTERE

v.

ARPEBARNDARRQA

LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors of the Company attended the meetings of the
Board during the Reporting Period, and duly performed its supervisory
duties of operation activities of the Company. It effectively discharged its
supervisory duties on the employee development, business expansion
and channel development of the Company on a timely basis, thus fully
delivering its duties in the development of the Company in 2024.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the Company persisted in
standardised operations with due diligence in strict compliance with
the provisions under the Company Law and the Articles, as well as
conscientiously carrying out all resolutions at the general meetings; the
internal control system of the Company was well established; disclosure
of all information was made on a timely and accurate basis; no violation
against the laws, regulations, or the Articles, or prejudice against the
interests of the Company was committed by the Directors and senior
management of the Company in the line of duty.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE
COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the proposal on business operation of
the Company and its subsidiaries for 2024 and the proposal on business
plan of the Company for the financial year 2025.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the financial report of the
Company reflects its financial position and operation that are complete,
true and accurate. The annual operating results of the Company have
been audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP who has also issued an
audit report on it. The audit report is factual, fair and objective.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no connected
transaction in 2024 which was subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Work Report of the Board of Supervisors
EEgTERE

VI.

REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE
INTERNAL CONTROL SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT

The Board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the internal
control report of the Company, and considered that the Company
has established an appropriate internal control system in all important
aspects and the internal control management system has operated
effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation and normal
business operations.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED
AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The members of the Board of Supervisors had no objection to the
contents of resolutions submitted to the general meetings. The Board of
Supervisors supervised the implementation of resolutions passed at the
general meetings, and considered that the Board was able to implement
the relevant resolutions earnestly. The Board of Supervisors is of opinion
that the Board of the Company will carefully follow through the relevant
resolutions at the general meetings, without prejudicing the interests of
the Shareholders.

We hereby submit our report.

On behalf of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited*

Ms. Yu Min
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
26 March 2025

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE AND VALUE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high business ethical standards. This reflects its belief that,
in the achievement of its long-term business objectives, it is imperative to
act with probity, transparency and accountability. By doing so, the Company
believes that Shareholder wealth will be maximised in the long term and that
its employees, those with whom it has business activity and the communities
in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring that
its objectives are met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing
robust corporate governance practices that are intended to ensure:

satisfactory and sustainable returns to Shareholders;
that the interests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;
that overall business risk is understood and managed appropriately;

the delivery of high-quality products and services to the satisfaction of
customers; and

that high standards of business ethics are maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG Code
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as the basis of
the Company's corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Specific enquiry has been made with all the Directors and Supervisors and the
Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly
reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform his responsibilities
to the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time
performing them that are commensurate with their role and the Board
responsibilities.

Board composition
The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, consisting of 3 executive Directors
and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, the members of the Board are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhu Feifei

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Bo

Mr. Ye Bangyin (Appointed on 23 October 2024)

Mr. Cheng Jianming (Appointed on 23 October 2024)
Ms. Cai Tianchen (Resigned on 22 October 2024)

Mr. Wang Wei (Resigned on 22 October 2024)

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, Mr. Ye Bangyin and Mr.
Cheng Jianming have each obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D
of the Listing Rules and have each confirmed that they understood their
respective obligations as a Director on 23 September 2024 respectively.
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The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” on pages 21 to 24
of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Board meetings and directors’ attendance records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2024 in compliance with the code
provision C2.7.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held four meetings.
The attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”
on page 62 of this annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Gui
Pinghu and Ms. Zhang Yuan respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company's business development
and daily management and operations generally.

Independent non-executive directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Mr. Ye Bangyin possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Board independence evaluation

The Company has in place a mechanism that underpin an independent Board
and its views during the Year which sets out the processes and procedures to
ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board to
effectively exercise independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or further
development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the
Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance,
for instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each
Director.

Pursuant to the mechanism that underpin an independent Board and its
views, the Board will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board which
will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if
appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors had completed the
independence evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually. The
Board Independence Evaluation Report was presented to the Board and the
evaluation results were satisfactory.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism that underpin an
independent Board and its views and the results were satisfactory.
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Appointment and re-election of directors

According to the Articles, Directors shall be elected or replaced by the
shareholders’ general meeting and may be removed by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders’ general meeting prior to the expiration of their term of
office (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under any contract). The
term of office of the directors is three years. A director may serve consecutive
terms if re-elected, except as otherwise stipulated by relevant laws, regulations
and securities regulatory rules of the place where the shares of the Company
are listed.

The term of office of the directors shall commence from the date of their
appointment until the expiry of the term of the current session of the board of
directors. If the term of office of a director expires but re-election is not made
responsively, the said director shall continue fulfilling the duties as a director
pursuant to the laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules, securities
regulatory rules of the place where the shares of the Company are listed and
these Articles of Association until a new director is elected.

Directors may concurrently serve as senior management personnel of the
Company, and the total number of directors who concurrently serve as senior
management personnel and employee representatives shall not exceed one-
half of the total number of directors of the Company.

Subject to the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules of the place
where the Company is listed, if the board of directors appoints a new director
to fill a casual vacancy or increase the number of directors, the term of office
of the director so appointed shall expire at the next annual general meeting of
the Company, and he/she shall be eligible for re-election.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance
in the Board for bringing effective independent views and judgement
on corporate actions and operations. The Board annually reviews the
implementation and effectiveness of mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input available to the Board and the Board is of the view that the
independent mechanism is effective.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.
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Continuous professional development of directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order
to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors have attended
trainings/seminars on topics such as (i) disclosure of information and insider
dealing; (i) the corporate governance and directors’ skills; (iii) updates on the
regulations under the Listing Rules and directors’ on-going responsibilities; (iv)
connected transactions and the regulations on it; and (v) the management
of employees’ incentive scheme. The following Directors have attended the
trainings during the year ended 31 December 2024:

Name of Directors Participation

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu Attended

Ms. Zhang Yuan Attended

Ms. Zhu Feifei Attended

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Bo Attended

Mr. Ye Bangyin Attended
(Appointed on 23 October 2024)

Mr. Cheng Jianming Attended
(Appointed on 23 October 2024)

Ms. Cai Tianchen Attended
(Resigned on 22 October 2024)

Mr. Wang Wei Attended
(Resigned on 22 October 2024)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and
Development Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which specify clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders
upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

Audit committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Ms. Cai Tianchen (until 22 October 2024),
Mr. Wang Wei (until 22 October 2024), Mr. Ye Bangyin (since 23 October 2024)
and Mr. Cheng Jianming (since 23 October 2024). Ms. Cai Tianchen was the
chairman of the Audit Committee until 22 October 2024 and Mr. Ye Bangyin
has been the chairman of the Audit Committee since 23 October 2024.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal
audit function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review, amongst other things, the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023, the interim financial
results in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2024 and discussed on
2024 audit plan. The Audit Committee also considered significant issues
on the internal audit, review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, appointment of external auditors and relevant scope
of works and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year
ended 31 December 2024, without the presence of the executive Directors.
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The attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set
out in the table under section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members".

Remuneration committee

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director, namely Ms. Zhu Feifei, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Cai Tianchen (until 22 October 2024), Mr. Wang Wei (until 22
October 2024, Mr. Ye Bangyin (since 23 October 2024) and Mr. Cheng Jianming
(since 23 October 2024). Mr. Wang Wei was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee until 22 October 2024 and Mr. Cheng Jianming has been the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee since 23 October 2024.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; assessing the performance of the Directors and
approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts; establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee met
twice to review and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of members
of the senior management (excluding Directors and Supervisors) by band for
the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:
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Number of members of
senior management

Nil to HKD 1,000,000
Over HKD1,000,000

:Et,% #£ 1,000,000 7T
75 #£ 1,000,000 7T

The attendance of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members”.
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Nomination committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director,
namely Ms. Zhang Yuan, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yu Bo, Mr. Wang Wei (until 22 October 2024) and Mr. Cheng
Jianming (since 23 October 2024). Mr. Yu Bo is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as
set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy (as explained below under
the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination Committee
will discuss and agree on measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met twice in 2024 to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. To nominate directors to the Company's fifth Board
of Directors, the Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

The attendance of each of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2024 is
set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members”.

Strategy and development committee

During the Year, the Strategy and Development Committee consists of
one executive Director, namely Mr. Gui Pinghu, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Ms. Cai Tianchen (until 22 October 2024)
and Mr. Ye Bangyin (since 23 October 2024). Mr. Gui Pinghu is the chairman of
the Strategy and Development Committee.

The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are
to conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the long-term
development strategies and material investment decisions of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Strategy and Development
Committee met once to review the development strategies for the year 2023
and the material investment decisions of the Company.

The attendance of each of the members of the Strategy and Development
Committee at the Strategy and Development Committee meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the section headed “Attendance
Records of Directors and Committee Members”.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. A true diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences
will be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity (including gender diversity). The Company aims to build and maintain
a Board with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also committed to
ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board
downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered.

It is the Company’s objective to maintain an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international
and local recommended best practices. As at 31 December 2024, the gender
ratio in the Company's workforce (including senior management) was
approximately 34.8% male and 65.2% female.
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Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be
based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural background, educational background, and professional experience,
which are the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy. Taking into account the Company’s business model and specific needs
as well as the presence of two female Directors out of a total of six Board
members, the Company considers that the composition of the Board satisfies
the Board Diversity Policy.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has achieved the
following measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy:

(@)  toensure at least a member of the Board shall have obtained accounting
or other professional qualification;

(b)  to ensure at least one-third of the members of the Board shall have
attained bachelor's degree or higher level of education;

(c)  toensure at least one member of the Board was or currently is director
of listed companies (including Hong Kong and other regions) other than
the Company;

(d)  to ensure the Board has members coming from different cultural
backgrounds; and

(e)  to ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board comprised
of people from at least two decades.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The review of the Board Diversity Policy
and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually to ensure
the continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Director nomination policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors. It aims
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy;

Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board and
independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. After receiving a list of candidates, recommended by members
of the Board, for the replacement and appointment of new Directors,
the Nomination Committee requested the candidate to provide his/her
biographical information and other information deemed necessary. The
Nomination Committee reviewed and took reasonable steps to verify the
information obtained from the candidate and seek clarification, where required.
The Nomination Committee may, at its discretion, invite any candidate to meet
with the Nomination Committee members to assist them in their consideration
of the proposed nomination or recommendation. The Nomination Committee
then submitted its nomination proposal to the Board for consideration and
making recommendation to the Shareholders for approval.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this corporate governance report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during
the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

ERHER/HWERY

Audit Remuneration

Committee

Name of Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu ML 6/6 -
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRIT 6/6 -
Ms. Zhu Feifel ARARL 6/6 -
Mr. YuBo RREE 6/6 n
Mr. Ye Bangyin ERmrE 1/6 -
Mr. Cheng Jianming BRBLE 1/6 -
Ms. Cai Tianchen EXRIL 5/6 22
Mr. Wang Wei TEEE 5/6 22

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing, maintaining and evaluating
effective risk management and internal control systems. The board of
Supervisors is responsible for supervising the Board on the establishment
and implementation of risk management and internal control systems.
The management is responsible for coordinating and monitoring the
risk management and internal control progress. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in leading and coordinating matters regarding internal
control, overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Department of the Company examines
key issues in relation to accounting practices and all material controls and
provides its findings to the Audit Committee.

The objectives of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and
improve operational efficiency, so as to achieve strategic development.

The Company's risk management and internal control systems include different
functions and areas, namely organizational structure, strategic development,
human resources, asset management, sales and purchase, finance and
accounting, information technology, internal audit, contract management and
administration.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key
business processes. The control activities are mainly carried out through the
following:

1. Implement segregation of duties when establishing defined business
processes and work responsibilities;

2. Based on the actual needs of business processes of each business
unit, define approval and authorisation limits, approval process and
responsibilities;
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3. Establish accounting procedures by strictly following accounting

standards and framework, enhance the quality and level of accounting
work and improve accounting work procedures; and

Set up and evaluate regularly on the procedures regarding the use and
management of assets and safeguard the Company’s assets by defining
clear business processes and work responsibilities.

The Company's self-evaluation on internal control systems has the following

features and processes:

Communicate with middle and senior management to collect risk
information, conduct analysis and identify high risk areas that the
Company may face for establishing and implementing internal control
systems and defining the scope and key areas;

Identify key risk information, define clear risk management
responsibilities and adopt the requirements of risk management and
internal control, based on the conditions of internal control systems of
all business processes of the Company;

Identify design defects by verifying and evaluating the implementation
and efficiency of internal control systems through walk-through testing;

Discover defects during the implementation of internal control systems
by evaluating key control activities samples which are extracted based
on the frequency of occurrence; and

Identify material weakness of internal control systems from business
process perspectives and improve according to the findings and report
of the Audit Department of the Company. Implement and test on the
improved internal control systems and verify its effectiveness.

During the self-evaluation process, the Company has adopted methods such
as interviews, walk-through testing and sampling to broadly collect evidence
in relation to the effectiveness of internal control design and implementation,
accurately analysing and identifying the defects of the internal control systems.

Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that the control
policies are properly complied with.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December

2024.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal audit
findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial and non-financial controls for the year ended 31 December 2024,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate and no material
defects were found.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has in place a whistleblowing policy for employees of the
Company and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matters related to the Company.

The Company also has in place an anti-corruption policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has an internal
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company
to report any suspected corruption and bribery. Employees can also make
anonymous reports to the internal audit function, which is responsible for
investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate measures. The
Company continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery activities to
cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively organizes anti-corruption training
and inspections to ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

The Company has developed disclosure policies, such as Procedures for
Information Disclosure Management, Procedures for Internal Reporting of
Material Information and Procedures on Registration of Insiders, which provide
a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees of the Company in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 157 to 163 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2024
is set out below:

AR 7% | A

Service Category

EERMBRINVBE

BEENBRFERBAQFEHZE2024F12 A 31
A FEMERROBE -

6 3 7S FE T B AT 5 B 205 R i
HARTBFBERENEEEAEROE
SR -

ARBEVBILZEENE BREHR M ERKRA S
BEEWRAFNAFRE 1572163 AR B
STAZHENRE A

% B B Fr

MEE2024F 12 A3 HILFEMNEXRE X
EEIRIEME B AR A B INE A A
ZEHMES 0T

Fees Paid/Payable
RMB’000

BN/ ENER
AR T

Annual audit services, Ernst & Young FEEZRY  RXKEERIESET 2,080
Non-audit Services EEZ AR
— Environmental, Social and Governance reporting —RIE g REAWMEHN
Advisory 150
— Tax services — % AR 75 35
2,265

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhi Hui, Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (until 23 August 2024) and Mr. Yau Tsz
Lun(since 23 August 2024) have been appointed as the Company’s joint
company secretaries. Ms. Zhi Hui is experienced in the health food and
nutritional supplements industry and has a thorough understanding of the
operation of the Board and the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, Mr. Yau Tsz Lun of Tricor
Services Limited, an Asia’s leading business expansion specialist specialising
in integrated business, corporate and investor services, has been engaged by
the Company as joint company secretary. His primary contact persons at the
Company are Ms. Zhi Hui, another joint company secretary of the Company
and Mr. Li Bin, the chief financial officer of the Company.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, both Ms. Zhi Hui and Mr. Yau Tsz Lun
have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 48 of the Articles, Shareholders individually or jointly
holding more than 10% of the shares of the Company shall have the right
to request the board of directors to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting and add resolutions to the agenda of the meeting, and shall
put forward such proposals to the board of directors in writing. The board
of directors shall, in accordance with the laws, administrative regulations,
securities regulatory rules of the place where the shares of the Company are
listed and these Articles of Association, give a written reply on whether to
agree or disagree to convene the shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting
within 10 days upon receipt of the request.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 3% of the Company’s
shares may submit ad hoc proposals in writing to the convener ten days prior
to the shareholders’ general meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary
notice of the shareholders’ general meeting within two days after receiving
the proposals and announce the contents of the provisional proposals. For the
publication of the supplementary notice of the shareholders’ general meeting,
if there are special provisions in the securities regulatory rules of the place
where the shares of the Company are listed, such provisions shall be complied
with without violating the Company Law, the Securities Law, the Trial Measures
for Administration and the Guidelines for the Articles of Association of Listed
Companies. If the shareholders’ general meeting is required to be postponed
due to the publication of a supplementary notice of the shareholders’ general
meeting in accordance with the provisions of the securities regulatory rules
of the place where the shares of the Company are listed, the convening of
the shareholders’ general meeting shall be postponed in accordance with the
provisions of the securities regulatory rules of the place where the shares of the
Company are listed.
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Apart from aforesaid matters, the convener shall not amend the proposals set
out in the notice of the shareholders’ general meeting or add new proposals
after issuing the notice of the shareholders’ general meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company at the Company’s registered office in the PRC or the
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address:

4/F, Building 3

3 Qingma Road

Qixia District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 86-25-86819168
Email: zhihui@zs-united.net

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-25-86819188 for any assistance.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular,
through annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the
annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The Company
publishes its announcements, financial information and other relevant
information on its website at www.zs-united.com, as a channel to facilitate
effective communication. The Company has published detailed contact
methods through its website, notices of the general meeting, circulars to the
Shareholders and annual reports for Shareholders to express their views or
make enquiries.

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the Shareholders’
communication policy of the Company. Taking into account the variety of
existing channels for communication and participation, the Company is of the
view that its Shareholders’ communication policy was effective during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The Company amended the Articles on 6 May 2024 for the purposes of, among
others:

to remove references to the Special Regulations of the State Council on
Overseas Offering and Listing of Company Limited by Shares* (B 7
AR BRARIRINFEERD K EH R RIFRE)) and the
Articles of Association of Companies Seeking a Listing Outside the PRC
Prerequisite Clauses* ({EI3R AN E T A R E R LB IEFD);

ii. to align the Articles with the Guidelines for the Articles of Association
of Listed Companies ({1 A & & #2 3§ 31)) issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission on 15 December 2023;

ii.  todelete references to class meetings;

iv.  toamend the business scope of the Company; and

V. to provide that approval of Shareholders is not required for
implementation of the H share full circulation of the Company.

Save for the amendment to the Articles made on 6 May 2024, during the year

ended 31 December 2024, the Company has not made any other changes to
its Articles.

*  for identification purposes only
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Arrangement of Electronic Dissemination of Corporate
Communications

Pursuant to Rule 2.07 of Listing Rules under the expansion of paperless
listing regime and electronic dissemination of corporate communications
that came into effect on 31 December 2023, the Company has adopted
electronic dissemination of corporate communications (the “Corporate
Communications”), which mean any documents issued or to be issued by
the Company including but not limited to (a) the directors’ report, its annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditors’ report and, where applicable,
its summary financial report; (b) the interim report and, where applicable, its
summary interim report; (c) a notice of meeting; (d) a listing document; (e) a
circular and (f) a proxy form.

Both the English and Chinese versions of all future Corporate Communications
will be available electronically on the website of the Company at
www .zs-united.com and the HKExnews website at www.hkexnews.hk in place
of printed copies

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders’, both individual and institutional, views and concerns
are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company will display the main contact methods on its official website.
Currently, communication with Shareholders takes place mainly by email,
telephone, video conference and regular or occasional meetings of different
scope.

The Board believes that the diversified shareholders’ communication channels
provide Shareholders and investors with effective access to information about
the Group, and that Shareholders can contact the Board directly and express
their opinions on their own initiative through such procedures. The Board,
therefore, endorses the effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy.

Dividend Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has adopted a
Dividend Policy on declaration and payment of dividends. The Company
does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions and
factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board during a financial year or period and any final dividend
for a financial year which will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the ninth Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
referred to as the "ESG") annual report of Nanjing Sinolife United Company
Limited (referred to as the “Company” or “Sinolife United” in this report)
(Stock Code: 3332) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”
or "We", “Us” and “"Our”).

This report covers the Group's ESG performance for the financial period from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period").

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "Guide”) as set forth in the Appendix C2
to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange’), which is in compliance with the principles of “materiality”,
“quantitative”, “balance”, and “consistency”.

The contents of this report are determined in accordance with a set of systemic
procedures. Such procedures include identifying and listing important
stakeholders and ESG-related issues, determining the scope of the ESG reports,
collecting relevant materials and data, compiling reports based on information
and verifying data in this report.

Scope and Coverage of the Report

The Scope of this report is consistent with the Group's annual report. The
policies, statements, and data given in this report cover the Group and its
subsidiaries.
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Data Description

Information and cases adopted in this report are mainly sourced from the
statistics report and related documents of the Group. The Group undertakes
that this report does not contain any false record or misleading statements, and
is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.

Confirmation and Approval
The report was approved by the Board on 26 March 2025 after confirmation
with the management.

Contacts

4/F, Building 3,

3 Qingma Road,

Qixia District,

Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
Tel: 86-25-86819188

Fax: 86-25-86819167

Website: http://www.zs-united.com
E-mail: sinolife@zs-united.com
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DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: EXERCISE POWER AND
FULFIL RESPONSIBILITIES IN UNISON

The Group has always regarded compliance as the cornerstone of ESG
governance, and continues to optimise and improve our ESG governance
framework under the core principle of “exercising power and fulfilling
responsibilities in unison”. By deeply integrating sustainable development
concepts into strategic decision-making, as well as capitalizing on a
comprehensive ESG governance framework and efficient day-to-day
management, we ensure robust business growth while actively fulfilling our
social responsibilities, as part of our commitment to creating positive social
impacts, as well as promoting the synergy between corporate development
and social and environmental responsibilities and their advancement. Working
in unison with our stakeholders, we co-create long-term values and provide a
solid foundation for achieving sustainable development goals.

ESG Governance

The Group actively practices the concept of sustainable development by
continuing to improve the ESG governance structure and management
system, while advancing the integration of sustainable development with
strategic development and operational decisions. While ensuring stable
growth in our business performance, we actively fulfil our social responsibilities
to create positive social impacts, and strive to move forward with various
stakeholders towards sustainable development.

Governance Structure

Our ESG governance framework has been established and improved to clarify
the division of responsibilities at all levels, which has in return enhanced ESG
governance capabilities and given effective safeguards for the effective ESG
management. We have established a three-tier ESG governance structure
composed of the Board, the ESG Management Committee, and the ESG Task
Force, with the Board as the highest decision-making authority to implement
the unified management of ESG-related work through the ESG Management
Committee.
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Responsible for assessing and determining the ESG risks of the Group
& B AME R E S B A B EESGR kR
e Reviewing the achievement of ESG goals and ESG performance
BEESG B R TERIE R RESGRT
e Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies, goals and material issues

FEHLESGIARIECE « B RMEA MR

e Responsible for formulating climate change-related response strategies

B BT R AR B )

® Reviewing and approving the ESG report

EPESGIRE

® |mplementing the management of ESG risks, climate-related risks and opportunities, and
internal control

ESG HITESGRR R S IRER SR B IR Py 2R Este
Management ® Directing the work of the ESG Task Force
Committee FEEESGT 1/ NER THE
® Reviewing the ESG related policies
ESGE®E SMESGAIRIEE
é é‘g ® Reviewing the ESG report, and verifying the accuracy of the performance indicators

FHESGHE « HERERIGH BUR M RN

© Implementing ESG-related work and relevant initiatives to address climate change

SEEHITESGIRR TR A MBS RIRE L RREE R

ESG

© Appointing personnel to collate the ESG related data and prepare reports and other work

Task Force T A B A SRS K E RS GRS T
ESG © Assisting the management of the Group in assessing and determining whether the Group's ESG
N risk management and internal control system is proper and effective by submitting regular reports
THe/NE EHREEEREES - HB R R AR MR R RR BB R RS
BB

ESG Governance Structure
ESGERHE
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Board Statement

Overall Responsibility Borne by the Board

The Board assumes overall supervision, guidance and review responsibilities
for the Group's ESG initiatives. The Board takes responsibility for establishing
ESG strategic guidelines, assessing and identifying ESG risks, reviewing ESG
targets and their progress, monitoring the ESG performance, and approving
the annual ESG report. The Board authorizes the ESG Management Committee
to assist in monitoring the implementation of the ESG strategy, the execution
of ESG risk management and internal control, and other work.

Risk Management

To effectively prevent and control various potential risks that may hinder
the sustainable development of the Company, the Board takes the core
responsibility of overseeing the implementation of ESG governance principles
and strategies. The Board participates in the assessment, prioritization, sorting,
and confirmation of ESG materiality issues each year, and regularly reviews
ESG risks to ensure that they are effectively managed. The ESG Management
Committee and ESG Task Force are responsible for assessing and making
recommendations on relevant risks. The Board ultimately determines the
ESG risks and importance based on the industrial trend, our development
and the opinions and feedback from stakeholders, and closely monitors the
implementation of ESG risk management. Through systematic management,
we have comprehensively identified, assessed and managed ESG risks to
provide a solid foundation for sustainable development. During the Reporting
Period, we continued to identify and assess climate-related risks and have
introduced corresponding measures.

Daily Implementation

The ESG Management Committee and the ESG Task Force under the Board
comprehensively coordinate and implement the ESG policies and objectives
of the Group, promote the execution of ESG strategies, and monitor their
effectiveness through a cross-departmental collaborative mechanism. The ESG
Management Committee, through a regular reporting mechanism, submits
special work progress reports to the Board, which cover key issues such as daily
operational management, annual report preparation progress, climate change
risk assessment and responses, etc. The Board makes reference to the results
of regular assessments, and dynamically tracks the progress of achieving ESG
targets, before optimizing strategic paths based on interim outcomes, serving
as directional guidance to the ESG Management Committee and the ESG Task
Force.
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Review of the Progress of Achieving Targets

The Group continues to align with best industrial practices, and conduct
regular review over the progress of the sustainable development work and the
achievement of targets, with a focus on refining the regulatory frameworks
in areas such as environmental protection, employee welfare, and operating
compliance. We are dedicated to building a green and low-carbon operating
model, by driving deep integration of corporate environmental governance
into business development. This is believed to achieve the synergy between
corporate development, and ecological conservation and social values, as well
as their advancement.

Communication with Stakeholders

The opinions and suggestions of our stakeholders are crucial to our business
decisions and development. The Group places great emphasis on our
stakeholders and actively seeks to understand and listen to their expectations
regarding our ESG management strategies and practices, and their insights will
serve as key considerations for us to optimise our management strategies and
practices.

Based on our business nature and operational conditions of the Group, as
well as insights drawn from the experiences and practices of global peers, we
have identified key stakeholders, including government and regulatory bodies,
shareholders and investors, suppliers, media, employees, and consumers
and the public. We actively expand the established channels and forms of
communication with stakeholders to solicit a wide spectrum of external
opinions and suggestions for promoting sustainable development across the
Group's value chain, as part of our commitment to creating long-term value for
all stakeholders.
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Stakeholders Expectations and propositions

Means of communication and responses

Mz EEE A HEREER

Government and regulatory  To manage water resources

authorities To manage energy
BT ELESE s To manage pollution

To use packaging materials

To emit greenhouse gas

To address climate change

To conserve natural resources

To crack down corruption and bribery

To strengthen community and government

communication
KERER
BERE
ERMER
BEMEHE R
BE R EBHER

e mIRE (L
REBRER
TEESHE
gtz -« BUTER

Shareholders and investors  To strengthen governance structure
RREREH To crack down corruption and bribery
To enhance business ethics

ISR ERRE
B)5 M

BEERAR

Suppliers To crack down corruption and bribery
HEn To enhance business ethics

To manage supply chain
B5RE
EREERB
HEEE R

Media To strengthen community and government

e communication

To promote public charity

migitE - BATBE
RERREE

S
W
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BEREELN

To conduct supervision and inspection work
To provide policy recommendations

To Report business negotiations

To participate in government-related summit
forums

BITEERE

RMHEREZ

VA T E

SEBNEESERE

To hold shareholders’ meeting

To issue periodic reports and interim
announcements

To deliver special reports

To conduct on-site research

BRBERAE
BMEMRSMERE QS
RHBEER
TR S

To engage in business negotiations

To engage in on-site investigation and research
To engage in meetings

EsER

HIZ

R E

To publish news release/announcements

To hold meetings

To extend invitations for site visits

B ER A&

BITRE
HARBER

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS- HERERHE

Means of communication and responses

BEREEELN

Stakeholders Expectations and propositions
NEEER HEEER

Employees To provide fair employment practices
BT To protect diversity and inclusion

To ensure employee personal safety
To protect employee rights
To provide employee development and training

opportunities
RHEAFOHTEEE
REZTICRBAMNE
BREIAFGLZE
BTR=ERE
BHETIRREREY

Consumers and the public  To manage product quality

HEBERAR To innovate products

To ensure responsible marketing
To improve customer experiences
To strengthen consumer information security and

privacy

To address customer needs
To strengthen community and government

communications

To promote public charity

EmEEEH
E BT

BEELH
HEEPRR

MR EEE R L2 EEAL

fRRE P ER
mERitE - BTEE
RENREE
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To hold employee representative meetings

To provide democratic communication platform
To provide training and education

To organize employee Activities

To provide complaint and reporting Channels
BIIBIRKRAE

RERFEBERBTA

REFINIEHE

MEETES

RHURFRERRE

To provide a company website

To release company announcements

To address customer feedback

To engage in community outreach activities
To make donations to charity funds

To participate in public welfare activities
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Determination of Material issues

To fully address the challenges that may arise from changing internal and
external factors, we conduct annual identification and assessment of ESG
material issues. During the Reporting Period, based on the results of the
material issues assessment for 2023, and in consideration of our business
development strategy, relevant laws and regulations involving our business,
the latest stock exchange policies, and industry benchmarks, we reviewed and
identified the 2024 ESG issue list, which includes 25 material issues.

We incorporated suggestions from both internal and external stakeholders to
conduct a comprehensive analysis, assessment, and prioritisation of the issues,
thus creating the 2024 ESG materiality matrix. The Board then discussed and
approved the identification results for the year.

The Group is well aware of the impact of material issues on business
development and the economy, society, and the environment, and therefore
has established strategies to manage these issues. These strategies will
continue to enhance management standards, effectively addressing and
mitigating internal and external risks that may affect our operations and
stakeholders.
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ESG Material Issues Matrix of Sinolife United for 2024
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Materiality to Stakeholders

Materiality to Sinolife United
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ARPEBARNDARRQA

Water resources management
IKEIRE TR

Energy management
REREE

Pollutants management
ERYE TR

Use of packaging materials
BERMBER
Greenhouse gas emission
BEREBIN

Climate change

AR

Natural resources

BAER

Supplier management
e e e

Product quality management
EmEEERE

Product innovation

2 A FT

Responsible Marketing
BEEZH

Customer experience

EFER

Consumer information security and privacy

HEEERZERER

ZE O FFR

No.

3%

20

21

22

23

24

25

Customer demand

BEEHEX

Communication with communities and governments
HE - BTES

Public charity

N HE

Employment

ERIER

Diversity and inclusion
Zrlthest

Employees’ safety

BETAGZZ®

Protection of employees’ interests and rights
BETEHRE

Employee development and training
8 T 23R %3

Governance structure

ERRTE

Corruption and bribery

59

Business ethics

EEERRE

Intellectual property protection
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Operating Compliance

The Group is committed to crafting a comprehensive risk management and
internal control system, and continues to enhance its risk prevention and
control capabilities. We vigorously promote a culture of integrity, by integrating
honesty and compliance into daily operations, and strictly requiring ourselves
and our partners to uphold the highest standards of business ethics.

Ethics compliance

The Group has consistently regarded ethics compliance as the cornerstone
of our business development, and therefore commits ourselves to advancing
the extensive integration of compliance concepts into production and
operation. This ensures that the Company defends the bottom line of integrity
and responsibility amidst our rapid development. We abide by various laws
and regulations in the jurisdictions where we operate, including the Law
Against Unfair Competition of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Certain
Opinions of the State Council on Promoting Fair Competition in the Market
and Maintaining the Normal Order of the Market. Our robust compliance
management system has been established to integrate the requirements of
anti-corruption, anti-monopoly, and anti-unfair competition throughout the
entire business process, ensuring that every business activity is in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as well as commercial ethical standards.

The Group explicitly prohibits any form of bribery, corruption, or improper
quid pro quo arrangements under our “zero tolerance” principle. In addition,
we resolutely reject any acts of market monopolization, price manipulation, or
false advertising, actively advocate for industry self-regulation, and work with
our partners to maintain a healthy market order. These efforts aim to promote
the sustainable development of the industry. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not identify any corruption-related litigation.

Clean and Honesty

We consider honest operations as the core of our corporate culture. Therefore,
we have developed internal systems and regulations such as the Employee
Code of Conduct and Code of Business Conduct, whereby clearly defining the
requirements for our employees’ conduct in business dealings with customers,
partners and suppliers, so as to ensure that all business activities take place in
a transparent and fair manner in accordance with laws and regulations, which
will lay a solid foundation for the long-term robust business development.
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We require all employees and partners to subject themselves to the highest
ethical standards and firmly oppose any behaviour in violation of commercial
ethics. Regardless of internal management or external collaboration, we
consistently adhere to the principles of openness, fairness, and justice, and
ensure that all decisions and actions can withstand legal and moral scrutiny.
We promote anti-corruption and integrity construction through the following
measures targeted at different supervised personnel:

BHERMEREINAGEBHURSHNER
BREZXRE T BREGIEMERPEER
MITR - EBmeENMERERIBAE &
PIa REBR AR 2F  REMRE - ER
PRAREBMITE BB F L EZ MBI RS -
HUTRAMEBER  RIFBEBINA NEGHE
BRBERER

Sales personnel

HEAER

We strengthen the supervision of personnel in key positions in key departments to
eliminate irregularities such as receipt of rebates and private deals

BAIMe B EABEBFIEREUASNES  HBKIEMN LTRX5E
BRITA

Suppliers and distributors
HEBREHT

We adhere to the anti-corruption operation principle, providing standardized processes
and additional clauses in contracts that clearly stated the prohibition of corrupt and
bribery practices, to protect the common interests of both parties and promote

sustainable and positive development
BAEE (BEAEH | -+ 154 R R BRI R AR AN A3 - A eSS
IEERHRERERTTR - HEE T HAN G  RERBERTER

The Group has established comprehensive monitoring and whistleblowing
mechanisms to address breaches of business ethics, ensuring timely resolution
of issues. We maintain accessible internal and external reporting channels
to encourage employees and partners to proactively disclose potential risks
and misconduct. In addition, employees may report any significant incident
of corruption directly to the management of the Group, enabling prompt
assignment of dedicated personnel to conduct investigations, evidence
collection and verification on the reported incidents. Upon completion of the
investigation and verification process, the Group takes appropriate actions
in accordance with regulations and guidelines, and the findings are reported
internally for corrective measures, forming a closed-loop management.

We have established a robust whistleblower protection mechanism and
provide anonymous protection throughout the whistleblowing process,
to ensure that the whistleblower information is strictly confidential. If
whistleblowers’ legitimate rights and interests are violated, or if they face
retaliation or unfair treatment, they have the right to request the Group's
management to take appropriate protective measures in accordance with the
whistleblower protection system and relevant regulations.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

AEEHEERBEERTRELT TEN
EEERHHY MREBGH REEE -
BB THERNAIBRERRE BB
IhafEBRHEERBEERBEEZRITR
O B EIERAAEEEREES
BERETEREM  ARRFATIAREZ
BHEAHEREMETIATRIELKE - K
SEHRERETHERER  SHERAR
WRKLBIERRERE  WHERNIMER B
i TEREERIR ©

BMRAETENERARERS  2RYE
BAETERCRE BRBBAELSEE
BIERE -BERBARZEZERZXIRE X
AT RERXTRLET BERABRER
SHEEEREEBARESEMEERE
BREUVE R R E R IE

7
wi
83




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Direct whistleblowing
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Whistleblower Handling Procedures

HBRERRE

We actively cultivate a culture of integrity within the Company, conducting
regular integrity education and training programs. Through regular and
institutionalized educational activities such as anti-corruption and compliance
training for new hires prior to their employment, and periodic anti-corruption
training for directors and employees, we aim to enhance organisation-wide
ethical awareness and foster an ethical and corruption-free workplace. During
the Reporting Period, we conducted the business ethics and anti-corruption
promotion and training for the Board and employees.
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PRODUCT STRENGTH: EMBRACING HEALTH AND
HARMONY

The Group upholds innovation and research, striving for continuous
breakthroughs in product development. At the same time, we implement
stringent standards for product safety and quality control, ensuring excellence
in every stage. Our unwavering commitment aims to provide consumers with
the safest and highest-quality product experience and services, meeting their
expectations.

Quality Assurance

Adhering to the philosophy of “Quality First”, the Group is dedicated to
creating a healthy and safe lifestyle for consumers. We take a consumer-centric
approach to continuous innovation, ensuring that every product meets the
highest quality benchmarks. By establishing a comprehensive quality control
system, we rigorously monitor every stage from raw materials to finished
products, guaranteeing product safety and reliability.

Quality Management System

We strictly comply with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
and its implementing regulations, the Food Safety Risk Control Checklist,
the Regulations on Supervision and Administration of the Implementation
of the Main Responsibility for Food Safety by Enterprises, the Measures for
the Administration of Supervision and Inspection of Food Production and
Operation, the New Zealand Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985, the
New Zealand Animal Products Act 1999, the New Zealand Food Act 2014
and the Good Manufacturing Practice of Medical Products (GMP), as well
as other relevant laws and regulations in the places where we operate. We
have developed internal management systems such as the Food Safety
Management System and the Food Safety Risk Management System for Daily
Control, Weekly Investigation and Monthly Adjustment. During the Reporting
Period, we drafted and revised 26 internal record documents in accordance
with the latest national laws and regulations, effectively ensuring the
standardized management of food safety and quality.
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The Group always regards product quality and safety management as a core
priority. Through systematic institutional development and organizational
structure optimisation, we ensure the transparency and controllability of the
entire production process. We have formulated the Code of Responsibilities
for Food Safety Director and Food Safety Officer, clearly defining the
responsibilities and behavioral norms of personnel at all levels in quality
management, thereby providing institutional safeguards for product quality
and safety management.

We established a scientifically sound internal quality and safety management
structure to ensure efficient communication and resolution of quality issues
across management levels and achieve full-process monitoring from raw
materials to finished products. In addition, we assembled a professional quality
team and formally appointed the responsible person, food safety director, and
food safety officers in accordance with established procedures, ensuring clear
accountability and well-defined responsibilities, with the responsibility for
product quality being assigned to the specific positions and individuals. During
the Reporting Period, we set and achieved our annual goal of zero major food
safety and quality incidents and no regulatory violations in the production and
sales processes.

During the Reporting Period, Living Nature, a subsidiary of the Group,
successfully obtained COSMOS certification (organic or natural cosmetics),
which imposes stringent requirements on GMP (Good Manufacturing
Practice) processes, procedures and document management. Furthermore,
we continued to maintain GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice of Medical
Products) certification, and our GMP quality management system has passed
audits conducted by IONIC based on BDIH/COSMOS standards. Good Health
maintained the GMP certificate, the MPI RMP Certificate (Risk Management
Professional of The Ministry of Industries, New Zealand), NZ National
Programme Level 3 Certification, a HALAL Certification, Transitional Facility
certification and the New Zealand organic certification (Organic).
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Quality Control

The Group always prioritizes product quality and safety, continuously improving
quality and safety management measures to meet evolving market demands
and mitigate potential risks. We continued to strengthen full-chain monitoring
from raw material procurement to production, packaging and transportation,
ensuring compliance with international standards and regulatory requirements
in the place we sell our products. To enhance employees’ understanding of
food safety and quality management, we conducted seven food safety and
quality-related training sessions during the Reporting Period as part of our
annual training plan.

Sinolife United continuously guarantees product quality through whole-
process and multi-dimensional measures. In 2024, Sinolife United engaged
third-party testing agencies to conduct 16 batches of type inspections
throughout the year, all of which met compliance standards, ensuring product
quality aligns with standard requirements.
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Implementing full-process quality monitoring for the
first batch of new products by establishing a “Three
Inspections and Two Reviews" mechanism, including
conducting stringent type testing and concurrently
verifying the product arrival inspection reports and
factory quality certification documents to ensure that
the quality of its products meets national standards and

the Company’s internal control metrics.

HmEttEREEDAEESET i}
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Extending product quality and safety control to supplier
management and back-end supervision, including

enforcing strict access audits for potential suppliers and

conducting comprehensive inspections upon product
arrival from suppliers, with a particular focus on verifying
factory inspection reports.
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Sinolife United’s Product Quality Management Measures
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Good Health continuously enhances its comprehensive quality control system
that covers the entire production process by implementing stricter process

controls over product production and setting up inspection procedures
during manufacturing and packaging to ensure that products meet high-
quality standards, providing consumers with safe and reliable health products.
In addition, Good Health requires all suppliers to strictly adhere to GMP
requirements for new product development and conduct comprehensive and
meticulous Raw Material Assessments (RMA) in collaboration with the quality

team, and carry out rigorous sample testing and trial production.

Warehouse verification ’ Process Inspection ’ Factory Quality Inspection
NERZER BAEA HBE %

Rigorous specification
testing is conducted on raw
materials and products,
including internal testing
and testing performed by
qualified external
laboratories commissioned
for the purpose

HRM BRI TR
RERBAR - BFEA
ARRAIAFZFEARINER
ER=HETHAR

Sampling inspections are
carried out on products
during the production
process to monitor
production stability
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Comprehensive quality
inspections are conducted
on the final products, with
results independently
reviewed by the quality
assurance department, which
will also conduct audits of all
monitoring documentation
and outcomes from
production operations
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FREVES RIS ANAE R

Good Health Full-process Quality Control System

FREZREREEEZEER

To meet the compliance requirements of the Pharmacovigilance Inspection
Program of the Therapeutic Goods Administration of Australia (TGA), Cobayer

has taken the following measures:

Uploaded contact details of
the relevant product owners to
the TGA website
ETGAMRYS L3 in 7 HHBIE &
BEANBELSX

88

Ensured that all employees
completed the training course
for Pharmacovigilance
Inspection Program
REMEETTRENEN
T EIFIEFIRE

A BB AT 0a B E mE B (TGA) Y &
MAtBMBEERNARER  RIFBAENT
AT -

Updated standard
operating procedures and
» product inspection forms
according to TGA requirements
RIETCANEREHERE
BRESENERRER
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Living Nature has established a full-process quality control system from raw
material receipt to product delivery, with rigorous inspection procedures
implemented throughout the product production process to ensure
compliance with high standards. To prevent the occurrence of coding
errors or unrecognizable expiration dates, Living Nature implements a dual-
inspection mechanism, requiring at least two quality inspectors to conduct
a comprehensive review of product quality, safety and coding information
before signing off for the next production stage. In 2024, to address the issue
of mould formation resulting from bulk products being exposed outside the
sterile factory environment due to delays in filling at contract packers, Living
Nature reviewed and revised product formulations, adopting a more robust
preservative system and implementing stricter control measures. These steps
ensure that bulk products are only dispatched to external sites immediately
before the scheduled filling process.

To maintain the effective operation of its quality management system, Living
Nature conducts systematic internal reviews of quality control processes and
batch production records annually on a regular basis. Furthermore, Living
Nature has established a long-term cooperation with third-party testing
institutions with professional qualifications to conduct comprehensive quality
testing on its products each year, ensuring compliance with high standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any consumer
complaints due to product quality and safety issues.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR
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Product Recall

In compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Food Product Recall Management Rules, and other laws and regulations in the
place where the Group operates, the Group formulates a collection of internal
policy documents, including the User Complaints and Adverse Reactions
Management Procedure, the Products Recall Management Procedure and the
Incoming Food Inspection Procedures, to ensure a standardized response to
potential product quality and safety incidents.

We always place customer and consumer interests at the core of our
operations, and have developed and continuously improved recall
mechanisms tailored to various market needs. To ensure the efficiency and
operability of recall procedures, we require annual product recall drills at all
operational sites on a regular basis to validate process feasibility and response
speed. This enables rapid and accurate recall actions in the event of a relevant
incident, thereby guaranteeing consumer safety and trust.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any proactive or
passive product recalls due to product quality issues.

Innovation Research

The Group has consistently prioritized product innovation and intellectual
property protection as the core driving force for corporate development.
We remain committed to enhancing product competitiveness through
technological innovation while establishing a robust intellectual property
protection system to ensure the effective safeguarding of our innovation
achievements. In strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations, we
formulate our internal management policies and continuously optimizing
our management mechanisms, sparing no effort to deliver superior and safer
product experiences to consumers.
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Product Research and Development

The Group has consistently regarded research and development innovation
as the core engine driving its corporate growth, adopting a market-driven
approach to gain in-depth insights into consumer needs and industry trends.
Through technological advancements and product upgrades, we continuously
launch high-quality and high-value-added products. We have standardized
the process of approval, research, project approval and review of product
research and development through internal systems in strict compliance with
regulations and rules relating to product research and development in the
place where we operate, such as the Regulations of the People’s Republic
of China on the Registration and Administration of Overseas Manufacturers
of Imported Food (General Administration of Customs Order No. 248), the
Measures of the People’s Republic of China for the Administration of Import
and Export Food Safety, the Measures on the Administration of Cosmetic
Labelling (National Medical Products Administration Order No. 77), the
Measures for the Administration of the Registration and Recordation of
Cosmetics (State Administration for Market Regulation Order No. 35), the
Regulations on the Administration of Supplementary Inspection Methods
for Cosmetics, the Specification for the Evaluation of the Claimed Efficacy of
Cosmetics, the Regulations for the Administration of Cosmetics Registration
and Filing Data and the Technical Guidelines for the Safety Assessment of
Cosmetics. During the Reporting Period, we implemented 59 technology
innovation projects.

The Group integrates product innovation with the growing demand for
nutritional well-being among consumers. In 2024, the Group adhered to
the European Clean Label management concept in new product design,
emphasizing the reduction or elimination of additives in product formulations.
In terms of raw material selection, we prioritized naturally sourced A2 milk
protein and microbial fermentation-derived ingredients, providing consumers
with healthy and high-quality products. During the Reporting Period, the
Group launched a total of 26 new products, including 3 New Goodhealth series
product, 22 Good Health series products and 1 Living Nature series product.
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In 2024, Living Nature received a number of honors and awards for its products.

Product

Em
Living Nature Aqua Gel Mask

commended

2024 4F - Living Nature & T 1S % (B 28 22 4878 -

Universal Beauty Awards 2024 Best Purifying Face Mask — Highly

Global Green Beauty Awards 2024 Best Calming Face Mask — Gold
Pure Beauty Awards 2024 Best New Face Mask or Exfoliator — Gold
Free From Skincare Awards 2024 Best Face Care (Rinse off) — Bronze

04 FIRIREBTALE : ZREFLHR — SEHEEB

2024 %%
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Group places paramount emphasis on the protection of intellectual
property rights and patent inventions, and strictly comply with the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations in the places
where we operate. To strengthen intellectual property management, we have
formulated the Intellectual Property Rights Management and Patent Protection
System, which formalizes procedures for patent application, maintenance and
infringement response to ensure the robust safeguarding of our innovation
achievements.

We enhance employees’ awareness and practical capabilities in intellectual
property protection through various initiatives. Sinolife United regularly invites
professional trademark agencies to conduct specialized seminars, providing in-
depth analysis of key provisions of trademark law and typical case studies. In
addition, we organize systematic training for the research and development
team on patent law and relevant policies and regulations, ensuring
comprehensive understanding of the critical aspects of intellectual property
protection. Through training and promotional activities, we effectively enhance
employees’ awareness of intellectual property protection, providing stronger
safeguards for the Company’s innovation achievements. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not identify any incident involving infringements upon
intellectual property rights.

During the Reporting Period, the Group held a total of 265 trademarks,

including 94 under Sinolife United, 104 under Good Health, and 67 under
Living Nature.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group remains committed to a win-win cooperation philosophy, striving
to build an efficient and stable supply chain system. By optimizing resource
allocation and strengthening upstream and downstream collaboration,
we ensure the smooth operation of all supply chain processes. Through
continuous improvement of supply chain management practices, we
contribute to a more environmentally friendly, efficient and sustainable future,
thereby creating long-term value for society.

Supplier Management System

We remain steadfast in our core objective of building a sustainable supply
chain, beginning with stringent oversight at the raw materials procurement
and extending to seamless collaborate with logistics partners, distributors and
retailers to provide consumers with safe and high-quality health products.

We have established a comprehensive supply chain management system
and continuously optimize internal policies such as the Supplier Management
System, to ensure efficient operations across all supply chain segments. We
carefully select suppliers who demonstrate strong cooperation willingness,
superior service capabilities, and high product quality standards, fostering
synergistic value chain development and mutual benefits. As regards to
overseas suppliers, we adopt a collaborative management model at home and
abroad, and conduct a comprehensive review in strict compliance with GMP
standards to ensure production and operation stability, regulatory compliance,
and a resilient foundation for the sustainable evolution of the supply chain.
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As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 242 suppliers
among which, there were 153 overseas suppliers and 89 Chinese suppliers.

94

Supplier
access

HEEEA

Cooperative
process
evaluation

BFBRERME

Revie\_lv
evaluation

FHE

Qs

Based on the GMP system, we review the qualifications of supplier, and propose the
relevant safety requirements. All suppliers are subject to assessment by the competent
department before being admitted into supplier list.
ERGMPREFREHERMAREELER  IREBER2EX - AFEMPIEAEH
JERETTAHA R /E AR B EE o

We maintain multi-level and in-depth communication with suppliers through various
measures such as emails, phone calls, WeChat, and face-to-face meetings in the process
of performance, to timely track and understand relevant dynamics and changes of

suppliers.
BAERES - FHEEHEEREZEARZ  RANBE  RAHM - T5FE M
& BAFZREWT - KERENEREEENEEBREME -

Our performance assessment focuses on various dimensions, including food, service
quality, food brand awareness, punctuality of delivery, pricing, and aftersales services. For
suppliers with issues identified during the review, we provide them with solutions, o er
corresponding technical support, and help them improve their management quality.
HERME REEE  Romh  HERRE B  RERESZELEREZ
ZAHMELE - St EEEHRRMBOHHER - RAIRERLARL R - RHAAESN
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Supplier Management System
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Sustainable Supply Chain

The Group is committed to building a green and responsible supply
chain, actively driving suppliers to enhance their environmental and safety
management performance while ensuring that ESG risks remain manageable.
We have integrated the concept of sustainable development into our supply
chain management system. We incorporate ESG-related factors into the scope
of supplier access and evaluation by utilizing document reviews, on-site audits,
background checks and questionnaires to exclude suppliers with material ESG
risks and assess the compliance and effectiveness of their ESG management
systems. We focus on examining suppliers’ performance in environmental
protection, pollution prevention and control, occupational health and safety,
anti-corruption, and business ethics, identifying potential risks of suppliers
in areas such as environment, compliance and information security. For
suppliers with significant negative ESG incidents identified during performance

CEES 3%
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evaluations and inspection reviews, we will take reasonable actions and follow
up on the rectification progress.

We assess whether suppliers adopt eco-friendly production processes and equipment and their
emergency response capabilities for environmental incidents.

HEAEHEREERARREETENRE - URHRRRBEHNESRIEELENS -

We require new suppliers to provide explanatory notes on waste treatment systems, production
sites, wastewater discharge treatment and other relevant documents.

BRESFHERIRHEYRIE RS - £ERS  JS/KIURIE SRR -

Environment
RIE

We evaluate suppliers’ efforts to promote sustainable practices within the supply chain, such as
encouraging upstream raw material suppliers to use environmentally friendly materials.

EEHEREHREET D HBEEROEE - WREEH L RHERARRMHS -

Supply Chain
ftrEsE

Suppliers must have a comprehensive quality management system, such as 1SO9001 certification,
and provide details on quality management system, including employee qualifications, audit

frequency, and raw material utilization and control.

HERNFAETENEETER R - f1IS09001REFE - EREIFMHE S EIRERMMAES
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We conduct regular assessments of product pass rates and defect rates.

EETAERNARE  RAEE -

Quality
HE

We require suppliers to provide records on their organizational structure, employee training,

employee health and safety policies, etc.
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Supplier ESG Considerations
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The Group continuously strengthens its supply chain structure, optimized its
inventory management, and deepened supply chain cooperation, proactively
identifying and mitigating supply chain disruption risks to ensure a stable
supply of raw materials and enhance overall supply chain resilience.

New Product Supply Chain

HEmLESE

® Early Procurement Planning: Based
on market research and product
development progress, we
forecast the types, quantities, and
delivery schedules of raw materials
required for new products,
engaging with suppliers in
advance.
RAHIEREE : BETIS
AMMERMEEE - BB
ERfMERMENER #HE
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® Emergency Procurement
Mechanism: In response to the risk
of potential raw material supply
disruptions, we establish
alternative procurement channels
and maintain relationships with
multiple backup suppliers for rapid
sourcing adjustments when

needed.
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Existing Product Supply Chain
EREmitERE

© Multi-Supplier Mechanism: For

existing products, we engage at
least two suppliers per material to
mitigate the risk of supply chain
disruptions due to reliance on a
single source. At the same time,
suppliers undergo regular
evaluations and assessments, and
order allocations are adjusted
based on performance, encourag-
ing suppliers to improve their
service quality.
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Optimized Inventory Manage-
ment: We monitor inventory levels
in real-time and develop
reasonable restocking plans based
on shipment data.
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Supply Chain for Products
with Single-Sourced

Raw Materials

FHE—EmitEaE

For seasonal raw materials, we
negotiate with suppliers in
advance to secure procurement
orders during harvest seasons or
peak supply periods, ensuring a
stable supply.
HRFEERMAL - RATEEE
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By analyzing historical data and
fluctuations in market demand, we
set appropriate safety inventory
levels, increasing inventory during
peak supply seasons to hedge
against potential supply shortages.
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Communication with Suppliers

The Group maintains a proactive approach in communicating with our
suppliers to ensure that potential supplier concerns are promptly addressed.
We regularly engage in communications and discussions with our suppliers

through both online and offline channels.

Online

®E

|

[] Emails: Used for daily order communication, requirement
transmission, document transfer, etc,;
BFEME: ARABHRIEER  FREE - XM
{;ﬁrﬁmﬁ- ;

[[] Other communication tools: Various instant messaging
applications are utilized for real-time information exchange,
issue feedback, video conferencing and remote audits,
significantly enhancing communication efficiency.
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Offline
BT
O

[] On-site inspections: The relevant project managers
conduct regular or ad hoc visits to key suppliers to gain in-

depth insights into production conditions, quality control
systems, etc,
O BEMER:
HERETEER
EERHBRE
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[] Dedicated communication meetings: For specific
collaboration projects or issues, suppliers are invited to the
Company for in-depth face-to-face communication and
discussions.
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Supplier communication channels

HERBERRE

We periodically invite key raw material suppliers for on-site visits or engage
in online video conferences to stay informed about the latest developments
and application prospects of new raw materials. This allows us to assess their
potential in enhancing the performance of existing products and to explore
challenges related to technical compatibility, cost control and supply chain
stability during the introduction process.
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At the same time, we leverage our suppliers’ industry insights to identify ~ [E#F » B PIEBHEFMNTERY  ART
innovation trends in new materials across various sectors, uncover application R4 FT AL RN AIFT B - SR E N A %
opportunities aligned with our business, and explore ways to integrate these 7§32 4& BB A 1A R A #8 15 L A A R
cutting-edge materials into our product development plans, so as to lay a BB AE R E - AFEH TS - #HH
foundation for expanding into new markets and launching differentiated ~— Z= 2L E 28 T E i o

products.

® Providing suppliers with training on supply chain optimization, inventory management, logistics

Supply Chain and customs clearance to enhance supply chain efficiency, reduce costs, and improve supply

Management

Training timeliness and accuracy.

HEaEEEE N SEERREERERNEL  BEFERE WRBESIEHNE  ReHEREEREX
 FRARRR - RS IR MBS (AN R o

Laws, regula-
tions and Interpreting industry-related laws, regulations and policy requirements for suppliers to ensure

Compliance ] " : ) : o )
[ o e compliance in their production and operations, mitigating legal risks.

Sharing S ERRERTRARMNEARERTERER  BRHEHELELEBIETETH
/iﬁéig%‘gﬁ RRE - BRAEER °

Promotion of
Environmental Communicating Sinolife United's environmental and sustainability requirements and goals to

Prsotect.ionba:nd suppliers, encouraging suppliers to adopt eco-friendly materials, and promoting the green
Det:rsetlaolgranere\t development across the supply chain.
AEREREETABSERRNAFEZRAENERNE R - WEEERERRRME

RIRETIGE y

Sinolife United’s Supplier Engagement Activities
hAEBA HERRES

Supplier Engagement Case Study

HIER R R R A

Based on product needs and development strategies, Sinolife United collaborated with suppliers to explore raw material selection
and compatibility, and assisted suppliers in identifying innovative materials better suited to product requirements, so as to enhance
product performance and quality.

PEBMEEESEMT KNEREE SRERARRSRHABELRMCREME BHHESEREFESERERD
MERE  ReEMNMRENES -

Through optimized raw material selection, Sinolife United significantly reduced the production cost of its Garcinia Capsules product
while also shortening the delivery cycle. Meanwhile, the Company has established a closer partnership with its suppliers, improving
supplier satisfaction and enhancing the stability and reliability of the supply chain.

hAESRBEBCRER  FAQABERIERKAKNERE bR TRXEREE - AR ARG HEEER 2
BRI TEMRTHAERE RS THEBOREE B THEENREEMATSEMT -

/Y
o\F
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Service System

The Group remains c steadfast in its commitment to continuously enhancing
consumer experience and satisfaction through high-quality products and
professional services. We uphold responsible marketing practices, safeguard
consumer privacy, and establish a comprehensive consumer service system to
provide efficient and considerate support for consumers.

Service Channel

The Group always believes that diverse consumer range of consumer choices
is key to meeting the needs of different consumer groups. We continuously
expand our sales channels to ensure that consumers can easily access high-
quality products and efficient services anytime, anywhere.

We have consistently optimized both online and offline service processes to
deliver seamless and engaging shopping experiences to consumers. During the
Reporting Period, our primary promotional platforms included comprehensive
e-commerce websites and media platforms, while our e-commerce sales
channels covered JD.com, Tmall, Alibaba Health, and Douyin Live Streaming,
among others, providing services to different users through multiple channels.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

AR % 88 &
AEBHREBNNBBSEENERNEE
MRS - JEREEENEREREE -
BHMBREETEH REHEERL &
BEENHEERBRER RHEERHS
R BEL B SRS

R RE

AEBERERR  ZHRIENBEEERZINE
TRBPHRMERE RATHEREYR
B HERBEBEERABSENERESEE
B M= AR

BPBERLE LR TRBRE BIRR
HEERHENIES WL BEYER - ]|
SHA - BATESE TV RERAER
REYeEF EFBEVREEERREE
AEEE MERRE BPHIEREST LZER
BATRBA P EHERS -

/
wi
99




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - ERERRE

During the Reporting Period, both Good Health and Living Nature continued — FR& H3 /N » 45§ B - Living Nature B AR %
to conduct diversified promotional campaigns, expanding the reach of our IRLHIEEEFE  FERBBR LB TZE
products to consumers through multiple online and offline channels to meet EEEEEE - MEHEEZTLEK -
their diverse demands. In addition, to ensure that our employees possess ' fEEBHEBRES  AHEES THE®
sufficient knowledge about our products, we provided product series training B HH T - B AL S0 - RHE TR
for dietitians and on-site staff in the course of the campaigns. HTERRYEI -

® |ts activities included online videos, YouTube, Social meta displays, paid search, and SEO content
optimization to enhance Google search visibility and increase product exposure

Campaign JEB)BIETERIRIE - YouTube * Social metaBT * MBI RMSEONDTRBIL - #E—FRAR
L& S (NPD) TERILN  RERERFSEZRE
HWEEE — RELH ® Ferrofix samples were distributed to pregnant women as part of the Bountiful gift pack
1 Ferrofixtikmu {E /Bountifultg £ 8 — &6 5 T8 M 2 IR 1T A

Good Health —
Womens NPD

o ® Targeted promotions through online videos, precision search and social media advertising
rale s fEng St = =

Campaign MAY BBEMIRSA  BER RN XRBES  BRERTRHEE

Viralexf &8 ¢ Lipo Pro C samples were included in the Bountiful bag for female consumers

#Lipo Pro CEkma{E ABountifult® & B —&B 2 T [ 2 1T

Stress Sleep Mood
SEP — Launch
Rapid Calm berry
B - EIE - 154
BEEE —
Rapid Calm berry
e

Gut Healthy SEP —
Launch Probiotic
Advanced

BERETE —
it i Probiotic
Advanced#

100

Qs

By producing promotional short videos and leveraged search engines, social media, and SEO
articles, it effectively conveyed information to its target audience, raising public awareness of
stress, sleep and emotion management, as well as new products

SUES FRAIATRBERS|IE  HXERMSIONEREEFRELERZR  UREEA
WU -~ R - BEEENASTERNET

By producing promotional short videos and leveraged search engines, social media, and SEO
articles, it effectively conveyed information to its target audience, raising public awareness of gut
health and new products

SUES FRERATRBIERS|E HREBMSIOXEREEERGBEEZR - URSQ
RE B R AR E M ET

Good Health's Promotional Campaigns

HRFEEEEY
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® In 2024, Living Nature focused primarily on social media marketing, emphasising organic content,
video content, and quality imagery.

I)__ileing NaturefE2024F EERER M REB L - BHETARAT RENTNSEER

Social Media

Marketing
3t 33 i pe A e In addition, Living Nature carried out targeted campaigns to enhance user engagement and brand
awareness.

AN - Living NatureFf& T B $TEHIERES) - MRFTRP2EEMMmIEMAE -

Email marketing campaigns delivered strong results in driving customer engagement in 2024,

Email Marketing particularly during product launches and monthly promotions, with strong open and click-through

BT EE fates.
- - QUFEFHIERERDEC LRSI ERRER « LHLRAER B AL RSE -

TRENSERHERRY -

In the June/July 2024 issue of GOOD Magazine (a New Zealand natural lifestyle and beauty maga-
zine), Living Nature promoted a subscription campaign for Aqua Gel Mask, featuring print advertise-
ments as well as digital promotions across the magazine's website and partnered social channels.

Ailvertising Living Nature?£202456 A 7 A FI#IGOOD Magazine (FFaH 8 %E/EETEE%”% 2
MRS HEEAqua Gel MaskeV T BEE) - BIERE ENRIMRAE A KA - S FERIERE LT
BriEE -

Magazine

Living Nature’s Key Promotional Achievements

Living Nature F ZE &K R

Communication with Customers EFER

In strict compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the ~ ANEBEIRBE(PEARLMEYE S ERER
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Tort Law of the People’s —REENHREAR KBRS (TR UL
Republic of China, the New Zealand Fair Trading Act 1986 and other laws and ~ FARI (A F R ZIAE » 1986) LR @AM - I
regulations, the Group continues to optimize the customer complaint handling ~ NETME(L B E IR FERIERIE - MREESTR
process to ensure that we can quickly and efficiently respond to and resolve = 28U 22 fE IV R R H B E M) TSR EHE RE - iﬁ
consumer needs and concerns. During the Reporting Period, we continued & HiA - B PITETHHERFRE  TE=EX
to expand complaint channels, strengthen post-sales policy standards, and ~ BRIZBBRIZZE B RFEERE  BRE
optimize customer complaint handling process to ensure that consumers can B EZ M BB LB IR EEIWREME - &
conveniently submit feedback through multiple channels and receive prompt ~ {SE 3 « BEMFRFZE -

and professional solutions.

AREABARGEARAT —F-WEER | 101
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Consumer After-Sales

Complaint Channels Service Standards

HEERGFRE ERERRE

Customer Complaint
Handling Process

EREERRE

© Hotline feedback © Timeliness: Immediate response © Inresponse to customer
AR R and resolution within 24 hours. complaints, we will first engage
Bk EBEEEE - 24/ R with consumers to understanding
® Submission via platform system R - TSIV,

SHEPKE - HfIg SRR
EER

© Solution: Solutions are determined
based on customer complaint

type and risk level. o Standard Complaints: Direct

FR: BERFER  EZEERK handling— Satisfaction—

BRI BETRNEEREAR - Follow-up— Filing
AER-REFRSETEZRE—
MBI —EE

® Escalated Complaints: Report to
supervisor — Satisfaction —
Follow-up — Filing
ERABREFU LB ERFER
B—mE—Ea—5E

Furthermore, the Group has implemented high-standard management for It REBEHEEFE R ERIMEE R
both pre-sales and after-sales services on e-commerce platforms. For pre-sales, S#ETT T SIZEEIE - ERIRMTEL R
we not only address customers' product inquiries but also provide personalized REAREERHRME - EABEFRDE %
recommendations, enhancing service quality and brand reputation. For after- 25 * ZEH R 018+ EE RS MEE
sales, we promptly handle customer concerns after receiving the products, EBEREWRIEREBELENESZE®E  B1F
including logistics follow-ups, product usage guidance, and feedback on  ¥IRfER - ERER L RBENRES -
product consumption. For the after-sales consulting of customers form offline ¥R A HEBE SN EEHH > HAIRE
distributors, we have set up a dedicated consultation hotline to resolve  FAAZENG  BERHEREE @ FFEARE -
their concerns. In addition, we consolidate and analyze customer inquiries, REHSTHAEA @ BlLER LR -
forwarding insights to market leaders to optimize both products and services.

-

NS
Qi
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By leveraging data analysis and customer feedback, we continuously refine
service details, enhance customer satisfaction, and provide a superior and
more attentive after-sales experience. During the Reporting Period, we focused
on improving service quality and efficiency. As a result, our Tmall stores’ service
experience scores were >4.86, self-operated stores on JD.com achieved > 100,
and JD.com pop stores maintained >4.80, all meeting industry excellence

BIBREESMETFRE  HESER
B RARFPREE  BEEBEERHERE
MEZ  BILMERER - REBHA - BRM
BARAEGREEEERR  KHFES
EHREERD>4860 REBALEEHR
TEREE D >100% « 5 pop & Ik & ik 75 52 &

benchmarks. D>480%  HERITEEBEKYF o
Customer Satisfaction Specialized Functional Division: Pre-sales and after-sales customer service teams are
Enhancement Measures separated to ensure that each team focuses on its specific area, enabling more efficient and
RAEFREESEE precise problem resolution, thereby improving service quality.

EXS T  $EMRERTREGOH  BESAFINFERE  EtMES
M EEMBRABEEEE  RITRIEEE -

1. Personalized Service: For customers purchasing multiple products, we provide

tailored usage guidelines through one-on-one communication, helping them
correctly use our products and enhancing their experience.

BEHLRE  SHHBESRERNBY  REZBORMBEG/NEL B
B—H—EE EYERXILEEMAER EREMER -

2. Proactive Engagement: At the end of customer service interactions, we actively
invite customers to provide feedback or ask further questions while encouraging
positive reviews, fostering better engagement and satisfaction.

ITHEE  ATRUBERE  THEFETRHERERESR - FESSE
BEGETHY E-TRATSHIREREE -

3. Performance Appraisal: Customer satisfaction rates are incorporated into the
appraisal criteria for the customer service team, motivating employees to prioritize

customer experience and continuously optimize service quality.

BYER  BEPRETMATREZNEZIER  SBE TENERE

ZRR  HEBLRBKF -

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR
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Meanwhile, the Group continuously refines customer service processes and R » NEEFE BT R RE L H R
actively implements product improvements in response to the issues identified 75 3B 12 m1 2538 A S REFE AR 57 R £ Sh il Tk -
during the service process, with a view to providing consumers with better B AN A EEEZIREFEENRGERHREE
service experience and products that better meet their needs. We reqularly BiA B KWER - RPIEBEHIMELX

analyze customer feedback, identify issues, and conduct targeted training #8 - R&EH BT AE THE ZEIFI -
sessions for employees to continuously enhance our service professionalism 2 F RIEZ ZE(LKFHERZEF S ©
and product competitiveness.

Customer Issue Analysis

and Improvement

&FFBED T RE

© A weekly customer analysis meeting is held,
attended by the Operations Director, Customer
Service Manager, Customer Service Supervisor and
Product Operations Manager.
BREAREFONEG 28 NEREELR
B XPRELE  BEREERERESL
3 o

© The meeting focuses on common customer issues,
reasons for order abandonment and after-sales
concerns. Customer inquiries, both pre-sales and
post-sales, are documented verbatim and
categorized via digital tracking sheets for
root-cause analysis.
EHRNFTPEARE R TERARERRA
8 - ACERE R B R R AR B AR RIGE
TR EER P DT o

© A dedicated task force is established to collect and
consolidate customer feedback on product-related
issues monthly. These insights are relayed to the
supply chain and reported to Good Health
headquarters, driving targeted product
enhancements and optimization.
RUBRENE BARERERENE®DRH
R BEAEHEEY REE4Good Health#EE »
HEEE mETEIE AR B -

Employee Training and

Competency Development

B TEIIEEDRA

® Monthly Product Training: Ensure the customer
service team is fully knowledgeable about the
brand’s products, becoming experts on the
product range.
FRERB : REFRERR TS BREREE
o RBEMER °

® Monthly Customer Service Reception Training:
Cover platform-specific communication
guidelines, customer engagement techniques, and
process workflows to enhance service consistency.
BARRESEN  MESTAMEAE
FFRIGRIRARIIE - R’ BRIGIZE( KT -

® Weekly Customer Service Reception Analysis:
Provide personalized guidance to address
communication challenges, helping employees
improve their service capabilities.
BRARRESON : HHEEBMBEE - REE
MisE - BB TRARBEES ©

® Industry Knowledge Alignment Training: Provide
regular updates on industry dynamics and related
knowledge to help employees better serve
customers.
TEERRPEI  ERAFTEDEERE
HF o BPHE I B HHRBER

® Professional After-Sales Training: Strengthen
product expertise and problem-solving skills for
after-sales customer service staff, ensuring
customer issues are resolved satisfactorily and
improving repurchase rates.
ERBEEIE  BRICERTRNEREEMNE
HEBERERD  BRETHESIRE®
R (R B RRT o
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Responsible Marketing

The Group upholds the concept of responsible marketing and pays great
attention to the compliance in the product production and sales process.
We strictly comply with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations,
including the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Advertising Management Regulations, the Interim Provisions of the People’s
Republic of China on Publishing Food Advertisements, the Interim Provisions of
the People’s Republic of China on Censorship of Healthy Food Advertisements,
implementing stringent supervision at every stage of our marketing processes.

We firmly prohibit any false or misleading information in advertisements,
ensuring that the product promotional materials are truthful and accurate,
thereby fostering a healthy and responsible consumer environment. On
e-commerce live streaming platforms, we strictly adhere to the platform’s
regulations and review systems for managing merchant live streaming
content and advertising. We also actively participate in the study and training
of platform rules to ensure that every live-streaming event complies with
compliance requirements, providing consumers with a transparent and
trustworthy shopping experience.

Responsible Marketing
Measures

BEAEHEER

BEEEH

AEERBARTZHNED SEERE
mEEREERENSRIE - LABRRERE
(FEARAMBESZ(ESEREINR
mEEEHRETRERBRERESEEYE
TRE)SHBERER  BEHEHNEE

o Ao

REEHREZEE -

BMBEAMBESHHREMERKRE M
ER BREMEEANTEET B Uit
RERE BETHHERE GCEHER
FeLb BRABERETFENRBEEZR
SHPAXERARTNESEENERE Y&
B2EFARAUNNEE EFY - BERE—5
ERHNAARER  REBERMER
AENEYER -

Violation Tracking and Training: Compile instances of violations in promotional images
and live streams into documents, and regularly organize training sessions to ensure the
team is well-versed in the rules, preventing recurrence of similar issues.

ERTBREUEI : KEREBMEE T AE R EIENCUE - I E BARE
ERBBRAERA  HEREHEFRERL -

ARPEBARNDARRQA

1. Participation in Platform Training: The operation and promotion teams actively

ZE O FFR

participate in marketing compliance training organized by the platform from time to
time, staying up-to-date with the latest policies and regulations.

SHEHYAEI  BEEHERUEBR2ETSTERNRRNZHA AT
KB BRGNS -

Script and Planning Review: Live stream scripts and marketing plans are uniformly
organized and output as standardised documents by the internal operation and
planning team, ensuring that baseline compliance risks are mitigated when engaging
with influencers, enhancing the compliance and professionalism of the promotional
content.

WARKEFZ BEENAREHE T EAAEL RS ER —BEL&H T
BEEXE BREZAHEFRBERERAR RASTEATNER
MEEERM -
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group has always recognized consumer privacy protection and data
security as a cornerstone of safeguarding consumer rights and interests. We
strictly adhere to relevant laws and regulations such as the Cybersecurity Law
of the People’s Republic of China and rigorously implement privacy protection
measures in accordance with our internally developed Measures for Customer
Privacy Protection. Prior to collecting any information, we inform consumers in
advance to ensure they are completely informed. For any collected information,
we implement stringent protection measures to ensure data security.

FERZERBALRE

AEBERRGHEERLRELZBMEBEL 2B
REEHERGNROEER - RAKKBER
(hEARKMBEG L 2K FHBAERE
B WERE ARSI E N (R PRALRERZE)
BEREERLRETHF -EEERERN R
MERMESFEESE BREZTOME -
KUK B ERI(E R - RPIRBUER T MR &
Hi  REREIBEL R

106

Conceal customer information to
ensure it cannot be easily accessed
HEPERETERRERE  BREE
TEE 5 HEER

For cross-border stores, products are
shipped from platform-designated
bonded warehouses, with platform'’s
confidentiality mechanism ensuring no
access to consumer information
BRERHTAEERTARE - F
ARERTIRREZEIEEEES

Platform-side

Faik

Strictly control employees’ access to
customer privacy information, and
communicate with consumers mainly
by phone or through the platform when
handling complaints

BAR B ?E\I&E%E}E’B#Mn SR
R RERFHEZEBEFELTE
EUHEEIBR

For cases that require communication
via WeChat, after-sales personnel are
required to engage with customers via
official  corporate  accounts,  with
designated staff conducting irregular
review of chat records to ensure
comprehensive privacy protection
HNFRBMEHENER - A
BREATARTETINR - WL
BEAHWRARHETIESRHE -
BREFPEBLEI 2 ERE

Employee-side
BT

Customer Privacy Protection Measures

EPRALRERE

\r‘l,dr
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ECOLOGICAL COMMITMENT: NURTURING WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT

Upholding the concept of green development, the Group is committed to
protecting natural resources and the ecological environment. We continuously
optimize our environmental management system, explore innovative green
operation models, and strive to build an environmentally friendly enterprise
that promotes the development of a circular economy while actively engaging
in global climate governance.

Environmental Management

The Group actively engages in environmental and ecological governance
and abides by environmental laws, regulations and ordinances of the places
where we operate, including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, the Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid
Waste Pollution to the Environment of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from
Environmental Noise and the New Zealand Environment Act, 1986 and etc.
To ensure environmental compliance across all business operations, we have
developed internal management systems and policy such as the Corporate
Environmental Management System, the Energy Conservation Management
System, the Corporate Solid Waste Management System, the Precautionary
Measures for Hazardous Waste and the Wastewater Management System,
which serve as guidelines for the orderly execution of our environmental
management efforts.

We have established a comprehensive environmental management
system, regularly evaluating its effectiveness and implementing targeted
improvements based on evaluation results to standardize our ecological
and environmental protection management. To ensure the effective
implementation of environmental management practices, we have established
an environmental protection taskforce to comprehensively and systematically
oversee emissions compliance, drive resource conservation, and implement
energy-saving and emission-reduction initiatives.

To maintain the effective operation and continuous improvement of our
environmental management system, the Group adheres to the requirements
of the 1SO 14001 Environmental Management System and conducts regular
internal audits. As of the end of the Reporting Period, Living Nature maintained
its ISOO 14001 Environmental Management System certification and
undergoes annual external audits by COSMOS and IONC Germany.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

AR -HERREHK

REZREERED  ARERIRREEAR
BERMAERRE -RABEBLRFEEIER
o RRFECELEHEN  BEOITERER
HRAR EHEREERR LHEEBRS
EHRBEAE -

RRERE
AEEBEGRARRRERAETF  BRE
STCREARKMBREFRBDE(PEARK
FEI7KIE R Froa R (R 2 AR H A E E 5
WS RRETAEN(PFEARKNBERZE)S
RUaE) HABMCGRITIER - 1986) FEE
PrE s IR B AR BRA A R R B - S EERFR
EREEHNRRA[ME  RAFECRRE
32 ) AR BE B IR 1 =) C[E B BE 2 1 & I I
EX e Ry sEm) (BEXRERSE)F
NEEEHE - HEREEETHENEFRE °

AR EERREEER YN EER
B WENTHER RIS SE
it AREBRPNERRREREEE - B
FERIRIEE I TARIBA HEE - RPINZLRR
RENE 2ERGHRETHRDARERE
HEERRE - SREEIBERE -

RERBERERERBRET I IS ELGHE -
AN EEEISO 14001 BRI E IR EE R E SR
FHARBAITEZ - B E2HREH R - Living
Nature i 48 151500 14001 IR B E IR X R
& W F 52 COSMOS FIONC Germany 1N &B
Baf o
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Environmental Target

We have set targets for various key environmental management issues,
enabling quantitative analysis and periodic and accurate reviews by
monitoring target achievement and progress. During the Reporting Period, the
Group effectively reduced carbon emissions, resource consumption and waste
generation through regular assessments and targeted measures, ensuring the
achievement of annual environmental targets and laying a solid foundation for
the steady realization of long-term goals.

09 Water Consumption
IKFE

Target: Accumulative reduction of 8%
in water consumption by 2026 based
on water consumption in 2021

BiR : DR2021 FFEK 8 RE%EE -

Waste Management

Use of Resources

We place great importance on the protection of the environment and
natural resources, adopting a multi-faceted approach to continuously reduce
unnecessary resource consumption, enhance resource utilization efficiency,
and maximize resource efficiency. We uphold the principle of reducing
resource consumption at the source, thereby comprehensively unleashing
green growth momentum.

RBERE
BMHHIRBETEMNLZEBRSEERLT B
- BBEABRETKERTFER B
SN TEFTHBEESL - REHAN - K&
EERTE AT AN SRR E R A
BAOBREENE - BERBEREERBEEYELS -
BREEFREEEMNEN TARHAEED
BT ERETER-

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BERBHN

Target: Accumulative reduction of 20% in
greenhouse gas emissions by 2026 based on
average greenhouse gas emissions from 2019-2021

BAZ : A2019F 2021 F R EREHNE R
ERME - E2026F BB IAEREEHER20%

Energy Consumption

REFE

- Target: Accumulative reduction of 20%
in electricity consumption by 2026
based on average electricity
consumption from 2019-2021

BIRE A

BHERRBERRRERORE - ZEIWE -
BRI TBENERBER  KNELEER
ERMEmETT - BRERNBREHEAL
TERRFRBERIERBERNER  &2HU
B BB
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Water Resource Management

Effective water resource management is crucial to both our business
operations and ecological sustainability. The water we use is mainly sourced
from municipal water supply and rainwater reuse, with consumption mainly
concentrated in daily operation of the office premises and production in the
industrial park. The Group complies with various laws and regulations in the
place where we operate, such as the Water Law of People’s Republic of China
and the New Zealand Water Services Act, 2021. All of our subsidiaries have
established water management standard operating procedures tailored to
their respective business operations to regulate water usage in production and
operations. During the Reporting Period, no water safety-related issues were
recorded.

We implement comprehensive and refined water resource management by
continuously monitoring consumption, upgrading water supply networks,
adopting water-saving technologies, promoting the use of water-efficient
appliances, and integrating rainwater recycle systems, so as to enhance water
efficiency and achieve water resource recycling.

Smart Sprinkler Irrigation System and Rainwater Recycle Project

KEREE
BREKERERE D EELMERERIRED
AFEEREWEEEZ - BHMHAKZERR
RMEAKERKER KEREREETES
PHEEEBSESHNEAE ANEBEBST
(hEAREMBIAE) « ST OKBIESR
2021 ) EBEEMAMERER - FFRFMKIE
EFEBESERBA  HEZAENAK
BIRIZERERE URBLEELSHAKE
BoREBAN RMREHEFTEERKE
%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ% °

BAMe2EEERERBALCER  BBKE
B BARE - EiK RS R
EiKESE - A RSIARKEARRSE - 27T
KR BERKERBRMA -

EREERAGRRKEAEE

In 2024, Sinolife United upgraded our original manual watering system to an automated timed sprinkler system. By integrating
automation control with rainwater recycling technology, the project has effectively reduced water consumption and enhanced
water management efficiency. Simultaneously, a 10-tonne rainwater storage tank was constructed and integrated into the irrigation
network to enable rainwater recycling, thereby reducing the environmental impact of traditional irrigation practices.

2024F - PABAKRBEALEKAABERBBTERFEMZRS  RBEICESERKEKRTHNGES B EF
EKETRBERE - I_ITAKERMEE  YRIZERI0MAERKENBERNERER  BRFKERBRNA B
DEGERRANRTAR -

Rainwater Drainage System Upgrade and Renovation Project

MAKERRGARBEERE

To address the risks of water accumulation and water wastage caused by the natural runoff drainage model in older factory

areas, Sinolife United implemented a systematic upgrade and renovation of the rainwater drainage system in 2024 targeting key
operational areas such as roads, green belts and parking lots at our operational sites. The project replaced the original natural
runoff approach with a structured rainwater collection system. By scientifically deploying rainwater diversion pipelines, the project
effectively mitigated water accumulation issues while enabling the standardized collection and reuse of rainwater, thereby
reducing water consumption intensity.

RERERERBR/KEANERIEBEXFENEKEBRKERREME @ 2024 FhEBA EESER - (L%
FESSHREHEMAGUERKERANE  BRETONKEERS  BRREERFKAR - BERNKERER
BRI MHER - BRETEREEKEE  AIREHENKERRBCKREEBNA - BEKERHEFERE -

/]
1KY 4

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR
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During the Reporting Period, our water consumption is as follows:

HIEEER

Consumables Category

HEMA - BAIAKERAT

Consumption JH &

2023 2024 Unit B {y

Water resources KE IR 7,160 10,744 23,120 Tonne M
Water consumption BTl ek FE 0.26 0.19 0.31 Tonne per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
WE, &I
Note: Due to the increase in the total number of employees in 2024, the overall water demand M5 : IR 2024 FEE THAHE EF - A/KES@EE N -
has risen. Additionally, the park replaced water metering devices in 2024, leading to further PEoh - 2024 FEIR B HKEF ERBHETER K
optimization of measurement accuracy. As a result, the data exhibits a fluctuating trend. HEEE—FHEL RUSEERESBE -
Packaging Materials Management BREMBER

We incorporate environmental impact assessments at every stage of a
product’s lifecycle, adhering to the 3R principles of Reduce, Reuse and Recycle.
We continuously promote the use of recyclable, reusable or biodegradable
packaging materials while advancing packaging reduction initiatives and
exploring optimized packaging solutions.

We conduct in-depth exploration into reducing packaging material usage,
adopting eco-friendly alternatives, enhancing production line efficiency, and
maintaining cost control. Through proactive evaluation and optimization,
we continuously refine packaging design and improve the recyclability of
packaging materials.

Research, Development and
Application of Sustainable Materials

EMEEREEGANSBRERYRSENS
HMAZE  FFR D (Reduce) - BT A
(Reuse) * & IR (Recycle) WU 3RIL & - FHEHE A
el B A AIREERREMENER
EREDEMAEL  FEREELELHBER
RITE -

BACRLBEEMERE  RARRERM
B ERERERMBEAT ST RRAR
= BERFEECH R TESCE R ERE
RITEEMHOBERMARE

Packaging Material Reduction

BRMHEEL

AIISE R LA 5 SR R

We actively explore the research, development
and application of environmentally friendly
materials, continuously increasing the usage of

sustainable materials in our product packaging,

and improving the recycling rate of packaging
materials.

BAEERRBER A RV EER - T
ki = a EIE=T =

110

We advocate for appropriate packaging design
based on product specifications and usage,
maximizing the reduction of packaging materials.

PR EKBERREMER T

BER  BAREERBEY

Following the principle of on-demand ordering, we
determine the purchase quantity of packaging
materials based on production volume, avoiding
unnecessary waste of packaging materials.

KIREREESH
RE o

HfEEZRFRTENRA -
EEMBEE  BREEMHNTUE
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Establishment of Sustainable Packaging Management System by Living Nature

Living Nature B2 A HEC L EE

BA

During the Reporting Period, Living Nature implemented a sustainable packaging approach by developing a fully recyclable
packaging solution across the entire supply chain. Both product inner bottles and outer boxes are made from 100% recyclable

materials, while a priority recycling mechanism has been adopted for supplier-delivered cardboard to ensure full lifecycle

environmental impact management of packaging materials.
WEEAA - Living Nature B B AT #5486
M AHEEHDERIRE ﬁm{ﬁf“mfﬁiaﬂ)ﬂﬁ%%ﬂ

M 2R A BB R AR 5
EReEMHeEnENREAFTEE -

© Em BN 2 TR 100% A 14

Consumables SHFEY Consumption JH % &
Category 5l PIOVE 2024 Unit {7
Packaging materials BEHH 552.60 604.95 615.42 Tonne M
Consumption of packaging ErWam e EFE 20.1 10.73 8.23  Kilogram per
materials per revenue of RMB10,000
RMB10,000 SV
Emissions Compliance ERBEK

The Group continuously enhances the refinement of environmental
management in its production and operations, and increases investment in
environmental protection to continuously reduce environmental impact. While
ensuring that 100% of our emissions are disposed of in a compliant manner,
we actively promote emission reduction measures and explore innovative
pathways for waste recycling and reuse. During the Reporting Period, we did
not experience any environmental violations of laws and regulations related to
excessive pollutants or illegal discharge.

Wastewater Management

The Group consistently prioritizes the reduction of wastewater discharge as a
key objective of its environmental management, striving to mitigate negative
impacts on the surrounding environment of its operational sites. In strict
compliance with the laws, regulations and standards in the regions where
we operate, we have developed and implemented internal management
documents, and set clear environmental management targets of “100% up-to-
standard discharge”.

The wastewater generated by us mainly consists of domestic sewage and all
of our production water is recycled through a biological recycling system.
To strengthen wastewater management, we have established a hierarchical
control system for wastewater management, implementing a departmental
responsibility system to enforce discharge management duties and conducting
real-time monitoring throughout the entire water usage process. By setting
wastewater monitoring indicators and establishing a traceability mechanism,
we ensure effective management. At the same time, we reinforce water
intensity control in production processes, and strictly prevent the generation of
new pollutants at the source to achieve reduced wastewater discharge.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

AEBERNHRALEELBETRREEEN
B - MARREBA - HERLREZE -
BRI 100% A HEE N RE - &
PMEBRESRBEEGE  WARARREZYE
W B AR BIHTBE 1S - EHIA - HAIRE
HEESRAMER ERPFRERRERSEM -

BKER

RS B R AR D BOKBE R RIRIBE BN

EZER BMORBREHELE M EABRRER
MBEEFE - RAIERETEZMEMANE

2 ERFEAE ﬁmlkﬁmﬂaﬁxﬁ
BARE [ BEK 100% EIZHE R FIRIEE IR B 12

RFEKNEBRRALEESK FIBLEE
BKEEBEYMRRZFOUWF A - Bkt
BEKER BMELTEKEESRELE
R BEIMECHNEERREERSE I
HEAKEBREETEREZ - BBKRTEEK
EEEEMELHRES  BREENAE X
Mo R RMABREAEERSNAKEEER
B BRI S A E LIRS BIREK
HE B o

\h\ ”v
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During the Reporting Period, we engaged a third-party authoritative institution
to conduct compliance testing, and the results confirmed that all of the Group's
wastewater discharge indicators complied with regulatory requirements in
the regions where we operate, achieving our target of 100% up-to-standard
discharge. Set forth below was our wastewater discharged during the Reporting
Period:

HEHRN RMPEAF A EREERES
BMUEWA - ARBETRAEEREKERIEZ S
A EEMHRE - BIHEKI00%E H
PERR - E R - FAPIRSKEERUIB RN

Amount discharged HE &

Emissions
Category 2023 2024 Unit EE{
Wastewater discharged JERFEIK 4770 6,729 16,155.2 Tonne WA
Note: Due to the increase in the total number of employees in 2024, the overall water demand Mk : AR 204FEBTHEE LF - KT KBS
has risen. Additionally, the park replaced water metering devices in 2024, leading to further BEoh - 2024 FEIRBEHKEF ERHETER K
optimization of measurement accuracy. As a result, the data exhibits a fluctuating trend. FHEEE—SEL  BRBEZRRHBE -
Waste Management BEYNEE

The Group strictly complies with the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Solid Waste Pollution to the Environment of the People’s Republic of China, the
Measures for Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution by Discarded
Hazardous Chemical, and the National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste, as well
as various laws, regulations and standards of the place in which we operated.
We have developed and improved relevant internal management systems to
regulate the management of waste, aiming to reduce waste at the source and
ensure the compliant disposal of waste.

Hazardous Waste Management

The Group's hazardous waste primarily comprises used toner cartridges, ink
cartridges and batteries. To mitigate the impact of hazardous waste on the
surrounding environment, we implement strict controls across the entire
lifecycle of hazardous waste, from generation and storage to transportation
and disposal. Our hazardous waste storage conditions strictly adhere to the
standards and requirements in the places where we operate, following the
required waste management procedures to ensure that classification, labelling
and record-keeping of hazardous waste comply with applicable laws and
regulations. In addition, we engage qualified third-party institutions to handle
hazardous waste disposal, striving to minimize the pollution risks associated
with the disposal process.

N/
R
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AEBEBEER(PEARKMBEEREY)S
RRERZERERBRICEmITREIRN
AIENBREREY & 8) F & E R
BEHERER BE - BIEAL T HHEARE
HIESERMETRBCEE  BREREY
BMEE -

BEEBERYEE
AEENEERENIZEEEMZES
BEEME RERETERVMHEEREN
TE RALEE RFF EBNEESSE
mEHERERYETEREE BANE
BEERMITFIREBRIEETSESMELN
SEER BRERVEENRE BRE
EBREYNHNE  BRENCEFRATAE
RBGERER - i BRFIEREBEEW
FETHRBRECRERY BHREESR
RPRSRARMER &K -
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Non-hazardous Waste Management

The Group's non-hazardous waste comprises packaging waste, personal
protective equipment waste, electronic waste, office waste, and food waste.
We implement waste classification throughout the entire office buildings
and kitchens within the park area, facilitating the recycling and reuse of
non-hazardous waste. All non-hazardous generated by us waste is centrally
collected, identified, classified and labeled before putting them into waste bins
for temporary storage. During this process, we take protective measures to
prevent leakage and fly-away during storage, thereby preventing soil and land
pollution.

For recyclable non-hazardous waste, priority is given to recycling. For non-
recyclable waste, such as kitchen waste and domestic waste, we engage
municipal departments for unified transportation and disposal.

BEERYEE
AEENEEREZYEEBEREM  SRE
B EFmf - AN RAME RN RE - &K
FMEERANMAMRNBINEE BT -
NEEZEEMOLRWIMBNA - FHMME
ELNBEERVALEETRE  £5H)-
DEURE FHRRERMTERRT -
Fi@igsd  HARBEOER  BIREBER
EIE N AR RIS R TIEM 4 -

HRA KA EEERY  RFAELETE
WEE R EFERVMEERENA
Bl - RIPIRFEDRAPFIETR—FERRE -

Amount discharged HE &

Waste
Category 2023 2024 Unit E
Hazardous waste BREEY 052 020 0.20 Tonne I
Hazardous waste BETKRzZBREEY 0.02 0.004 0.003 Kilogram per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
FTr/Bx
Non-hazardous waste EEEEEY) 63.66 59.85 68.31 Tonne MA
Non-hazardous waste BT BEEZEEY 232 1.06 0.91 Kilogram per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Fr/BT

Exhaust Gas Management BREE

Due to the nature of our products, there is basically no external emission
of exhaust gas in other production process of the Group except for a small
amount of emissions from laboratory. Our production process did not generate
any exhaust gas emissions, and therefore there won't be any environmental
pollution. During the Reporting Period, we engaged a third-party testing
agency to conduct inspections on our exhaust gas emissions, and the results
demonstrated 100% up-to-standard emissions of our exhaust gas emissions,
fully meeting environmental standards.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

HREMBE AEENEETBERETE
ERERAELVEERER  HMRAOE

AREINERER  2RBEEAERERT
BERO TEERBEERSR - REHPAR R

1925 5555 = 7 4 BB AE S R SR I R A 7
Bl ERBERER R I00%EE 2
ABEIRE -
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Response to Climate Change

Climate change poses a severe threat to human well-being and global
ecological balance. The increasing frequency of extreme weather events and
natural disasters presents multiple challenges to societal security, ecosystem
stability and the continuity of economic activities. It is therefore imperative
to strengthen climate resilience and accelerate emissions reduction process
through systematic actions. The Group implements green energy development
and substitution, deploys high-efficiency energy-saving and carbon-reduction
technologies and equipment, and establishes a green and low-carbon
industrial chain. We actively drive the innovation and application of low-
carbon, zero-carbon and negative-carbon technologies, continuously building
a green ecosystem for sustainable development.

Governance

The Group places great importance on managing climate-related risks and
opportunities, continuously improving internal governance mechanisms and
methodologies to continuously enhance the effectiveness of climate change
governance. We have established a three-tier climate governance structure
comprising the Board — ESG Management Committee — ESG Task Force.
The Board is responsible for setting carbon reduction targets and strategies.
The ESG Management Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing and
supervising the implementation of climate change-related issues and targets,
and periodically assessing and updating the identified risk list. The ESG Task
Force is responsible for implementing and coordinating the climate risk
response strategy and reporting progress to its superiors on a regular basis.

Strategy

Taking into account both internal and external environments, the Group has
conducted a preliminary qualitative climate scenario analysis with reference
to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Climate Disclosure
Guidance. We proactively identify material physical and transition risks that may
significantly impact the Group's business operations and formulate systematic
climate response strategies.

N/
W

Y RIR24
RAR B ABRBALIA R BRAE REF BB K

TRENEE BnAREBALENRE
R/RABHENR2EERRGNHREN &
BEBEELBREENE RFEBRES
117 B AN 58 SR 1% 338 8 B 77 J22 AR 0 HE SR DR B
B-AKEEBRSECEREREERIA
SMERER BN RERER  BREEEER
MRER S - K0 HEEERTHRE R ME A
HIER  THIBERSERRNEBERE -

aE
AEE S EERE IR R RS0 R R R

B THEEARNIE RN R HEIR
BREELAENERE FRESFE —
ESGEHREEE® — ESG LIE/NARM =R RIR
JRIBZRME - EEE A H BRIk B IS R B
ECEERZECAETHENMNEEREE
ItHEEE  BREMHRTER  HE &7
AR BT E BB M EH - ESG TIE
NMABRERERERE BN EERITIR
ATV WEHR ERERTIELEE -

g

TEBEEBHFRNINBIRT 2EREHS
Bf 7% {= B 4% 58 T 1E 48 (Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures, TCFD) K & 7 Bt 32 Fff
(RIREEEEEDER HARTUENT S
RIEBESEST THBANEEEEKESA
REEKEATENERERENRAR  WHl R
SR TR R SR E o
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RiE

Risk Category
R B 3 5

Physical Acute

risks =M

ERRR
EARPEBESRNBERA R

CHERE

A E

Risk Description

2 e i

The increasing intensity
and frequency of extreme
weather events (e.g.
extreme heat, hurricanes,
floods, wildfires) due to
climate change pose
risks of infrastructure
disruption, which may
have a material impact on
the Company’s normal
operations
BEERIRE (Lo MK
Ui R SRS (AR 2L
&~ K A EE)
e E MBEE Fr)F;
BB - B R
WHEE R - SR EE
HARWEREZE
BB E

At the same time, extreme
weather may affect
supply chain stability
CERE PR LE
TEREERTEE

— T NFEFR

Potential Financial
Impact

BEMBIE

Increased operating
costs due to
infrastructure
reinforcement,
refurbishment and
maintenance; asset
losses due to disruption
of operations and

supply chain
EHERpEINE - B
Mg ﬁm@ X
AIENN B RAE
P [ ﬁmééﬁ
%

Timeframe

[ S

Medium
term

5

Mitigation Strategy
e SR B

Establish an early warning
mechanism for extreme

weather events, closely
monitoring conditions and
promptly issuing alerts to
employees

B BmRREMTRE
b B BRI N B
METEMAERES

Develop emergency
response plans and
conduct regular drills

to enhance capabilities

to quickly respond to
extreme weather events
i E S B BR8N E
Hif R E SRR - =7
R R R 15 i KSR
HBET

Implement a multi-
supplier mechanism,
optimize inventory
management, and
continuously identify

and control supply chain
disruption risks.

B ZHEEES - B
{LEFER - FHFEHEA
I 12 4 g e B L B

?
Y
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R HEBRE

Risk Category

[ Bz 38 B
Chronic
8t
\r“,df

116

A E

Risk Description
2 B 4 ot

Rising temperatures

may increase energy
consumption for
temperature control at
production sites; while
higher risks of natural
disasters such as wildfires
may threaten asset
security, supply chain
stability and employee
health

RBF = ReE A
ESMEEERES
BERRFAEAE : [
ST SE DY
ENEER R - BB
BERT HESERT
BT

Rising sea levels and
flooding in coastal
areas may severely
damage critical public
infrastructure and
disrupt normal business
operations of the

Company

80 E 8 FE LT
KO8 K A R 41 A
BN ETEER M K

BRERE  FERRILE
FEZ
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Potential Financial
Impact

BEMBIE

Increased operational
costs due to higher
energy consumption for
temperature control at
production sites
HESMEEERE
% LR KR ERE
BEE S RHAE N

Timeframe

iy [ S

Long term

=5

Mitigation Strategy
e 5 B

Continuously optimize the

operational efficiency of
HVAC (Heating, Ventilation,
and Air Conditioning)
equipment and systems,
undertaking replacements
or upgrades as necessary
FEECEBEHRME
ﬁ%wmkﬂa$'m
RIRH EETERETT
4

For existing facilities,
implement protective
measures such as
reinforcing embankments,
constructing floodgates
and upgrading drainage
systems to enhance
resilience against floods,
seawater intrusion and
similar hazards. Conduct
regular inspections and
maintenance to ensure
proper functionality

HRE A RERIUN

Bl - R -
RITHKZRERLR
EE e SRR E ALK

K iﬁm&i%%m
B WEEAARE A4
SRR FERELE
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Risk Category
R B 3 5

Transition
Risks
& b

Policy &
Legal
R MoA
e

Technology
5300

ARPEBARNDARRQA

Risk Description
L B # 3aft

Governments may
introduce more stringent
policies and regulations to
mitigate climate change,
increasing corporate
compliance obligations
B HE S B AR BUROA
LR & RIREME - 15
MEREZARTIE

Transitioning to low-
carbon operations
requires upgrading to
energy-efficient facilities
and equipment, investing
in low-carbon production
technologies, and
purchasing and using
clean energy
EERERESER -
FEFHMEMERER
MR - B EREE
Bifr - BEXERFZR

BEIR

ZE O FFR

Potential Financial
Impact

BEMBIE

Timeframe

[ S

Potentially increased Medium to
operational costs in long term
response to policy R
changes Hf
REERBUR #b ] 5

BHGE SN

Potentially increased Medium
operational costsdueto  term
low-carbon technology & &

deployment
B E e R IR IR Al
B BUE S RCARIG N

Mitigation Strategy
e SR B

Closely monitor climate-

related laws and
regulations in regions
where we operate and
take necessary actions in
accordance with the latest
requirements of the laws
and regulations

BY I EL R
SRR 8 B A R
R RIBERERNR
FTESREREUL Z 8 R
78

Actively pursue energy
saving and emission
reduction efforts to
increase the share of clean
energy

& 15 R B e R HE T
B IREBERERIGL

?
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Risk Category
2R, B 3 B

Market
mi%

Reputation

BE

N/
Qi

118

Risk Description
B B 4 ot

As climate change
intensifies globally,
consumer preferences are
shifting towards green
and low-carbon products,
compelling the Company
to proactively adopt
strategies that enhance
product environmental
performance and low-
carbon attributes

to strengthen
competitiveness
BEE 2 IR E N R
BIERA HEERT
AR EBEm
NEIFEEFHEMNE
PEMRR - EiRIERE
BORRE - DA B 5
Fh

Poor performance in
addressing climate
change and sustainability
may lead to negative
stakeholder feedback,
adversely affecting
corporate reputation
AERHRIRE(CK
ARFERFERR T E
BYNEMEETER
R wELEBE

Potential Financial
Impact

BEMELER

Failure to meet
consumer demand for
green and low-carbon
products may result in
market share loss and
revenue decline
REEBVRB HEE
HEgeEmERNE
kKA Be B BT 5 10 58
MK~ AR

Damage to corporate
reputation may weaken
competitiveness and
reduce revenue of the
Company
PEBEXIZEN
BREEHHEFEAT
B - HER A B A FE
NBD

Timeframe

iy [ S

Medium
term

T

Short to
medium
term

723 o 1

Mitigation Strategy
e 5 B

Gradually promote green

product development
within existing business
lines to meet evolving
consumer needs

£ 8 AR IS AR ED AT
FBIHBREER
e e HBENS

Demonstrate the
Company’s efforts

and achievements in
environmental protection
through branding and
marketing, environmental
initiatives and public
welfare engagements,
thereby elevating the
Company's green
reputation among
consumers

378 38 o R AN B
RRIER RmEH2
B RROEERRA
EH S ML - 1A
TPEEHBERNGE
BR

Strengthen the Company’s
sustainability practices
and proactively address
climate change
RACEAFERRE
N EEREHRIEE(E

Enhance transparency

in related management
practices and respond to
stakeholder concerns
RITHBAERBERE
ol f& | &5 A2 78 77 B 1)
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Opportunity

Category
38 5 5

Energy
Transition

BERER

Products &
Services
EmA

PR %

ARPEBARNDARRQA

Opportunity Description
B

With the introduction of
renewable energy policies and
incentives, adopting renewable
energy sources (e.g. solar,
geothermal, wind) can reduce
carbon emissions and lower
energy costs

A] B A BRI SR A BB Fe
MEFEEHEL - miBS| AR B
FRER (IR - 2R - &
Z) ORI - R IERE
TRBCAR

The launch of green products
can attract environmentally
conscious consumers, retaining
market share while expanding
into new markets
BRELAEER WD
BERRIBEE  HFRA
35 7 ZE 6 R B B4R ¥ T 45

Green products contribute to
corporate social responsibility
image and strengthen brand
loyalty
GEEMBIREEREM
SEETR B8 mhe 8
E

ZE O FFR

Potential Financial
Impact

BEUNEZER

Timeframe

8

Reduced energy Medium to
expenditure, increased long term
government subsidies PE— &

R TR  BUSR  H
REUL AR BN

Expanded market share and
increased revenue

TS EER - WAL
B

Long term

R H

Strategic Response

FE ¥ SR e

Increase the proportion of

renewable energy in the
Company's energy mix,
progressively reducing reliance
on fossil fuels

EANF B AR R FIEER
RmEPHLLE BERDH
e B BREH R AR

Continuously develop
energy-efficient, low-carbon
and recyclable products by
adopting sustainable materials
(e.g. recycled plastics, bio-based
materials) and eco-friendly
production processes to meet
consumers’ environmental
demands

FERE R (K - AIE
W - R M B
(IR - EMEME)
MRREETE - BT HE
ERRFBK

Promote green consumption
awareness campaigns

to enhance consumer
understanding and acceptance
of green products while
strengthening brand
positioning
BAFRGEHEEIEHE
B RITHEEYHREE
oo R AN X EH R
B 3E R TR

(
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Risk Management

The Group's comprehensive risk management strategy has been established to
combat climate change, covering all aspects of risk identification, assessment
and management. To optimize resource allocation and enhance the efficiency  IRf0 - BB EREE  IRe R/ RE (AR
ERME KMEREZELCRAREERERE
EEAEEEBRRERRES  HHEMH
B SR M B b [ B ) e A& R | BT 4 I 1 TE B R
BEIREE  BRSR L E SRR E R R

of climate change risk management, we have integrated the climate change
risk management into the Group's overall risk management process, actively
assess the identified climate change risks, and introduce effective management
measures that ensure such climate change risks remain within a controllable

range.

Climate Change Risk
and Opportunity

Identification

RIR2 L g e
BB R

Climate Change Risk
and Opportunity
Assessment

RiR2 L RE
B ETE

Responses to Climate
Change Risk and
Opportunity
RIR B B IR
Hia s

Climate Change Risk
and Opportunity
Monitoring

RizSLERE

120

[ B B

A ZEEA o

Collect and analyze climate-related historical data, industry reports, policy documents,
etc, to identify potential climate risks that may impact business operations.
WEFDHT RAREREE L BUR - 1TEME - BERXES 35| KT et X 755E
EEAEEZENRIZER

Analyze and comb the identified risks to prepare a risk list.

A R TT DT BRI - TR E

Prioritize the identified climate risks based on their probability of occurrence and
potential impact, using a risk matrix.

EaRBEENEMEEZEIZE - MRS R L H SRR E R TE
SR BE

Ensure the assessment results align with the Company’s current conditions by involving
the management in the risk assessment.

BREEREAR2ERRTGERE  BRAFGEERTEAREMR

Develop specific and effective measures to address the identified and assessed risks,
such as enhancing infrastructure resilience and optimizing energy structures, based on
the Company’s business nature.

REBHEERE - HEHBPIET AR - SITERRERRIEYN - BLaRiE
BEARA RN LR

Monitor trends in climate risks and opportunities on a regular basis to take timely actions.
EHEARRERERBEBY - AERFERINTE

Periodically instruct the risk management team to review risk management activities over
a certain period, assess the effectiveness of the strategies, and make timely adjustment
and optimization of risk management measures.
FEHASRRERERORBE —RERANRRERES - AHMHRENARE
T B PR ANE b B B ERHE A

Climate Change Risk and Opportunity Management Process

RIRZ{CAREKBEIERE
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Based on the identification of climate risks and opportunities, the Group has
developed climate risk response strategies to facilitate our transition towards
a lower-carbon and more sustainable business model. In 2024, we formulated
internal regulations such as the Emergency Plan Registration Form and the
Safety Emergency Plan, and incorporated the same into the climate risk
management system, further strengthening our capability to prevent and
respond to climate-related extreme weather events.

Energy Management

We are committed to improving energy use efficiency as a core initiative
in implementing our low-carbon development strategy. By systematically
establishing an energy management system, deepening energy-saving
optimization in production processes, and enhancing the dynamic monitoring
mechanisms for energy efficiency, we are dedicated to driving energy
efficiency upgrading across the entire value chain.

The Group complies with the relevant energy management laws and
regulations of places in which we operate, such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation, and each of our operational sites
has introduced corresponding standard operating procedures (SOPs) for
energy management facilities in light of their respective actual conditions,
efficiently facilitating the implementation of various energy-saving and
emission-reduction measures. We are committed to applying innovative
concepts in various stages, including R&D, production processes, process
optimization, and operations, to achieve technological optimization, thereby
avoiding unnecessary energy consumption in advance.

ERRIREREREFBIBENL - AEEHE
SR L B B Y SR RS - EEH DR A B KB AN B
ARFENREEXER - 20245 - HAIHE
T(EZERBRENLE2EZEAR)F A
HIE  MARKEREEERER £ NR
HBRRAAR SR AR R IER R E RS -

FEREE

TR 7T BE TR B AR BE A TR API B 1T (K AR 3% R B RS
M ORE BB RREBEEREERR
RMEEET BB R TERNBEER
Bl BPENEESEBERESRR -

AEBEBE(PEARKNMBRERBLE)E
BEZWEEREEMBEAREIR  SELH
BEERBANEMENEREEREREE
IRVEIZ /7 (SOPs) - = A HEE X IR BT BRI BE T
ERER BRI RERBMNEERBRE
TERIMELERBBERAIFNESH
BB - WEMIEAT AR IE L B EVBETRBFE

ARPEBASRNDARRQA

® We actively explore improvements
in equipment technology, by
replacing low-energy-efficient
equipment with energy-efficient
equipment, and continuing to
promote and expand the use of
LEDs to enhance energy efficiency
in production processes.
BPEBRRRREEMSCE
AR REREERERERE
FERELEDEEELAEE @ &=
DEERMNMNAERERRE

Improvement in

equipment and technology

ZE O FFR

® \We actively explore clean energy
transformation solutions, by
exploring the implementation and
expansion of rooftop photovoltaic
projects.
BMEERSRBEREREBES
= RRETRAARIAB #E A
R o

Exploration of clean energy

REFBERRER
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Energy-Saving Equipment Application

BREREER

Electric-powered ride-on mowers and sweepers were purchased to reduce energy consumption of equipment within the
park.
RBRESNESNLHEAINELMFTILE  ROBERARENEREFRE -

During the park road renovation, we replaced all streetlights with solar-powered streetlights, effectively enhancing energy
use efficiency.

EERERIGET @ HPIKAEREERSAGERE - ARIRTTEEREMRRE -

Green Office BEHL

By promoting green office concepts and fostering a low-carbon consciousness ~ BBEEAZEHNIESEIFTEL S RIRER -
across the Company, we integrate energy-saving and emission-reduction ~ M ETaE R BFERIEHRE B FiE & ML
practices in every aspect of daily operations. This approach forms a low-  JZ B 517 5 % 8217 /& 2 2 17 [B) & &) 79 (K Ak 85
carbon transition path driven by technological innovation and behavioral B! E1E - & & ¥ RAR B A B IRKFk B 1242
improvement, providing robust support for combating climate change and B 1 # ©

achieving low-carbon targets.

We advocate for green and low-carbon office practices, by issuing a “Green ~ HKFEB& B EROP AT R - EMmEEE

Initiative” and establishing environmental office “5R” principles. #HE] HTERERPEAISR]RE] -
AN
"“ ,  REDUCE POLLUTION AND CONSERVE RESOURCES HRNER  HDEH
’ 4
Q, RE-EVALUATE WHETHER THE PRODUCT IS ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY BEESE  BIRIRE
{ /
j, REUSE ITS RESIDUAL VALUE AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE BEEFERH ZXAA
15
fh’ RECYCLE THE WASTE AND WASTE CLASSIFICATION PEOW - BERELE
|
J" RESCUE LIVING CREATURES AND CONSERVE NATURE REAR BYHE

5R Principle [5R] JRH|

\\“ Y
QW
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RIR - HERERBRE

2ol Promotion of
_ green office practices
aa[q] h@ﬁé%“

® \We promote green and environmentally friendly outreach and
training activities to enhance employees’ environmental
awareness. We encourage paperless office practices, including
online processes, double-side printing, turning on lights when
leaving work sites, and reasonably adjusting the office air
conditioning temperature.
HMHEEZERREEMEIEIES - HREIHNRRE
B FEEACHD O REK L EEHITH - AERE
B AERSHATHERRES

During the reporting period, we conducted a special campaign
on green office practices through the company-wide email
system. Key energy-saving initiatives included promoting
natural ventilation as an alternative to air conditioning,
implementing timely door access management, and enforcing
optimal air conditioning temperature standards. These efforts
systematically enhanced employees’ awareness and practices of
low-carbon office operations.
ﬁiﬁw BMBB2ENHESHRZEHAZTIEHS
E%ﬁ BERBEABRRE=ACER  PFIERKHARE
ERRIEEERITEHEER - REMRAZ SRR
MNBEBEIT R o

BHABERAG —T _NEFR

Promotion of green travels

EREEHT

S

® We strongly promote green transportation by encouraging
employees to use public transportation.

BIAIANHEEAENTT  RERTREARR

o Sinolife United disposed of its publicly-owned vehicles for
sale, so as to provide staff with the opportunity to work from
home and to reduce the carbon emissions generated by staff
traveling.
¢$WA?”ﬁ$Wﬁ THERE - iFRERE TIRHE

NG - FEE THITEENIREER -

e During the Reporting Period, to encourage staff to use new
energy vehicles for travelling, we newly established an
electric vehicle charging station and installed time-controlled
energy-efficient lighting, further reducing our energy
consumption.

BEHRN - REFEINERTELT  BRMAFESHE
FER - WEERTEEEE - E—PRIEERE -

7
wi
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EREAE
EEREZELRAEHAH FEEE
FEEARAGRAREKBEINER HER
set climate targets and monitors the progress of greenhouse gas emission and & B Z 17 85 B8 = 5,88 5l HE A1 LR 1% #2 T 1E
energy consumption reduction efforts. These initiatives drive our transition ~ HJ# R 5% %&@Jm%l‘??‘iﬂiﬁﬁmfﬂﬁ—ﬁi &
toward a lower-carbon and more sustainable business model. During the ~ A FE R X #E A - BN AKERER
}Jfﬁﬁz%ﬁrﬁjm%?ﬁ aLREE/ B
EEWA  BEERBERERE A423 T RIZE
Ji??;/“_ EEWA o

Indicators and Targets

Combating climate change has become a global consensus. Based on the
identification of climate risks and opportunities, the Board of the Group has

reporting period, the Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity was 16.65 kg
CO;, equivalent per revenue of RMB10,000, while energy consumption intensity
was 4.23 kg standard coal equivalent per revenue of RMB10,000.

Target: To reduce greenhouse gas
emissions by 20% cumulatively,
based on the average emissions

Target: To reduce electricity
consumption by 20% cumulatively,
based on the average electricity

from 2019 to 2021 usage from 2019 to 2021

B1iZ : LA2019F-2021FF 158 BAZ : 20192021 FHEE
ERENEAEEME ' BFH ERAEEE  RFBELEE=S
B = R EEHERR20% 20%

Greenhouse Energy

gas emission

RS HE

consumption

REFE
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Set forth below is our energy consumption during the Reporting Period: WEHA - RMOERBEEELAT

Consumables Consumption JHEE
Category 2023 2024 Unit B 1y
Gasoline JUH 27,521 35,653 37,031 Litre Ft
Diesel oil eS| 414 857 564 Litre F+
Liquefied petroleum gas BIEABR 181 5.75 1.88 Cubic metres
Natural gas KAT 157 1,402 1,852 Cubic metres
Total direct energy B HA A E 31.87 46.66 44,53 Tonnes of standard
consumption Coal equivalent
MR AR KR
Purchased electricity SNEE T 231088 2,22897 2,213.00 MWh
JK BB
Total indirect energy BRI E 28401 273.94 271.98 Tonnes of standard
consumption Coal equivalent
TR A
Total energy consumption’ HREBEIRHFE 315.88 320,60 316.51 Tonnes of standard
Coal equivalent
MR AR
Integrated energy consumption E JT {45 & BEFE 11.49 568 4.23  Kilogram standard
per revenue of RMB10,000 coal equivalent
per RMB10,000
FTRIZE BT

! Energy consumption: calculated based on the General Principles of Comprehensive Energy RERIEFE - (RIRC4R & seFEET B A) (GB2589-2020)
Consumption Calculation (GB2589-2020). FTHE
Y
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RIE - HERERRE
Set forth was our greenhouse gas emission during the Reporting Period: WEBHA - RMHAEREBHERBRAOT -

Emission HE &

Greenhouse gas?

Category I 2023 2024 Unit E
Greenhouse gas emission Scope | F0lE — 8 = R EEHEH 64.69 92.98 89.43  Tonnesof CO;eq
WECO, %8

Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il #01E — )8 = B HEN 876.10 858.23 878.55  Tonnesof CO, eq
WECO, & &

Greenhouse gas emission Scope il #3105 = )8 = R B HE X 58.04 151.72 277.37  Tonnesof CO, eq
WECO, 28

Total greenhouse gas emissions B =5 B4 E 998.83 1,102.93 1,245.36  Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, %8

Greenhouse gas emissions BrhzBE 3633 19.56 16.65 Kilogram of CO, eq
per revenue of RMB10,000 REHME Per RMB10,000
T

e —

CO, &8/ 8T

126

Greenhouse gas emissions: Greenhouse gas emission Scope | was generated from petrol and
diesel consumption by the Company’s own vehicles and liquefied petroleum gas and natural
gas consumption from its own canteens. Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il was generated
from indirect emissions of purchased electricity. Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il was
generated from carbon emissions from business flights of our employees.

The emission factors for electricity of Sinolife United is based on the Notice on the Release
of the 2022 Electricity Carbon Emission Factors issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, where the national average carbon emission
factor for electricity in 2022 is 0.5856 kgCO2/kWh, and the emission factor for power grid
has been adjusted to 0.5703 tCO2 /MWh. The greenhouse gas emissions were calculated
with reference to the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse
Gas Emissions from Industrial and Other Industrial Enterprises (Trial) issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China. The emission
factors for electricity of Living Nature, Good Health and Cobayer adopted 2015 Guidelines
for Defra/DECC's GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting issued by Julie's Bicycle
Sustaining Creativity, and the greenhouse gas emissions were calculated with reference to
the National Greenhouse Accounts Factors issued by Australian Government, Department of
the Environment and Energy.

\r“,df

BRERBEN: @B AZRBHIKARFTAESR
BTV SRERERBEBRENREOBRAR
RAFHERE B REREHMOREIINBEHE
EREEER BB R EREHIRRE R TRITE
B RREE A RO BR BN o

FEBANENBNAFLRIEARAMBEE
REIRIF AP M (IR B 202 FF h —|1b ik
MEFEHRE)  2002F2EE N TFH At
B F 05856 kgCO/kWh SR E R BEHE N &R

RAEARANMBBERERMANEZESHEMH
(TEEMITECERERBHMZE FARRS
58 (A7) ° Living Nature » iF @ E R RIER N E
T BERE F £ A [ Julie’s Bicycle Sustaining Creativity |
45 19 (2015 F Defra/DECCHI A RIS R ER B8
AR 5 ) (2015 Guidelines for Defra/DECC's GHG
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting) : & & &
BHREFEL2RBAN T RMARE EERE
(Australian Government, Department of the Environment
and Energy) 2 5 19 (Bl 5O = R 58 12 B Z B0 (National

Greenhouse Accounts Factors) °
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CONNECTIVITY: ADVANCING TOGETHER WITH
EMPLOYEES

Employees, as core partners of our business development, form the bedrock
for our stable long-term development and shared future. Persisting in the
principle of mutual respect, we fully safeguard employees’ legitimate rights and
interests and provide them with extensive career development opportunities.
We also foster a healthy and safe working and living environment. To achieve
mutual growth, we remain attentive to employees’' needs, demonstrating our
heartwarming care, and empowering employees to grow together with the
Company.

Employee Employment

In strict compliance with local laws and regulations such as the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the New Zealand Human Rights Act 1993, the New Zealand
Employment Relations Act 2005, and the New Zealand Holidays Act 2003,
the Group has formulated and continuously improved internal management
systems including the Employee Recruitment System and Remuneration
Management System to standardize employee management and safeguard
employees’ rights and interests. We enter into the Induction Notice with new
recruits. Furthermore, during the reporting period, we maintained an update
of employee induction details to ensure that they have a full understanding of
company policies, culture, and relevant interests and rights, which will facilitate
their integration into the team and clarify their career development direction.

Employee rights and interests

We have consistently adhered to the principles of lawful, compliant, and equal
employment, and diversity and inclusion, striving to create a fair, just, inclusive,
and vibrant working environment for every employee.

We adamantly oppose any discrimination in the recruitment and career
development of employees based on age, citizenship, marital status, race,
skin color, ethnicity, religious beliefs, physical condition, gender identity,
and other factors. Furthermore, we adopt a zero-tolerance policy towards all
forms of harassment, and address such issues proactively and with the utmost
seriousness.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

BEEL -BEIHT

TREFZFROZLOEH  RRMITRE
CHAIEFARREOER - BFIREREFA
E% BMRA 2 HWREEINAE#ER
RERHEFANBEERYEG  LEERE -
e TERATEIRIT - R - 3P 2 8
FEIFR EEEBEERE BPHHETH
NEEFHE  BERARKE -

F“H ‘IJ]JU

ET{EE

REEEBET(PEARLMBE L B)E(P
EAREMBELEHERE)  FTABIARE
20 1993) - A (B EBFRIEE - 2005) &
FHUREAZR2003) FE L FTEMARE
BN HEE(ETHBHENXHFESE
BHE)ERNMBERFE  HBETERE R
BEIMAEER - BMEHNE THRI(AR
EHE) TRBREHRNEFE T ARER
ﬁ&%%,ai?n TERARBUR - Xt kA E

B ERER A BB AR ER T
BETRES
BFERERAZaR FEFRBNZTE
AHRA MORNSE—UBITAERF

RNIE - BRBFEWE N ITIERE -

EETHRELRBEZRBRES HMABRRR
LRFER EE - BAKR Bk BE R
Ik RBED FRMRAKERNRRASZREE
EEMEAERTA  AEEAPANER
TRRFTARPEE  181%  BEEE -

\h ”v
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The Group strictly safeguards the legal rights and interests of minors, and
explicitly prohibits use of child labor. We will ensure that employees meet the
statutory age for employment through strict verification of employee identity
information. Meanwhile, we advocate for a reasonable working hours system
and resolutely opposes any form of forced labor.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify violations of child
labor, forced labor, harassment, and other irregularities.

Employee recruitment

The Group has proactively expanded our recruitment channels by adopting
various methods including social media recruitment, campus recruitment,
human resource markets, and internal referrals, which continues to inject
new vitality into the Company. We focus on innovative measures, utilizing
professional platforms such as BOSS Zhipin and Liepin to communicate
directly with candidates, precisely selecting talent to improve our recruitment
efficiency. Simultaneously, we actively promote internal referrals, and
encourage employees to participate in the recruitment process, which has
strengthened employees’ sense of belonging while achieving efficient and
precise talent acquisition.

\r“,df
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BPIERAE R RF AR A - AREZE L
BRET -BBBRBESETIHENESES
X HMBRBE TEIAEMRFTFER -
R RMAEEEETHEIE  BREHIE
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BERAN AEBARBEEFNETLER R

HEHNBEZEREE -

ETHE

REEBBERERIERE  RAHERBEE -
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Employee Recruitment Highlights

ETHRERMIE

We encourage employees to share job postings through their social network, so that their network resources are fully utilized
to increase the visibility and recruitment opportunities for positions. Based on the specific features of each job, we implement
targeted push notification strategies that deliver recruitment information to specific groups, further enhancing the recruitment

efficiency.
BMEBETHEBNRES ZHEREULEE -
B ERBEREARE  AFEARTOEREEESR

xR Z’“'JFHA%kﬁxﬁﬁﬂmuﬁaﬁj‘:“rﬂ%%%%
A PRSI AK o

o ST H R AL

The social networking, as an efficient channel for disseminating information, facilitates the rapid expansion of the pool of potential
candidates, while effectively reducing the costs associated with traditional recruitment channels. Furthermore, by having
employees share job information, we showcase the Company’s culture and values, attracting like-minded talent and further

enhancing our brand image.

ARBEERERBIEND
BINZEMMUEES  RME
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SURTRABIXCEREBER  R3IER
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The Group actively implements diverse recruitment principles by leveraging
human resources platforms to attract high-caliber interns from overseas
with varied cultural backgrounds, bringing fresh perspectives and innovative
thoughts to the Company.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR

AEBEBEEHEBRITZITCHEBRA - BBAD

BRABYE  SIEXBTRAXERHE
B EREEBE  REET R BB

BIFTEH BT o
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Empowering Interns and Promoting Cultural Integration

BEBELERR  EHSZAXAE

We offer interns with systematic training and guidance programs that expedite their understanding of our corporate culture and
enable them to fully utilize their professional capabilities in their work performance. During the 2024 China International Import
Expo in Shanghai, interns actively participated in field assistance work, achieving personal knowledge enrichment and significant
personal growth.

BMAREBERMTZASENEIEES BREARRTRAR UL EERTERPRDBEEERE S - £20245F
PEgEEe R BEELBE2RBSHHITIE WEETDERERREEEE - BAKNKREE -

Furthermore, to further enhance employees’ awareness of diversity and inclusion, we organized a series of culturally diverse
engagement activities in 2024. These culture-themed events not only highlighted the appreciation and empathy of expatriate
employees towards different cultural backgrounds but also promoted cross-departmental collaboration and communication,
thereby effectively strengthening team cohesion and innovation.

AN RE—FRABINZTMEBRNEEMN - RME204FAB T —FINZ T EBES) - BLIFETEM
RTIMEETH IR EERNBMEES - BRE TEINFICHNEGIERN - BROLR T EKNRENFEIF N

sk
e A anean
]

ERDTEERENAR

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 477 employees, B ZEREHR  AEBEBFET477 A * A F
with female employees accounting for 65%, among which 54% of senior 21 B T{ELiEFI65%  HFR - PAEHA SR
management at Sinolife United are female. In the meantime, we actively &2 E R Z MG L A 54% - B - TAPIIEBIE
promoted local employment, and 47% of our new hires were recruited locally ~ B)ZANHIgE 2 - 2024 F - A B LI E H It

in 2024, B 47% °
Distribution of the number of Distribution of the number of
employees by employment type (persons) employees by age group (persons)
ZERERESNETAE (A RERETHNETAE (A
9
| 71
| | e Full-time employees 206 e 30 years old or below
EXET 30 A MAT
® Part-time employees ® 37 to40yearsold
FRMET 31-40E 5%
69 ® 41 to 50 years old
41-50/E 5%

© above 50 years old

S0/EBRIA L

N
Qi
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Distribution of the number of Distribution of the number of

employees by gender (persons)

BUREDETAH N

employees by employee category (persons)

ZEEFFESHET AR (L)

39 @ Senior management
° Male 125 §~\30 mRERE
‘ ©® Administrative
‘ 26 GHAR
° Female
@ Healthcare supplement
technicians
REEEBRIMAS
@ Sales
HEAR
257 e Other

Hit

Distribution of the number of
employees by geographical region (persons)

B EEDHNE T AE (A

133 e China
AR

® Oversea

RIS

Employee Development BI#RE

We fully recognize that employee development represents the core driving ~ HFIRMB THERELEZEROZ LB -
force for our business development. We place great emphasis on employee ~ HfI=mEER 8 THEE - THEFHIER -
empowerment by continuing to expanding training resources and promotion AR ETHEBE - KE TREBH B ERE
channels, and furnishing our employees with clear career planning and SR EXHF - ETHREKE - KFHRKR -
growth support. We grow together with our employees and share the fruits of

development.
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Remuneration Performance R EXN

The Group has established a holistic remuneration and performance AEEEV T EENFNEXREEB R
management system, and continues to optimize its remuneration and EE/{CHIERERGE  BSETEAERE
performance management policies. By closely aligning employee growth EMEBEREZLEL  EHEEHOGEEET
with our business development, we strive to achieve a mutually beneficial B 5 o B P45 B @ (L T 15 BB # ) - 2
dynamic for both the Company and its employees. We continue to refine  JRBEZ Tt ~ 2 F U BB 88 & - B33
our assessment and incentive mechanisms, as part of our efforts to build a )& B - B B E B IZ 8 EHEES -
diversified and comprehensive incentive system that combines materials, X328 T)& 7 - IR A B4 8t - S ¥
spiritual, and target incentives. Our system and policies effectively ignite the 5 EBEE -

enthusiasm of our employees, enhance organizational efficiency, and fuel our

sustained business development.

We have established a range of bonus schemes in the e-commerce department,
including a monthly bonus package, a promotion-driven incentive package, and a team
performance bonus package, to provide immediate rewards to employees for their

wg:ﬂﬁj outstanding performance
e &%%Egﬁﬁ EReE RNesBRes BEHEeS URBERLWETHE
1TRNE

Material incentive

. . . Our various review and recognition meetings are held to enhance employees’ sense of
Spiritual incentive honor and team cohesion

8 B BAENSEERRTARETEY - 1BRE THRERMEBRE S

Target-based We have adopted a target-driven responsibility system, closely aligning the Company’s
long-term development with individual employee objectives. This incentive encourages
incentive employees to strive for the Company’s vision
- ETEREES  SARNREFRESETINEAABREESS  5I8BTIRE
B 2B AAREREMSHEF

Incentive Mechanism

8 B 1

/Y
Qe
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2024 Remuneration and Performance Management Highlights

2024 FHMARERRR TIE

For the remuneration and performance assessment in the e-commerce department, a more flexible commission system and
a new performance review and approval process were introduced. Furthermore, the successful transition to a paperless office
system ensures an expeditious and efficient approval process while facilitating real-time access to employee information,
thereby improving overall efficiency;

BEEEPIEFMEREZFSIAE RBEENRKEIARINESIZZEILRE  ERTRENERK B ED
EEHBRFILENMSH  ANOERERBRREIER  BeIERE

We continue to optimize the performance schemes and included new target management measures. Meanwhile, an incentive
mechanism for releasing viral articles was introduced for new media roles, while the performance assessment standards for
e-commerce management positions were further refined. Furthermore, personalized incentive schemes were introduced and
implemented for the live-streaming department;

FEBLERFTRUEREFREE  RVERBELSIABHBKS A EREREUEARERZZE R
R EHE B PIIRRI B i T ML AR 7 &=

Allowance packages introduced for e-commerce positions significantly galvanized employees’ enthusiasm and motivation.

EREBMAORERM - BAMAE T B TR TERSMEEE -

\/]
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Remuneration and Performance Management Highlight Case
FHEREERMEN

Following the conclusion of the 2024 e-commerce 618 promotion, Sinolife United rewarded a corporate retreat trip to Japan
in recognition of outstanding teams and individuals, as part of the implementation of the incentive mechanism, which has
strengthened employees’ sense of belonging, and promoted our long-term development.

2024 FEEHOIBRIHEB A RIE - PABAESRARENWESFNEAR TR AEITIREEE - EZEHEES

BB THRER HEBEXRAER-

Employee Training

We consistently regard talent as the primary resource for our business
development, and therefore are committed to providing comprehensive,
multi-level learning and development opportunities for our employees. We
have established and continue to refine the Employee Training Management
System to provide institutional support for talent cultivation, ensuring that
training sessions are standardized and systematic. Our training program
tailored to different levels, positions, and stages of employee development
encompasses new employee training, group-specific training, business
training, and position adaptation training, among other areas. This ensures
that the training content aligns with both the development requirements
of our Company and the personal growth aspirations of our employees. On
the other hand, we regularly conduct skills training specific to various roles,
comprehensively elevating employees’ knowledge, enhancing their skillset,
and strengthening their leadership capabilities.

N/
R
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New employee training
8 T

To facilitate the expeditious integration of new employees into the Group and familiarize
them with our operation conditions, we provide new recruits with induction training that
covers the Group's regulations and systems, brand introduction, and corporate culture.
RIBEFETIBREELATZEEBN  HA/FETREREEERENE - &
BN~ REXEEREFTE T ABEI -

Position adaptation training
i 4

This training aims to assist new hires in quickly adapting to their new roles and enhancing
their work skills. The training package includes basic job knowledge, safety protocols, and
regulations, with a view to strengthening employees’ communication skills and team
camaraderie. Through this position adaptation training, employees can swiftly integrate into
their teams and contribute to the Company’s development.

HEMARET  EREEMMMREERTML - 7 TEKE - BIINERE
RUERME RE2RE REGRES BRETHNEBRENTERBIERES -
BBEMEY  BEIRAERRBABRL  RARINERERMNE -

Business training

ES 2

We place a strong emphasis on improving job-specific skills. Tailored to the requirements
of different roles, we have designed a series of highly practical and professional courses,
including sessions such as “Pursuing Perfection,” “From Beginner to Sales Champion,” and
“How to Improve Repeat Purchases from Existing Customers.” These sessions are designed to

"o

enhance employees’ professional competence and work efficiency.

TERUKENRES S HTRECATR R T -RIFXEMLR EALSH
AR EEHBRRE B IEE  AHIrEELBEESE  EERREINE
ERBMIIERE -

Group-specific training

B

We strive to improve employees’ overall understanding of the Company and their ability
to collaborate as a team. The training covers multiple dimensions, including corporate
culture, leadership development, and team collaboration. Through lectures by experienced
instructors and interactive discussions, we aim to strengthen employees’ sense of cohesion
and belonging within the Company.

EERAETIHARNBERMREGGEES - ARRECEUE - BB HER -
ERmIEELZERE  BBERBMNKRNE B m B3B8 THREDNE
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Training system EIER

To ensure the implementation of training programs and to better grasp the B EBEE =18 FiFEHE ﬁéﬂ@l%
effectiveness of the training while providing timely feedback to instructors, 7 X B [A) 38 A £2 S 68 » TR P18 sk 15 9l i &5
we have introduced a training feedback and evaluation form. This allows us ~ FFE X * B R M B 7 H#EZ E’\JEX% e
to understand the training outcomes in real time, ensuring that the training M EREZINAB M AL S mE AR E
content and methods meet the needs of the trainees, while continuing to 3k I B EREENEE -

improve the training quality

In addition, we support employees’ self-improvement by encouraging themto  Ith4h » HFIRGEZHE TN A RIET © B
obtain relevant qualifications and enhance their academic qualifications. We BT ZHHEELE - RBFABHFEFE  HRE
provide reimbursement for certification exams and offer additional incentives.  E RERZEUR M MEEINGE - REZ
We also offer tuition subsidies to help employees improve their professional  EfEL * Bh 11 B T RAE - B AGE NIRRT -
skills and personal capabilities.

Performance Highlights of Training Program Implementation

BAGEEREE R SRHER

We actively implemented the training programs, with 2 group-specific training sessions, 15 business training sessions, and 7 job

adaptation training sessions held in 2024.

BPEREEEIIFEBERER - 2024 FEREIFIERIT2R - FBEINLBE T 158 BREILHET 78 -
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During the Reporting Period, the number of employees participating in training

sessions were 450, with the percentage of employees receiving training
reaching 94.34%. The average training hours per employee is 81.34 hours. The
training details of employees are as follows:

BREHRN SE2HEHEINE T A A0
A BIZMBEIEDLEM34%  EIF
BRI B A 8134/ N\EF o B ITIFIIFIBET -

Average

training hours

Percentage completed

of employees (hour)

trained (%) | FITHEE

Employee Training ETINZIER I E % (%) ("NEF)

By gender RERE S

Female employees 8T 64.00 81.81

Male employees FET 36.00 8045
By employee category RETIERE D

Senior Management mREEE 7.1 50.63

Administrative THRAE 6.00 70.90

Healthcare supplement technicians REEERMAR 5.56 7438

Sales HEAER 56.00 114.68

Other Hi A8 2533 2664

Career Advancement BEZH

The Group is committed to providing employees with diversified development
paths and broad development opportunities. In accordance with the Employee
Promotion Management System, we have standardized the promotion
standards, promotion procedures and other areas to ensure the transparency
and fairness of the promotion process, as well as fair and impartial promotional
outcomes. With a scientific talent development system established, we
actively broaden the channels for employee promotion, and enrich their
career development accesses, providing employees with ample development
opportunities and a broad space for growth.

ARPEBAERNARLIR —T_MFFR
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Quarterly

Annual Performance

Departmen
Recommendation

ERFIHERE

. Talent Hierarchy
Performance Review

F R

ATHE

Review System

FEERHE

e Position and rank are o Employees’ outstand- e Aquarterly o Atalent hierarchy is

adjusted based on ing performance is performance review built for the
performance review reported by depart- system has been e-commerce
SEIE B R IR R ment heads of such introduced in the department, with a
L R Bk AR employees to the e-commerce comprehensive
higher-ranking department, with implementation of the
department, with a specific quarterly e-commerce talent
layered approval assessment form development plan
process implemented established for BEEBATBE -
R EREERES e-commerce PHEEEHALE
BRI LRETEH management positions 3 CUES
=5 AEERREE EEHBHGATE
s ZRHE - HEEH
ERMEUNEEZR
=&
Career Development Path
BB RBEC
Care for Employee ETRE

We are dedicated to building a corporate culture that emphasizes employee
well-being, by respecting, caring for and understanding our employees, while
incorporating employee care into every aspect of corporate management. We
receive and consider our employees’ opinions, pay attention to their needs
and well-being, and enhance their sense of happiness and belonging, making
every employee feel the warmth of home.

Employee Benefits

The Group strives to provide employees with comprehensive and multi-
level welfare benefits, enhance their quality of life and share the fruits of the
Company's development with them in strict compliance with national laws
and regulations. During festive holidays, we carefully prepare festive gifts and
blessing subsidies for our employees, as a message of our care and blessings.
Meanwhile, we regularly organize a variety of recreational, team-building, and
festive activities to enrich their leisure time and strengthen team cohesion.
Good Health actively organises fitness classes, mental well-being seminars, and
team-building activities, as part of our continuing efforts to enrich employees’
personal life.

Qs
138

BB R BRI MAXBIENDEE
E55T BMOBI EBHMEI KEIH
ERMALCKEEMNSERE - HMABREET
LECBIBIRKEGLREE REABRT
TREMEBRE  #E LB THERTE
KRB ©

BETIREA
REBEBRREZERBEASEERZEZR WIRAE
ITREZ2FMN - ZBEANEHNRE A8
THERE BEIHRZDPETFRKR-F
EZHBA BMAABEIBOEEHBERM
Hfie BECENBEMNE B &
MEMABEEZXONE B2 503
B E B T EMRAEE R EBORE T -
0F 62 B 78 AR AR AR &Y ERAE - 0 IR 2 R AA AT
BFER 5 HEZSETMERET -

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS- HERERHE

To effectively convey corporate care, we regularly submit assistance lists to the
union and provide targeted financial assistance to alleviate the living burden
of disadvantaged groups, thereby mitigating workplace anxiety and familial
pressure. For our female employees, we have established equitable promotion
channels, offering equal opportunities for promotion and professional
development. Furthermore, we have established lactation rooms for female
employees, providing a private and comfortable environment for those in the
nursing period, demonstrating the Company’s meticulous care for its female
employees.

Holiday Benefits
& B & A

R BER Jt%?&?];z BMEHR IR
HRaE %&@?ﬁﬁbfriﬁﬂi‘“iﬁﬁi
Eié%%'“ RIS EEEFKERE S -
LHET  RAEREUNEENETRE
REFENEA RS NBEZRES - UL
BARXMETIRYTHEE  SWILHN
THEBTRHETALE FEMNRE BRT
NEYREE TABAMNEE -

In 2024, the Company distributed a variety of festive gifts to employees during major festivals such as Dragon Boat Festival,
Mid-Autumn Festival, and Spring Festival, conveying our message of care and warmth. We fully acknowledge that the effective
employee care practices not only strengthen employees’ sense of belonging and happiness but also enhance team cohesion and
work efficiency, thereby achieving a mutually beneficial dynamic for both the Company and its employees.
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“We Fight for the Future and Advance Far Beyond” Team-Building Event

[RITHE HEAR/ZEEZE

Our e-commerce team-building event with the theme “We Fight for the Future and Advance Far Beyond” in March 2024 featured
a variety of team collaboration projects and sharing sessions, which is designed to inspire employees to share their personal work
experiences and insights, and aimed at strengthening communication and cooperation among departmental staff. The event also
relayed our corporate message of employee care while enhancing the team’s cohesion and productivity.

20243 A RMBERMTUAIRITEE  BRARKIATENEHEKERED - KMIXATEZEERSIEEE UK
DERE - HREIHOZEANTELRMNORSE - IR E THAEEEGE  BEIRXIQANEENRE -
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Duel for Ultimate Glory: Honor of King Gaming Competition

[RIBZRE  TEERIBHPKE

The Duel for Ultimate Glory: Honor of King Gaming Competition was held in August 2024 in response to the request of new-
generation employees for team camaraderie and competitive spirit, providing a platform for employees to showcase their individual
abilities and team collaboration. Through meticulously designed competition segments, communication and collaboration among
employees were significantly strengthened, further enhancing team cohesion and injecting new vitality into cultivating a positive
and progressive enterprise culture.

20248 H - HFIBWM T UATRIRBZ 8 - TEEIRI AT ENBEBPKE - IWEHEEERFTERETIHEB A FR
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Badminton Competition
PERLE

We actively promote the concept of sustainability lifestyle by evangelizing about a green and healthy lifestyle through regular
outdoor activities organized for employees. During the reporting period, we organized a badminton competition, where our
employees improved their personal skills and physical fitness while strengthening team collaboration and a sense of collective
honor.

BMERERAHEEERRES  THAKEIZEPINGS  BEBKECREEF IR - HEHA - RMAZKRED
ERLE EEHEIRAMBARKE BRREIFBRENRE - RIECEKITGIFE HEEBRER -

Ee2ne | eanan

Christmas Event
B EE

At our Christmas-themed event organized in December 2024, our employees dressed as Santa Claus would randomly appear
around everyone, distributing confections and bringing a little surprise to all. All employees felt relax, and the team cohesion and
sense of belonging were further enhanced.

FE2024F 128 BHFIER TERGFEED - HEPHHES  HETEHHNEXZASHBLBEARNFE  KE
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Communication with Employees

Effective communication is the foundation for building harmonious
employment relations. We have established robust communication
mechanisms to receive employee suggestions and demands, and provide
timely responses and feedback, so that every employee feels respected and
valued. This environment enables employees to fully unleash their potential
and collectively advance the Group’s development.

=W

™
ante Prads

BTIEE

RN BRRBENBELSHEERNOERN -]
MBRETEENE TEBEG - AETH
BREEFK XRBETORNRE &S
METHEEARFRIINFEE  KME
B EAN R - ARESEREMNERE -

Communication Channels Communication cadence Feedback Mechanism

BIERE

® Formal communication

channels: corporate
meetings, department
meetings, etc,, used to
circulate key information
such as company policies
and project progress
EXBBRRE : RA®
& EPEEE - ARG
ENRIBUR - HEEES
RAREE

Informal communication
channels: employee breaks,
team-building activities,
and internal social
platforms

FEIEBmRE IR
& - EREED - AR
Fh

BREEBARHERAT =%

=

® Ad hoc communication:

contingent on a range of
factors, including project
requirements and
department feedback, work
progress will be reviewed
and future work schedules
will be strategized
TEHER : REBEEBF
K BPIRESEE - BE
TIEER » REIRRO T
&l

BERE

Establish a feedback
mechanism: employees
are encouraged to
communicate their
opinions to their superiors
at any time through
telephone, messages,
WeChat, email, etc.
BYRBKS : SEEE
STRBEF R W
5 BHSHABERR L
REBER

Regular assessment:
regular assessment is
performed over the
effectiveness of the
communication
mechanism, and necessary
adjustments and
optimizations will be
made based on the
assessment results
TEHIETAE - EERIS I
BREETE DR - A
RIBRH AR ETHUED
AN

Employee communication mechanism

B T/amH

P 4F F 3R

Employees’ communica-
tion skills will strength-
ened, covering aspects
such as listening, articulate
expression, and

non-verbal cues
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We place great emphasis on receiving and considering our employees’
opinions and paying close attention to employee satisfaction. We have
designated a fixed date each month as the day for collecting opinions, when
employees may provide their opinions and suggestions on aspects such as
company management, working conditions, and fringe benefit package.
Subsequently, we classify and assess such opinions as collected, and follow
up on the outcomes to ensure that effective suggestions from employees are
implemented.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total staff turnover rate was 35.35%°,
with details of staff turnover set out in the following diagrams:

Employee turnover rate by geographical region (%)

R EE D HIESRKE %)

BMEGERETI LR ZEMIBETRHE

E-BMAREGABEET 1 BERERKRER B
TRAIASTHARER TERE  BHFSE
ETHRHECHNERMERZ RMAEER

W R SRR HETT D JERTHE IEE;EFEIE,\D
MR B TRA DR -

WEHA - NEEE
A

T #8572k 3K A 3535%
T%%%IJ%WF%E’J BT

TREBR :

Staff turnover rate by gender (%)

BUBIBONETREAR %)

50 44.29% 50 37.50%
.59%

0 “ 31.08%

30 30

20 20

o 10.28% i

0 a 0
Number of resigned Number of resigned Male Female
employees in China employees in overseas Elis 7

BRI AR BINBIR AN

Staff turnover rate by age (%)

BREREDPHEITREER (%)
o 47.65%

. 9.02% 11.19%
; - D
Below 40 years old 41 to 50 years old Above 50 years old
A0EBERIAT 41-50/E5% 50@BRA L
Employee Health and Safety ETIREHELZR

We always give top priority to the health and safety of employees, and strive
to provide a safe, healthy, and comfortable working environment for our
employees. In strict compliance with laws and regulations, we have introduced
a health and safety management system. The implementation of policies as
safeguards and practices will ensure the physical and mental well-being of
our employees, allowing them to perform with assurance and thrive in their
personal life.

Staff turnover rate = Number of resigned employees/((number of employees at the beginning

of Reporting Period + number of employees at the end of Reporting Period)/2) * 100%.
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Health and Safety Management

In strict compliance with various laws and regulations in places where we
operate, including the Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, the Safety Training Management Rules, the
Regulations on the Control over Safety of Dangerous Chemicals and the Health
& Safety at Work Act 2015 of New Zealand, we formulate and perfect our
internal institutional documents, including the Safety Education and Training
System, the Administrative Rules for Special Positions, the Administrative
Rules for Employee Health and Sanitation, the Mould Management Rules,
the Management Rules for Cleaning Tools, the Management Rules for Use of
Containers, and the Management System for the Purchase, Use and Storage
of Explosive Chemicals, whereby enhancing the safety management level and
safeguarding employee safety and health.

We place the health of our employees at the forefront, arranging health
certificates for all new employees and making health check-up plans to ensure
their well-being is safeguarded. We regularly conduct occupational safety
hazard monitoring and furnish personal protective equipment to employees,
in which case certain employees will receive blankets to improve their living
conditions. By continuing to strengthen our employee health and safety
management, we are well positioned to deliver a safe, healthy, and comfortable
working environment that safeguard their physical and mental health.

In 2024, Good Health continued to focus on employee health by providing
annual flu vaccines and comprehensive health insurance to support
employees’ well-being and promote a work-life balance. Furthermore, Good
Health plans to introduce health screening services to help employees
understand their health conditions in a timely manner.

During the Reporting Period, the lost days due to work injury was 22 working
days. In the past three years, the Group has not identified any work-related
fatalities.
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Culture of Health and Safety

The Group adheres to the principles of “safety first, prevention as a priority,
and comprehensive governance”, aiming to enhance employees’ safety
awareness, strengthen safety responsibilities, and prevent and minimize safety
incidents. We are committed to building a comprehensive safety training
system, by establishing the Safety Education Training System, which clarifies
the objectives, content, methods, and assessment standards for safety training,
thereby providing a systematic framework for our safety training efforts.

We provide targeted safety training for employees in different positions and
at different levels to ensure that the training content is closely aligned with
their actual work. We continue to strengthen safety training efforts to enhance
employees’ safety literacy and skills, while creating a safe and healthy working
environment for them. Meanwhile, our regular emergency drills are organized
to improve employees’ emergency response capabilities that will safeguard
their safety. Sinolife United and Living Nature conduct annual fire emergency
drills to ensure that all employees possess emergency response knowledge
and capabilities. Good Health organizes biannual emergency drills to familiarize
employees with emergency evacuation procedures, enabling them to
taking swift actions in emergency situations. During the reporting period, we
conducted a total of 8 safety drills, achieving a 94.76% coverage rate for health
and safety training.
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Safety Training and Emergency Drills

ZEEIIRERR

Sinolife United

Sinolife United's safety training session for all employees in December 2024 covered various aspects such as safety operating
procedures, emergency drill exercises, and the identification of “missing persons” clues, which was aimed at enhancing employees’
safety awareness and operational skills, effectively improving emergency response speed and team collaboration capabilities.

FAEBE
20245 127 PABSABHREZEZBETINZ 2B RELRERFERE  BSERER SHIARABIR
REZETH FERSEIREEH LE2RERE  BRERESEREEMBE K GIEELD -

Living Nature

During the reporting period, Living Nature organized a series of training sessions and emergency drills to raise employees’ safety
consciousness in operating procedures. For instance Living Nature focused on providing specialized training tailored to laboratory
staff on the storage and safe handling of 70% ethanol, encompassing processes such as dispensing, distribution, and storage. This
ensured the proper storage of ethanol and eliminated potential safety hazards. Through systematic training and drills, the Company
further reinforced employees’ adherence to safety protocols and enhanced the safety management standards of the laboratory.

Living Nature

WMEHA - Living Nature BIR A B TR L2 REEH  ABFAERIEIIREZERIH - HEEBREE T © Living
Nature BEEEFRE 70% LB R L 2REFI - BESE  PRENBEFERE BRLBNEZEFN  HEBZE2RE -
BBESCHFIMNER  E— PR EEINTR2IRERE  BAEREL2ETIEAKFE -

Good Health

During the reporting period, Good Health organized special occupational health and safety training activities. As for forklift operators
that require license renewal, we conducted specific training sessions on forklift safety operations, hazard identification, and
compliance requirements so that all operators fulfil safety standards. Such arrangement reduced the risk of workplace accidents.

Meanwhile, Good Health provided recurrent training for all first-aid personnel, covering the latest first aid procedures, CPR, wound
management, and emergency response techniques. This training aimed to enhance on-site emergency preparedness, ensuring
that employees receive timely and effective care in emergency situations.
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UNITY: PROMOTE COMMUNITY PROSPERITY

We consistently believe that our growth depends upon societal support, and
giving back to society is our indispensable responsibility. We actively uphold
our corporate social responsibility by integrating philanthropic values into our
business development, and strive to grow alongside our communities, as a
contributor to community prosperity.

Community Engagement

A company is more than a generator of social wealth, as it shall undertake
social responsibility. We have incorporated philanthropy and charity into our
corporate identity, thereby actively fulfilling our social responsibilities, and
constantly taking heartwarming actions across society. We strive to become
a company with compassion and a strong sense of responsibility. During the
reporting period, the Group contributed a total of RMB6,021 to charitable
endeavors.

Good Health Employee Fundraising to Support Cancer Association
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During the reporting period, we organized a fundraising event to support a cancer association, aiming to raise funds for cancer
research, prevention projects, and support services. A total of 70 employees participated in the event, and gifts were given to the

employees who made donations.
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Living Nature conveys care and support through tangible actions, working
hand in hand with the community to create a better future. In 2024, Living
Nature actively participated in community building by providing product
sponsorships for a series of local community events, as part of our community
engagement, which facilitated close interaction and deep support with the
community while further solidifying the brand’s positive image.

Kerikeri Klassic Car Show Prize Sponsorship
Products were placed in prize packs for a lucky draw to raise funds for
the local community, aiming to provide club members with an enjoyable
and surprising experience.

Whangaroa Fishing Tournament Sponsorship
Products were provided in prize packs for the fishing club’s raffle activity,
conveying our brand’s care for and support of society.

Book Publisher Sponsorship
Gift bags were provided as samples for the book launch by Youth Food
E £ ) and the new book release by the magazine Nature, showcasing
our brand’s effectiveness.

Rescue Helicopter Fundraising Campaign
At the Northland Rescue Helicopters Fundraising Campaign, Nature

Living ( B A& )&) donated prizes for the fundraising auction to support
the Northland rescue helicopter services.
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The Group actively engages in community welfare and charitable activities,
and participates in community development, by providing volunteer services,
focusing on community progress, and caring for community residents. These
concrete actions demonstrate our heartwarming care. Living Nature supports
various charitable fundraising activities through product donations, actively
promoting the development of a healthy culture among socially vulnerable
groups.

Heart Foundation Fundraising Campaign

Living Nature donated gift bags made from its products for the Heart
Foundation'’s charity event to raise funds.

Mid-North Hospice Care Centre Fundraising Campaign
Living Nature donated products to promote the (Real) House tour,
raising funds for the Mid-North Hospice Care Centre.

Women's Fitness Centre Sponsorship

A local women'’s fitness center received on-site sponsorship from Living
Nature.

Women's Lifestyle Expo Sponsorship

Living Nature donated handbags for the Women'’s Lifestyle Expo.
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APPENDIX CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT GUIDE OF THE

HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)
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Chapter
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A. Environmental
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Al: Emissions

Al BER)

General disclosure  Information on

—REE

ARPEBARNDARRQA

(@  thepolicies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land

and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

AHBERIOBERBHR  MAKRIMNES BEREEEEY

HEEFH

@ BE K

b)) EFTHETABEAZENRWEZNROINER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

PR R A R EUR

Direct and energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

BERRERAEAEREBHREREE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELEERENRENTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELEEBRRNBERTE

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

BRIV MAME R R R AREEL B RARBRN SR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HWIRBAEREZREENONE BRI INRERERS
ERIE L B R RERN ) F5R

ZE O FFR

ECOLOGICAL COMMITMENT:
NURTURING WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT
FRES - EREHK

Emissions Compliance
BB

Response to Climate Change
FEHRIRE

Emissions Compliance
BB

Emissions Compliance
BB

Environmental Target
Response to Climate Change
REAR

EHREZ (L
Environmental Target
Emissions Compliance
RERE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE dEREAERE-REBERBRENER(KP)

Chapter
FrEE

A2:Use of Resources  General disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other

A2 BIREA

A2

A22

A23

A24

A25

A3:The environment  General disclosure

and natural —MEE
resources
A3 TRER
AAER
A3.1

A4:Climate Change ~ General disclosure

B8

A RIREL

A4

\r“,df
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—REE

raw materials.
BRERER(BEER KREMERME)HBEK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total and intensity

RENESNERR/IEELR(NE - R0k BREREE
Water consumption in total and intensity

BREKEREE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

HATET R RE AR B R R AEDEL B ERERRAN TR
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HUCKEGE A/KR SR AR - DARPTET A K B R R
REIELR RIS R

Total packaging material used for finished products and, with reference to per
unit produced

HkmrAREMHNBERGEESNEE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BEBRTAHRERRNEREREATEOUR -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
HOEBEHURERARERNEATERERREEFHT 2
0178

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
%ﬂ&ﬁﬁaﬁ AR BT AELYENEARKEBREEN
R

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to manage
them.

EPINREY Ok
7% -

TAEEVENEARGHBEE - REH

ECOLOGICAL COMMITMENT:
NURTURING WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT
HRED - BBRIEHX
Response to Climate Change

EHRRE

Use of Resources
BREA
Response to Climate Change

EHREEL

Environmental Target
Use of Resources
REER
BRER

Use of Resources

BIRER

ECOLOGICAL COMMITMENT:
NURTURING WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT

HEES BIRIFEHAK

Environmental Target

Use of Resources

Emissions Compliance
REER

BRER

ARBER

Response to Climate Change

EYARE

Response to Climate Change

EHRRE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B dE8RELAHERE-REERBREREEKP)

Chapter
FrEZE

B. Social

B.4 &

Employment and
Labour Practices

EEREIER

B1:Employment

B1 : B

B2:Health and Safety  General disclosure

B2: BERHELE

General disclosure  Information on

B8

B1.2

—REE

B2.1

B2.2

B23

ARPEBARNDARRQA

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare.

RRHMLRE BERES  LESHE BRY - TE#e  Zrit-

RIS AR A B E At 5 38 T A 9

@ HEK

b)) BFHBTAREAZENRWEZRRONEH -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

region

BRI ERER  FRAMNEEADHNES AR

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

BRI FRAMN S RE S HNESREALE

Information on

(@  thepolicies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

ARREZ2IEREMREEERCBENEN:

@ HEK

b) BETHETAREATENRBERRROOEH -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three

years

RBE=FBFRITHOAZ KL%

Lost days due to work injury

RAIBELXIERR

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored

HRFMRANBEREEL 2HER - AREBRRTRERTE

ZE O FFR

CONNECTIVITY: ADVANCING
TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
BN BRTHRT

Employee Employment

ETRE

Employee Employment
ETER

Employee Health and Safety
BETREARE

Employee Health and Safety
BEIREEZE

Employee Health and Safety
BEIRFEERZS
Employee Health and Safety
BIRFEELZE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE dEREAERE-REBERBRENER(KP)

Chapter
FrEE

B3:Developmentand General disclosure  Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties

Training
B3 : R KIFH
B3.1

B32

B4: Labour Standards  General disclosure

B4 - & TR —REE
B4.1
B4.2
Operating Practices
LERH
B5:Supply Chain
Management —MRiRE
B : R E R
B5.1
B5.2
B53
B54
\r“,df
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—REE

General disclosure

at work. Description of training activities.

ABRMEERTIERE N MERRAENEUR - HBIEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

RUERIREESERESNXIEER DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee Category

BRI REBERIE D

Information on

(@  the policies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BHM FE T k55 TH -

@ BER: K

b) BFHETABEAZENRWEZRROINER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and

- BAREB TR TR

forced labour
HillRE REENEEABEET REHST
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

R AERERBREERERBERARRN SR

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain.

ERMEENRERCERBBOE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region

BB DR EFEE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

HAEBEARERNEN mANTEREMNNHEHHE - U
REBEPNITREERE

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

A BB RS ERONRE Rt e mENEH - ARG
WITREERE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HIAEREHERREEZRRRERRRBHOEN - URBEHR
TRERRE

Employee Development
BIHRE

Employee Development
BT#R
Employee Development
BEIHR

Employee Employment

ETIER

Employee Employment

ETIER

Employee Employment

ETER

Supply Chain Management
HERER

Supply Chain Management
HERER
Supply Chain Management
HERER

Supply Chain Management
HERER

Supply Chain Management
e R
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BE dERERHERE-

REERBRERER KP)

Chapter
FrEZE

B6: Product

Responsibility  —AR 4% &
Bo: EmATE
B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5

B7: Anti-corruption

B7: k&S —B K=
B7.1
B72
B73
ERFEBARNDERAR

General disclosure

General disclosure  Information on

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and methods of redress.

FHMREERNBENREER S  BS BREKMEBFENUR

BROTER -

@ HE K

b)) BFHBTAREAZENRWEZRROINEH -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons

PENCDERERBHTRAR T ERFEMMACKNE S

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they

are dealt with

ERERERRRBORFHE AREYFE

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights

HEAERRENAEREFBNEN

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

HlEERTAERERRKER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored

HIUEBEBRHRE RILBER - UREENTRER S Z

Information on

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
REAVLLEE HR - BEFERERES
@ HER: R

b)) BETFTHBETAREATENEBERRROGER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of
the cases
RESHNEBTASHERREYEEANETHRARMHOHE
SEENEES

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

il EEE R ERET - LRBERTRERAZ

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff

M EESRE TRENREFE

— T NFEFR

PRODUCT STRENGTH
EMBRACING HEALTH AND
HARMONY
Emf-ARRERE

Quality Assurance
BERE

Service System

AR5 e %

Innovation Research

BT

Quality Assurance
EERE
Service System

R %

Operating Compliance
BREE

Operating Compliance
ARgE

Operating Compliance
aRgE

Operating Compliance
aRgE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE dEREAERE-REBERBRENER(KP)

Chapter
FrEE

Community
=HE
B8:Community General disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the need of the
Investment —MEE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
B : HEIRE the communities’ interests.
BFRUMEZ2ERTREEMEHEZENHRRAZBEDEZE
& AR B HUCE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution
EIEREE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focused area
EEISGEMBHAER

N
Qi

WITH PHILANTHROPY AT
HEART, WE SHARE OUR

BENEFITS WITH SOCIETY
RERD - At g

Community Engagement
HE2HE
Community Engagement
HE2E
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BET RS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EYzx

To the shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 164 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

REETEE

BRETEE
BREAZTEDNRERMAZIEEHE BRI
PRGN BERRZEBFPREEZSE
B EETERBEMEREMERETERE
THRFUHUFERBEMZERFER - &M
THZETHEHREIERER U TRES
B E - BRI CREF P 2 Tt a0 B
BRZEIE -

BIMEIT RS D EBADFT A7 A BFHE
ZEME—Hifi e BEE BREEZEFFEE
AE- At RAZEARRETEERY
BPIEERE M ISR E R RR AR 2 5F
BEF - - RABFREFZER BRRERE
WTEEMETZERF  RERMAREHES
MBRR BT B RIREER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzEtnNEERRESER

Impairment of goodwill

BEe R E

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded goodwill of RMB53,618,000
before provisions for impairment of RMB23,595,000.

M2024512A31H - EXEHEEHE /AR 53618000 7T RN
B 8 A R % 23,595,0007T) °

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the
Group is required to perform impairment tests for goodwill annually and
whenever there is an indication that a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which
these assets have been allocated may be impaired. Management performed
impairment tests on these assets by using future discounted cash flow
models as at 31 December 2024. This was considered as a key audit matter
because the assessment was complex, and it involved significant judgements
and assumptions such as the long-term growth rate and discount rate.
REEBGHLENFE0RIEERE] - EEBRATFIRETR
BRESPEMENEHMEENReELEU (REEELEMN]) ATEE
AR B EITRERR - R2024F12A31H - BERERARK
MRBEeREAHZEEEETRAENR BARTERAER ¥
NEMRPERENBBERNEZHE RER SR RERE
FTEIE-

The related disclosures are set out in notes 2.4, 3 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HERRESEN G BRRME24 - 3R16°

<
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We evaluated the processes and key controls of
the Group over the assessment on impairment of
goodwill. We reviewed the basis of preparation
of the forecasts used for the impairment
tests for goodwill. We involved our internal
valuation specialist to assist us in reviewing the
methodology and certain assumptions adopted
in the assessment of impairment of goodwill. We
also reviewed management’s assessment of the
sensitivity of the Group's impairment model to
reasonably possible changes and considered the
adequacy of the disclosures of impairment testing
in the consolidated financial statements.

B EEEYURENREFHORIE
Ko F EHEH o F AP 2 B 2 a0 Rl &R ST A
TR A R AL - AP TRE A RBEEZE R
MHEMEH M ERETEMRAN T ERE
TRX -HZMATERHNEREEY SS£BERE
BAKSEAREPNHBUENTIRLEZE
FeEMBEHRRAMEBEARBENTRIE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEEITER

BEESEE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAZETNNEERRETER

Net realisable value of inventories

FHE A B FEE
As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded inventories of RMB119,085,000.
Management judgements and estimates are required in assessing whether
the carrying value is higher than the net realisable value ("NRV") of the
inventories on hand at the year end, especially of those slow-moving
inventories which may become obsolete.

R2024F 12 A31H - EEBEHEFE AR 1190850007  REHE
EEE?“ETEE’JEEE@ TERAERFE(TERFEE]) LH
AIRERN ABRMEHETER  F2EAEIRE HE MEsT -

Significant judgements and estimates are also required in determining
the write-down of inventories to NRV, which involves management'’s
expectations of the forecast inventory sales and usage and the estimated
selling price of inventories based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. Therefore, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

BEEFEMRER ZRFER TAFELERAE kG - PRERE
BREBMARMERUEEERMNBELCRUFTEZHERN

FREERTEAREGRTESE - Bt - BMRLTEABHEETEE -
The related disclosures are set out in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HEEESRNFRE MR ERWF24 3 K180

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR

We evaluated the design and implementation of
management’s controls over the assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. We obtained
an understanding of the Group's inventory
provision policy and checked the calculation of the
inventory provision based on the Group’s policy.
We evaluated management’s assumptions used
to calculate the provision by checking the ageing
of inventories, subsequent sales and usage of
inventories on a sampling basis. We also checked
the subsequent selling prices to the sales orders
and invoices on a sampling basis.
B EEEHFE A&
HHRARERE - R THE E5EEFER
ﬁftﬁz”*jﬁﬁﬁﬁ EEBEBRREFERRED

cHMBEBMEST A ERTFENRE
ﬁ SR ERELERERTHEEER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBETHRE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

<
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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B ZBETHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CON
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SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

mmunicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
anned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
ing any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
dit.

so provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

action
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s taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ho Wai Ling.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEkEMZERER

Year ended 31 December 2024 #EE2024512 A31 B ILEE

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M2 AR¥T ARET T
REVENUE Wz 5 747,898 563,959
Cost of sales $HE KA (209,630) (184,302)
Gross profit E A 538,268 379,657
Other income and gains = NS & 5 6,727 8,474
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MAS X (408,621) (249,962)
Administrative expenses THBRX (88,603) (72,222)
Finance costs B & AR AR 7 (3,390) (3,280)
Other expenses HEMAEx (3,499) (4574)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B 5 A g ) 6 40,882 58,093
Income tax expense FRS R 2 10 (6,320) (5/491)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REZ 5 34,562 52,602
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME H ftb 2T (E518), A
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that ~ REER BB G ET HEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BEmEM2E (BB)
subsequent periods, after tax: WA - BRFiI%
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBNEL Z5E
of foreign operations (18,536) 1,667
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFEEREBAERE
FOR THE YEAR 16,026 54,269
Profit attributable to: T &IBREERF
Owners of the parent BRBEE A 34,562 52,602
Total comprehensive income NTEIEEGEEE
attributable to: LN Ll
Owners of the parent ISINCIEF=DN 16,026 54,269
RMB A K ¥ RMB A R #&
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE R ARZEERZFTEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhaERER
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted AR RS 12 3.65 cents 2 5.56 cents 73

‘
Ry
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE L&A 13 80,416 72,126
Investment properties "EME 14 57,256 71,725
Right-of-use assets EREAE 15 37,117 37428
Goodwill [EES 16 30,023 32,981
Other intangible assets HEthmEEE 17 912 3,083
Deferred tax assets EEFIREE 25 12,288 12,562
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 214 -
Total non-current assets ERBEELRT 218,226 229,905
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 5E 18 119,085 108,861
Trade receivables B 5 MW IR 19 41,902 32,511
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - ZE R
other receivables H A fE W R IR 20 21,814 16,386
Restricted cash SRHIRE 21 = 200
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 21 104,530 117,556
Total current assets REEESE 287,331 275,514
Total assets BESBE 505,557 505,419
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Trade payables B 5 T FIA 2 12,750 33,147
Other payables and accruals HEMENMFIAERERTEA 23 44,145 38,297
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 4,286 4143
Tax payables R 2 7,958 6,464
Total current liabilities BB R 69,139 82,051
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 218,192 193,463
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERTBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 436,418 423,368
o i
§N,V

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRIR R

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTIT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 29,615 31,020
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBAE 25 11,968 13,468
Provision B 24 739 811
Total non-current liabilities EREB B ERE 42,322 45299
Net assets EEFE 394,096 378,069
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BARBEE ABEER
of the parent
Share capital &z 26 94,630 94,630
Reserves & 27 299,466 283,439
Total equity EniEE 394,096 378,069
Gui Pinghu Zhang Yuan
T KRR
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
EERFHITESE BRENTE#RHITESE
N/
QW
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
GEERBEXR

Year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEANES

Exchange  Statutory
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus
capital reserve reserve reserve

EikE AERRK
Rx  EAEE ikt B AORE  EfRE e RAHR aRs

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Asset
Merger Other revaluation Accumulated Total
reserve reserve reserve** losses equity

EEEf

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTE ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR AR%TR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR AR%TR

(note 26) (note 27) (note 27)
(Wt2e)  (Wriar) (Wz27)
At 1 January 2024 R04E1 1R 94,630 544,223* (4666)*  55902*
Profit for the year REE R = = S -
Exchange differences on translation & B2 &GN E TR
of foreign operations ERZER - - (18,535) =

(note 27) (note 27)
(Wa27)  (Wz27)

(3,871)* (2,022)% 12,972% (319,099)* 378,069
- - - 34,562 34,562

= = = = (18,535)

Total comprehensive income FEE2AMALE

for the year - - (18,535) - - - - 34,562 16,027
At 31 December 2024 R204E1A3E 94,630 544,223* (23,201)* 55,902* (3,871)% (2,022)* 12,972% (284,537)% 394,096
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB299,466,000 (2023:  * I EFERE BEEE MR ARRNNERS i

RMB283,439,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*%

** The asset revaluation reserve arose from change in use from owner-occupied properties to
investment properties carried at fair value.

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR

5 A %5 299,466,000 7T (2023 F A R ¥ 283,439,000
JT) e

AESHHEBEARBETIOAVNEEERERER
DRAEFIRZHEMEMES
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Year ended 31 December 2024 #EE2024512 A31 B ILEE

Exchange Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus lerg Other Accumulated Total

capita\ reserve €Serve (SIS Serv reserve /e losses EQUW

At January 2023 R03%1 818 94630 544223* (6,333) 55,902 (3871) (20227 12972* (371,701)* 323800
Profit for the year REF R - - - - - - - 52602 52602
Exchange differences on translation & B2 B /G E TR

of foreign operations ERZER - - 1667 - - - - - 1667

Total comprehensive income FEERAMAEE
for the year - - 1667 - - - - 52602 54,269

At 31 December 2023 R03F128318 94,630 544,223* (4,060 55902% (3871) (2022 12972* (319,099 378,069

N/
o7
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12 A31HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REEHHREGRNE

2024
2024 5

RMB’000
AR®T

2023
2023 5
RMB'000
ARBFIT

Profit before tax B % A A 40,882 58,093
Adjustments for: BTYEBEELAE
Finance costs BhE P AR 7 3,390 3,280
Bank interest income RITHAEHA 5 (1,365) (852)
Depreciation of property, W BERREBETE
plant and equipment 13 9,228 8,639
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE 15 3,091 3,066
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEMhmpEEgs 17 1,995 2,006
Changes in fair value of investment BWEMEZ ANREEY
properties 14 912 1,229
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE R H R
equipment 6 - (864)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e —fFEME A A - ©1)
Write-down of inventories to Mo FEEr] B FE
net realisable value 6 3,312 2,986
Impairment loss of trade and B 5 REAMEWFIBRESRE
other receivables 19 759 279
62,204 78177
Increase in inventories FEIEM (23,694) (34,183)
Increase in pledged deposits, prepayments, B EFFR - BAHIE - 1
deposits and other receivables K2 HL A [ W SR IE A8 A0 (5,438) (186)
Decrease in restricted cash ZREIRE WD 200 1,150
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE W R IAE BN (13,397) (4,387)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B SR FHIECR), 1N (18,449) 10,820
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HMENRIERETER
and accruals a0, Cad) 5,974 (4,282)
Cash generated from operations LEMSES 7,400 47,109
Income tax paid BEAFEHE (6,443) -
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBREHRSNEFE 957 47,109
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBRENE
Payments to acquire property, plant and WY - RE kR ERRIE
equipment (7,609) (2,345)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEREZBTEHRIE
plant and equipment 243 1,971
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE— B AR B HRIEFE - (30)
Interest received 2 U F & 1,366 853
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing ®EES (FTA)/ FBHE:
activities mEFEE (6,000) 449
Y

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2024 #EE2024512 A31 B ILEE

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 5

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®TRE ARETE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bt E)EBIRERE

Interest paid EAF A 28 (3,390) (3,280)
Principal portion of lease payments HENZFA2HBS 28 (1,141) (1,218)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REESFABSREFE (4,531) (4,498)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND HeMBEeEBYWORD), 1

CASH EQUIVALENTS pIlIDE:2=E] (9,574) 43,060
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F {138 & K& IR & EEW 117,557 73,391
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [ER BB & - F58 (3,453) 1,106
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAS KRS ZHEY

AT END OF YEAR 104,530 117,557

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND CASH R4 NMIR& S EBWE DT

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE S 21 95,937 104,381
Non-pledged time deposits with original W REBI AR A =18 A AR
maturity of less than three months Y A 1R E HA TR R
when acquired 21 8,593 13,176
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RenERMIEE K
in the statement of cash flows ReFEEY 104,530 117,557
N/
QW
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a joint stock limited liability company established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The address of its registered
office is 4/F, Building 3, 3 Qingma Road, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu

Province, the PRC.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nutritional supplements and health food products in the PRC, Australia

and New Zealand.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2024 are as follows:

HRPEEMHARAE

ArREeE (ER)ERAF

Australia Cobayer Health Food Co

Pty Ltd.

LERERREEERRAF

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/
date of incorporation
or establishment/

type of legal entity

A 11 B S 2K AR 3L 3t B R
R MR
R BH/;

The PRC

17 June 2003

Limited liability company
FE

2003F 6 H17H
BRAE

The PRC

6 May 2021

Limited liability company
FE

202155H6H
BRAR

Australia

2 March 2009

Limited liability company
BRI

20093 A2H
BRAA

The PRC

21 October 2014
Limited liability company
F
2014104218
BRAT

ZE N FFR

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

EHERE
EmEA

RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,000 70

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T

AUD2,000

2,00038 7T

RMB120,000,000

AR ¥ 120,000,000 7T

RAREEEHR
RRARTIRAEARKME ([RE)) K
SHBBERAT - M ERILI R
RETHRAEE RN MEES S K3R3
HiE4E o

AEEFELEFE - BAFTRATES
HEREARBEEEERRBRE IR
fERM -

EFBEMBARZESR
MR2024F12A31BARARARIETEWHER
Al FBT -

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company
AR E S
ZADH

Direct

Principal

Indirect  activities

BE BiE FEXK

100% - Manufacture, processing and

sale of health food products;
industrial property leasing

HE - MIRHEFRERR:
IXYMERE

100% - Retailing of health food

products

TERRRR

100% - Trading of food products

EmES

100% - Investment holding

REZR

/
wi?
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B EE

31 December 2024 2024412 H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREBER (E)

(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

FENB AR ZER (&)
Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/
date of incorporation
or establishment/

type of legal entity

SE M AR SRR 3 3t B K%
REmE MRS
BB, EAER

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AAEEEER
ZADL

Direct

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

Principal

Indirect  activities

BRRRE
HMEAR HE FES

EREK

Good Health Products Limited New Zealand NZD2,200,002 - 100%  Manufacture, processing and
("GHP") 22 December 1987 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
Good Health Products it | 2,200,002 At A RE T EE-MIREERERH
Limited ([ GHPJ) 198712 A28
BRAE
Living Nature Natural Products New Zealand NZD14,784,444 100% - Manufacture, and sale of
Limited ("LN") 1987 cosmetics and skincare
Limited liability company products
Living Nature Natural Products i) | 14,784,444 4 FH 8 7T HEERBEEALRES D
Limited ([LN ) 1987 F
BRAA
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION Q1 RBEE

ZEMBHHRRIBREELSEAMAE
((EBEMAE]) BHENEEMK
SEA((BBMBHRELEL) (B85
PEERMBHREEA  FEEEA
(BEBEFEA) KRB UEREER
AGRPIMHBERERE - ZFMBEHEK
TRESRKAEPIRE R A ER
ENREMERI - ZFEFHRRAA
RE27 MERIESEERIN ABEH
BENEEREON T -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

N/
o7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 RBE%E ()

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

— T _FEFR

BHtEE
BAVBHRERBEARRREKBAR]
(ZBAIRER]) REZE2024F12 8
AL FEZHEREK - B AR IR
TEE@@F‘?&% FIMBEE (BEERE
MEE) EAEE %ﬂ,,\%ﬂi&éﬁ
ﬁﬁ%ﬁjﬁﬁéﬁﬁ """"" BER - AR
BRERIRE NN EZEB R (A
RAERMNE T ALEE B AT RERES
FRRDEEIRIRE S ) B - BB AT HIHE

R—RBRTEEEL S8R EER AT
FlEZHTE BEARARAEBENRIZER
RERSBLERN D KK - BIFHEZ
BHEBHBREFTNENS  AEEE
ZRMEMEBEERER B4

@ HEWRETHNEMBRERBEEZ
BH A R % B

() WHMERZHRGSHNES K
(C) Z’S%.E’JTXWE’E&/% ?X?JT

P /B8 2~ A B 7 R T DR B AR X B — B
BEMR ST HRREE -MEBAREE
ME AN ARBESHZEWME QA
ISR > WIERAEERKXERH
2 il 2 B

BaMEMEmBANSEAKED R
BRASEGRARNERARIFERE

o AME R EOHT R S A B AL

e MESBARFMNEERRARE

B WA X REANEERKE AT

ZF‘??&%EE@E’\JEEH/;mEi’jBC??\/\BEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B EE

31 December 2024 2024412 H31H

2.1

2.2

174

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling interest and
the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the “2020 Amendments’)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

N/
o7

2.1

2.2

R E % ()

AP E%E (M)

78 B B RIERBR £ XAt = Hi% 6
FERN—ERSAERAE(L A%HE
FEMTEAETRRRES - ¥ &
REEHRNI B AR RS
PABR AR 32 55 A o

el 75 52 [ 2K = TP /BB 2 A AV #E )  - Bl
RILERNREE (BERE)  8F -
E) SRR 25 S B 3L M B e s ¢+ Q0B
RATREBEMIREN R ERBERT
EEEELENBSRLEL - EAER
Ht 2 HRA AR AN EE R D
EFOBEREIREEN (WER)
AEEAEEERNERBEEERERE
P Z SR AR o

BERERKESS

AEBRAFEPRBHRRERRMBAT
RIEFTR A BREER

ERUBRELED EAHONHEEERRE
F6RERTA
EReHENE 1% BESHEER
BRIA HIETE
(12020 13T 1)
EREHERE 1% HEZEY
CHEN I rBERE
([2022 & 158%T )
ERSHENE IR HEBRELH

RERBMBERSE
RRIF7RIEFTA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

R R R A B

ERMNERRA T

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and leaseback
transactions with variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate occurring from the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as
an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its
classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its
liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and concluded that the
classification of its liabilities as current or non-current remained
unchanged upon initial application of the amendments.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure
of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the
amendments are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements
on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
As the Group does not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

— T _FEFR

4

WL

CHESE

22 S BERKESE (F)

MHmERAOEE LT E

FommT

(a)

FREMBHRELEAE 16BN
RIRES — AEARGEERED
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EEMEERERZERNE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEER
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that REBIWARRAMBHRETFEATIE
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. PEAD B 1A R AR T R] R HERT B S
The Group intends to apply these new and revised HKFRSs, if applicable, B EER] c REEBNZEHMA MK
when they become effective. & 5T 8 78 B 15 4 45 2 BI) AR R T LA FE R
(WEMA) -
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial REMBREENE R FEEXNZIRRE
Statements’
HKFRS 19 Subsidliaries without Public Accountability: BEMBRELENE 9% FARTHEANNELA:
Disclosures® i
Amendments to HKFRS9and ~ Amendments to the Classification and BEMBREENEOR LHIASBRIENE
HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial Instruments? REERBEEER
FIRETE
Amendments to HKFRS 9and ~ Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent BRNBRERMEIR FRABEREENEIH
HKFRS 7 Electricity’ REERGREER AH?
FIRETA
Amendments to HKFRS 10and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BEMBREENE 0% REFHAABE N AY
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* RERGHENFERY. AEFPEZEY
EHE EEHELKAN
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’ BEQHENE R CHEY wLIEr
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, BRI BIEES BEUBRERNE R
HKFRS Accounting Standards ~ HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72 B ERIE RN E EERBRERAETR
— Volume 11 —Z1E BB BREERAE IR -

BRMBREERE 0%
REREGIEAETRE

Mg
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 1 20251 A1 B3z 1% A8 E B A
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 2 2026 1 A1 B3k 18 56 B9 6 [E B A
3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 : 2027 F 1V AV Z B BIANEE R A
R R

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption ! 1) R T XE 58 il AE 2 B AR - {B AT AR

N/

o
"4‘1’,4
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CHEMGENKRERZE BT B

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. While
a number of sections have been brought forward from HKAS 1 with
limited changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation
within the statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and expenses within
the statement of profit or loss into one of the five categories: operating,
investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations and to
present two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures about
management-defined performance measures in a single note and
introduces enhanced requirements on the grouping (aggregation and
disaggregation) and the location of information in both the primary
financial statements and the notes. Some requirements previously
included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As a consequence of the
issuance of HKFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments
are made to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are
minor consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application
permitted. Retrospective application is required. The Group is currently
analysing the new requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS 18
on the presentation and disclosure of the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced disclosure
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and
presentation requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end of
the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have public accountability
and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares
consolidated financial statements available for public use which comply
with HKFRSs. Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is a listed
company, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are considering the application of HKFRS 19 in
their specified financial statements.

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR

HEER (F)

BRABHBERRARENZEET LY
B EERE - S EREADT -

BBV HHREEF 18R E SR
BRNFEI1RUBREZZZS - ERFTZ
BT EEA S ENE R EL
ERE) - BB BEHREERF 1855
AREZERNZEY AT BIEEE
BERNE - BEBARBEERAMEK
ANMBASZ P BEAUNTHEERZ — &
ERE CRE SBREkERIELERE
X% WEIMEHRA TR /NG - EF
MEFREBHM P HREEEERT
MERFFTE WEFEHHRE LT
PRER DA (ERRFD) R BERT
EEBRIEER AR HN BB ERE
TR ETHREEEREF BT 2L
FYRMBIIHE B 1A EERIER
FIF(EFmRAD BT ELFESHL
BHEZEEHAE) BHRBEHEEY
B ERERE 185  BESFTERET
RHEETEX  BEEFENFEBRE
BREF B S G T AR 345 RIS 7
REMELBRERZERNIESE < It
GN - B BB B 75 R AE R IR VE AR R
RS E] - BN FME LR F 1857
N HME BT @RS R 2 BEEFTR
2027 F1TR1B 2 FABMFE A
W RTIRFEA WEBMERS -
REERERZEFHRTEHETON A
FHEE A BEHREEAF 18R EAEEH
PHmER 2V RBEBRNTE -

BAEMBRELEBFI19EATEERE
BB IZE ACE RO RERT - AN
JERHE BB ERELER 2R - 51
ELZINRE - BFTEER  RNIREH
K EBERALRBETBRELERBFEI105]
BEHBHRAAE2MB AT - Bl
ENANRTTET  UREHEES —FRE
EEPEREENRRAIEARFERZ
REMBERRMOSG R E (R P HEIEZE
[ RE]) c nFREER - ARAA—
B EMAR MERFARZEAES
IR EERFE19RMER - KRFE
FHEBAREEEBEAEENERE
ﬁ%%w%ﬁ@ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%°

»ﬁ#

&

177




Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B EE

31 December 2024 2024412 H31H

178

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the date on which a
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised and introduce an
accounting policy option to derecognise a financial liability that is
settled through an electronic payment system before the settlement
date if specified criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to
assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
environmental, social and governance and other similar contingent
features. Moreover, the amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying financial assets with non-recourse features and contractually
linked instruments. The amendments also include additional disclosures
for investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial instruments with contingent
features. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with an
adjustment to opening retained profits (or other component of equity)
at the initial application date. Prior periods are not required to be
restated and can only be restated without the use of hindsight. Earlier
application of either all the amendments at the same time or only the
amendments related to the classification of financial assets is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity clarify the application of the “own-use” requirements
for in-scope contracts and amend the designation requirements for a
hedged item in a cash flow hedging relationship for in-scope contracts.
The amendments also include additional disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to understand the effects these contracts have on
an entity’s financial performance and future cash flows. The amendments
relating to the own-use exception shall be applied retrospectively. Prior
periods are not required to be restated and can only be restated without
the use of hindsight. The amendments relating to the hedge accounting
shall be applied prospectively to new hedging relationships designated on
or after the date of initial application. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 shall be applied at the same time.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by
the HKICPA. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether a
currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it shall estimate
a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when exchangeability is
lacking. The amendments require disclosures of information that enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact of a currency not
being exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying
the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or to the cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial
application. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 set
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7 (and the accompanying Guidance
on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as
follows:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments
have updated certain wording in paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and
paragraphs IG1, 1G14 and I1G20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or achieving consistency
with other paragraphs in the standard and/or with the concepts
and terminology used in other standards. In addition, the
amendments clarify that the Guidance on implementing HKFRS
7 does not necessarily illustrate all the requirements in the
referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create additional
requirements. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

180

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify that
when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has been
extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the lessee is required to
apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise any resulting gain
or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the amendments have updated
certain wording in paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A
of HKFRS 9 to remove potential confusion. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The amendments
clarify that the relationship described in paragraph B74 of HKFRS
10 is just one example of various relationships that might exist
between the investor and other parties acting as de facto agents
of the investor, which removes the inconsistency with the
requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace the
term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7
following the prior deletion of the definition of “cost method".
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXSHEHE

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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24

182

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

R R R A B

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit
if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(0

(if)

(iif)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(0

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2.4 E R EE ()
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33%-49%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including right-
of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Licence

The licence acquired as part of a business combination is valued at fair
value based on the relief from the royalty method. The licence with
indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of business combinations were
valued at fair value based on the multi-period excess earnings method.
Customer relationships are assessed as having finite useful lives and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Trademarks

The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations are valued
at fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Trademarks
with finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful life of 10 years. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment annually.

Distribution network

Distribution network acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
useful life of 10 years.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for

all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

190

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and machinery 20 years
N/
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due
to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Sale of nutritional supplements and packaged health food products
Revenue from the sale of nutritional supplements and packaged
health food products is recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
nutritional supplements and packaged health food products.

Some contracts provide customers with rights of return and volume
rebates, giving rise to variable consideration.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a
customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate
the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the
most likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-
volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts
with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that
best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the
contract. The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2.4 E R EE ()
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e,, transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional
decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or
all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and
is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have
to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (@and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed percentages of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees of the Group's
subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

\r{‘,d[

BHER
WAEEAEERABERIREA B
BEFWEA RS R A REER
) AERENAE EAKEET
B4 (B HER S Mk RIS I E R
TEP)E  GHBENERSWE -

REREE
AAERKCEREFERENERER
REREE BERBEREEMRER
ERFEHKRESE O ERKAERES
mnEEMNEIAELERETE - NEER
[EFTFEMREKFRREEREENE
[AIBSNBIRE T EERR & -

BRUEME
%L%QEﬁWWCﬂH@Z%%&
EMRENEBEEARREE  LRA
%@m%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@%%ﬁ%@%%
B o REBERE|EMARERELLEN
BEZHEH(RRSERZARED) -

HtteE5&F

RIKEFE
AEBRFEAMLECMBLRZE
BAZEMWT THRTERZHRERE
itE - ZEMBRARABHEXNAZE
TEFEBA DL AP REREETEER -
HRKRE P RBR S ER AR
B e et 2k R HIBR -

D]]

AEBAENTBFNITHRRLE ZH
BRRIZEEBRBHIELESEF
PlEE-—BREHRK 2 RFIMERTESR
REANEE ((mEEEE)) - HiRE
BERFM X —BOLLEE - ARIE
BEEFERAEREXNKERET
?D cRIEDFTEEERARECEE
DRITHBIEBESHR -AKEK
mESFEFR 2 HANE2HEBER
®E -

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension scheme (Continued)

No contribution have been forfeited during the year ended 31 December
2024. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the MPF Scheme in future years
(2023: nil).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXGFTHEEK (&)

R R R A B

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are currencies other than Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial and industry property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

In addition, the renewal options for leases of plant and machinery with

longer non-cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years) are not included as
part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The net carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2024 was
RMB30,023,000 (2023: RMB32,981,000). Further details are given in note
16.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives. Estimating the recoverable amount requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The net carrying
amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at 31 December
2024 was RMB123,000 (2023: RMB135,000). Further details are given in
note 17.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. Management
reassesses these estimates at each reporting date. At 31 December 2024,
the net carrying value of inventories was approximately RMB119,085,000
(2023: RMB108,861,000). Further details are contained in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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3.

210

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits,
together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax losses of RMB109,457,000 (2023: RMB164,982,000)
carried forward. These losses related to subsidiaries that have a history of
losses, have not expired, and may not be used to offset taxable income
elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have neither any taxable
temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that
could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax
assets. On this basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognise
deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group had been able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, the profit and equity would have increased by RMB28,207,000.
Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in note 25 to the financial
statements.
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4.

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker that are
used to make strategic decisions. For management purposes, the
Group operates in one business unit based on its products and
has one reportable segment which is the manufacture and sale
of nutritional supplements and the sale of packaged health food
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Australia
and New Zealand.

Geographical information

Most of the group companies are domiciled in the PRC and New
Zealand, and the majority of the non-current assets are located
in Mainland China and New Zealand. The Group's revenue from
external customers is primarily derived in Mainland China and
New Zealand.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major

markets:
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(a)

(b)
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2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ Tt ARETFIT
Mainland China AR A i 623,538 432,391
New Zealand i 100,103 113,712
Australia B K Fgs 8,411 4,701
Vietnam iR 5,695 4,965
Other countries H b B 2K 10,151 8,190
Total revenue Uz AR R 747,898 563,959
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIER (EF)
(CONTINUED)
(¢) Non-current assets () kRBEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Mainland China Hh [ A 3, 138,178 143,109
New Zealand o) | 37,564 40,478
Australia YR TR 173 775
Total non-current assets EMENEELRE 175,915 184,362
The non-current assets information above is based on the WEERBEECERDERE
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill and deferred tax EFRREUEBERGFREEBREL
assets. THWIBEE -

(d) Information about a major customer d FEEFHNEHR
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer AERFEAMBEE IR
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year 2 89 W a1 2 5= B 55 B 10% 3k
(2023: Nil). PAE (2023 4F : £&)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& Ht A RiksE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WHERAFEANEEE REHNRKREE

allowances for returns and trade discounts rendered during the year. LR BE ST NENEREE -

(@)  Ananalysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (@) Wz Efbug A R as 5 47 o

T

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T

Type of goods or services B mE R E R

Sale of goods HEE m 747,898 563,959

Total revenue from contracts with customers & 8 & 5 & 4 H) I 25 4258 747,898 563,959

Timing of revenue recognition W &5 T R A A

Goods transferred at a point in time RNE —FEEENE R 747,898 563,959

Total revenue from contracts with customers R B & P & &)Uk ss 42 58 747,898 563,959
\r“ K/
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W HtWA R W= (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Performance obligation (b) BHEME
Information about the Group's main performance obligations is ERAAEBRETERNEINER
summarised below: BEaan T
Sale of goods HEER
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods BAOEBERXNERKRET M
and terms of credit are generally due within 30 to 90 days from f;f%ﬁﬂ BRZF1E30290KK
delivery, except for new customers and distributors in Mainland I ERAPEAMOTER R
China, where payment in advance is normally required. Some DB WEBEATALMNI o
contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume ETEHNREPERTRE RIH
rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to EERMHOENMEEZRSIAT
constraint. BRAE o
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TRIRRARRE AR T &R
the current reporting period that were included in the contract AMEHBETZENEBERER
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised BTEHEEKRNCBHEETER
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods: W& -
2024 2023
2024 F 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTTT
Revenue recognised that was included REEEEETAEGLNE
in contract liabilities at the beginning ZETJE R
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEE M 11,288 13,923
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ETTT
Other income and gains HAeb g A & U&=
Government grants* R Bh & 6 845 1,489
Rental income HEWKA 15 4,162 4,463
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R
plant and equipment Bl 6 = 864
Bank interest income RITH BUA 6 1,365 852
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB QR KE 6 - 61
Others H A, 355 745
Total other income and gains H g A R W s 4858 6,727 8474
@ Various government grants have been received for the Group's contribution * HARAEBE K EERNOER -
to the development of the local economy. There are no unfulfilled conditions BWE S EBRNHB S o BIEAE M
or contingencies relating to these grants. LB S M AR TR RIS A FIE -
\V ’v
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRBLATER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBOBRBATEF HENER(GEA)
NTEIBRED :

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AR® TR ARBTT

Cost of inventories sold EEFERHAR 206,318 181316
Depreciation of property, W - BERBRETE:

plant and equipment* 13 9,228 8,639
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* FREEETE 15(a) 3,091 3,066
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHERGEEN

measurement of lease liabilities MERE 15(0) 812 917

Amortisation of intangible assets** | EEHE 17 1,995 2,006

Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI 57 B 2,080 2,000

Research and development expenses  Fff B X2 924 867

Changes in fair value of WEWE L AR EER

investment properties 14 912 1,229

Employment benefit expense & 1R AE AR 2

(excluding directors’, supervisors’ (TBRFEESE EERK
and chief executive's remuneration)*:  1TERAREL B EA) * -
Wages and salaries TEMES 98,354 74,810
Pension scheme contributions RIRe B

(defined contribution scheme)*** (FTEHERET &) o= 3,652 2,617
Other benefits H b4z F 9,783 6,360

Foreign exchange differences, net HNE ZE R TR 1,805 2,830

Impairment of trade receivables f’f%fgqﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ 19 759 279

Write-down of inventories to R AT & & A] B IR e

net realisable value**** 3,312 2,986

Bank interest income RITF B YA 5 (1,365) (852)

Government grants BFHE € 5 (845) (1,489)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB A RIS 5 = 61)

Gain on disposal of items of property,  HEWE - HE M

plant and equipment HEE B s 5 - (864)

* The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of- . FAME - BELRETE  FREZER
use assets and employment benefit expense for the year is included in “Cost of EUREERBMAZAAGEERREAM
inventories sold”, “Selling and distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in 2EBERFTPHEEFTEXRNR]  [HER
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. AT I RTTBFAX] -

o The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Selling and x> FRAEFEE#RHET AGEEaREME
distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement AR ERPRHE REHMAT ] R 1THRA
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 1o

**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer o KREE (EREX) W AR IREFRIARREER
to reduce the existing level of contributions. B FKFE -

*%% The write-down of inventories to net realisable value for the year is included in “Cost o R WORTFERAERFESAREER
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive FEMEEmRERPOMEERA]
income.

\r“,df
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

B AN
BERAH T :

2024 2023
2024 2023 £

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AE ARBT T ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE

15(b) 3,390 3,280

8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8.

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EE EERTHRARTH

BRI EMHER - BB R AEH E383(1)
@ b QRONETANAR (HEEE
FZER) ROIE 2 ENESE RIT
BREHRNFRNFHMOT

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBTIT

Fees we 240 240
Other emoluments: E A

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYER 1,984 1,888
Performance related bonuses BERMEREES 6,930 4,057
Pension scheme contributions BINEET B 144 117
9,058 6,056
9,298 6,296

o i

5@,’"
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8.

216

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

8. EE EERTHAZRTM
(#&)
(a) BIUFHITES
RAFERMBLIFRNITESE N
s  :

2024 2023
2024 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBETT

Mr. Cai Tianchen (note i) BREEE (MWD 100 120
Mr. Wang Wei (note i) FEEE (WMD) 50 60
Mr. Ye Bangyin (note i) IR A (B 5Eii) 20 -
Mr. Cheng Jianming (note ii) MR A& (T 5T 10 -
Mr. Yu Bo RREHE 60 60

240 240

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2023: Nil).

Notes:

(i) Resigned as independent non-executive director on 22 October 2024.

(ii) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 23 October 2024.

N/
o7

RARFEE HEABIIFNTE
B IR E AR BN (2023 5F - #) -

MAE

[0 R 2024F 108 22 A B A B L IE 1T
EEo

(ii) R2024F10A BB EZ X BB IE
WITESE -
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE EERTHAZRTM
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (b) BITEERES

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

e 2H &% BHhE
He REWEN  ABRRE  HEER F#AH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR AR%®TR

2024 20245
Executive directors HhHEZ
Mr. Gui Ping Hu HEERLE = 420 3,203 = 3,623
Ms. Zhang Yuan KRR LT - 523 2,585 46 3,154
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRRz L = 261 243 21 525
= 1,204 6,031 67 7,302
Supervisors BEx
Ms. Yu Min FPz L = 260 366 22 648
Ms. Lu Jiachun B 2 £ = 183 85 19 287
Ms. Chen Xiu BRELL = 139 127 18 284
Ms. Wang Ping FEaL - 198 321 18 537
- 780 899 77 1,756
w ;Y
LX)
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE EERTHAZRTM
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b)) BTEERES (&)

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

e R &3 BIRS

e REDEN BERe ATEIBR
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000
ARETT ARETR ARETT AR®T:

2023 2023
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu AL - 420 650 - 1070
Ms. Zhang Yuan R L - 456 2021 3 2,700
Ms. Zhu Feifei RRMLT - 257 219 20 4%
- 1,133 3,090 43 4266
Supervisors EZ
Ms. Yu Min REmt - 255 423 13 691
Ms. Lu Jiachun stz & - 161 71 19 251
Ms. Chen Xiu BHxt - 139 142 18 299
Ms. Wang Ping FEaL - 199 332 18 549
- 754 968 68 1,790
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RAFE BEESHITHREH
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the MR A B BRI FT A ZHE o
year.
N\
o\
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEAREHFMET
The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors RAFERERRFMEIBEREE
and one supervisor (2023: two directors and one supervisor), details EN—FBEE(203F MEEFER—
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the BEE)  HEFEBFBHARMMES -
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2023: two) highest paid MARFRE - RRRIBR TR A (20235 -
employees who are neither directors nor supervisors of the Company are MEB)IESHEEFNEZRTHE TH
as follows: BT

2024 2023
2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYMER 7,685 6,473

Performance related bonuses BB RS 2,025 1,126

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHEER 32 32
9,742 7,631

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FMEIATHEIFESE RIFTIHRAR

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BRFME IMAZLOT

follows:

Number of employees

BI®AR

2024 2023

2024 2023 4

Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T - 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 /8 7T 1 -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 78 7T 2 3,000,000 75 7T - -
HKD4,000,001 to HKD6,000,000 4,000,001 7% 7T & 6,000,000 /%8 7T - -
HKD6,000,001 to HKD10,000,000 6,000,001 78 7T & 10,000,000 7 7T 1 1

wi?

%
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10. INCOME TAX

(a)

220

The amounts of income tax expense in the consolidated (a)
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent:

10. Fr8®i

R RakEtmE2EEERP
MFEHRAX S8R

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBEFT

Current BIHA

— New Zealand — HTNES 7,938 6,410
Deferred s (1,618) (919)
Total tax expense for the year NEEHIBRT B 6,320 5,491

The income tax of the Company and its subsidiaries established in
the PRC are subject to the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable
profits as determined in accordance with the relevant income
tax rules and regulations of the PRC. New Zealand Income tax
is calculated at 28% of the assessable profits of the subsidiaries
operating in New Zealand. Australia Income tax is calculated
at 30% of the assessable profits of the subsidiary operating in
Australia.

<

N/
L\D

RRARRERP BN B A
RIBY TS B B IR AR 15 b B AR B A
18 %48 Bl I 3R 5] 7 E 19 B SR T A
E 25% KA T TR BN - PR AT
SREZNATRHEZENHB R A
FERRFR 8 28% 51 & - B A F| g8
TS FIR R K F) 22 & 8 1) I /B
NEVERR A BRI 30%5ME -
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FiiB% (&)

(b) A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to profit before tax b)) BARARERBHOMME AR
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company EREERERDERRBREEEN
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled or operate to KA EEARBRB R R IE
the tax credit at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the BBl ERHEFENTIER
applicable rates to the effective tax rates are as follows: CRERNERAMETEATRER X

FEERMT
2024 2024 F
Mainland New
China Zealand Australia Total
RE A T | BARIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG ARETTR ARETR ARETR
Profit before tax BB A& 17,825 20,556 2,501 40,882
Taxatthe statutory taxrates AT R R EHFIE 4,456 250 5,756 280 750 300 10,962 268

Additional deductible HERT B TNR
alowanceforreseacchand 2 &

development expenses - - (197) (1.0) - - (197) (0.5)
Expensesnotdeductible ~ FEHIREX

for tax 428 24 580 28 - - 1,008 25
Taxlossesand temporary — FIBBBRAER

differences not recognised ~ EF EE 3,100 174 181 0.9 - - 3,281 8.0
Tax losses utilised from EHRAREBAEE

prior years HIEEE (7,984)  (44.8) - - (7500 (30.0) (8734  (214)

Tax credit at the Group's BASBERHEHE

effective rate iobaetiee) - - 6,320 30.7 - - 6,320 155
w ;Y
LX)
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FRrS® (&)
(b)  (continued) by (&)
2023 2023 F
Mainland New
China Zealand Australia
V4 il
RMBI000 %  RMBO0O
ARBTT h ARE
Profit before tax BRBERTA 38252 18019 1822 58093
Taxatthe statutory tax rates AT R & EMFIE 9563 250 5,046 280 547 300 15,156 2

Additional deductible ez B m
alowanceforresearchand 2785

development expenses - - (306) (17) - - (306) (05)
Expenses not deductible TANREL

for tax 720 19 575 32 - - 1295 22
Taxlossesand temporary ~ TAIAB B R AH#R

differences not recognised BB EE 1621 42 176 10 - - 1797 3]
Taxlosses utilised from EYRRERIEREN

prior years HEBE (11,904) B11) - - (547) (300) (12451) 214

Tax credit at the Group's BASEERHEHE

effective rate gpickind - - 5491 305 - - 5491 95
11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE
The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year EEGERARIHEBE2024F12A3
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). Bt FEEIREMRERE (20234
) o
N/
QW
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BRI EERBRAARES
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT iz 2 X
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the BRERNBFTIZE AR EBRERTE
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, ABBERFERMNRFALETER
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 946,298,370 [i% i # < 5 £ 946,298,370 A% (2023 4F :
(2023: 946,298,370) outstanding during the year. 946,298370 &) 5T & ©
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the BHE2024F K 2023F 12 A31HIEFE
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. REBWREFE SO HITERRKR -

RERBN TIIRAT BB E

a

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

2024 2023
2024 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of AR BREARZFIFTE K
the parent used in the basic BAREREEFAA
earnings per share calculation JE 1 B 34,562 52,602
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Shares 47y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  F A & I% 4% Fll 5T & &9
for the purpose of the basic profit B ke 9
per share calculation 946,298,370 946,298,370
. 1%
1KY
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2024

At January 2024:

R2024%12A318

R4 F1A1E

Buildings

53
RMB'000
ARETR

Leasehold
improve-
ments
BE£E
RMB'000
ARET R

13. W%

Plantand
machinery

RER#S
RMB'000
ARETR

Furniture
and
fixtures
BER%E
RMB'000
ARETR

Motor
vehicles
RE
RMB’000
ARBTR

Total

@5
RMB'000
ARETR

Cost KA 80,899 9,388 12317 14,850 12178 129,632

Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (18,213) (8,633) (9,245) (12,237) (9,178) (57,506)

Net carrying amount REFE 62,686 755 3,072 2,613 3,000 72,126
At 1 January 2024, R04EIA1E

net of accumulated depreciation EMBREHTE 62,686 755 3,072 2,613 3,000 72,126
Additions £ - 2,509 3,478 804 604 7,395
Transfer from investment properties ERARENE

(note 14) (PzE14) 10,931 - - - - 10,931
Depreciation provided during the year REEHRNE

(note 6) (Mi3z6) (3,613) (1,992) (917) (938) (1,768) (9,228)
Disposals RE - - (109) - (124) (233)
Exchange realignment B - (14) (392) (45) (124) (575)
At 31 December 2024, R204%128318

net of accumulated depreciation BB EEIE 70,004 1,258 5,132 2,434 1,588 80,416
At 31 December 2024: R004%F12 8318

Cost KA 91,831 11,778 14,190 15418 11,570 144,787

Accumulated depreciation 2HE (21,827) (10,520) (9,058) (12,984) (9,982) (64,371)

Net carrying amount REFE 70,004 1,258 5,132 2,434 1,588 80,416

S
W
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ WERRZRE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold Fumniture
improve- Plantand and Motor
Buildings ments machinery fixtures vehicles

BT MEEE BERESR KEREE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETE

31 December 2023 M2023F12A31R
At 1 January 2023; ROBEIAIR:

Cost KA 83541 8678 13331 15850 11,908 133,308

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (16,756) (7,368) (9693) (11,983) (7434) (53,234)

Net carrying amount RE%E 66,785 1310 3638 3867 4474 80,074
At 1 January 2023, ROBEIAIE

net of accumulated depreciation BHGENE 66,785 1310 3638 3867 4474 80,074
Additions #m 52 686 39 78 365 1,710
Depreciation provided during the year FEERNE

(note 6) (GED) (3,284) (1,244) (848) (1,499) (1,764) (8639)
Disposals RE (867) - 92) (40) (109) (1,108)
Exchange realignment B 5B - 3 45 7 34 89
At 31 December 2023, R03E1A3E

net of accumulated depreciation BHRZHNE 62,686 755 3072 2613 3,000 72126
At 31 Decernber 2023; R0BE12A318

Cost KA 80899 9388 12317 14850 12,178 129632

Accumulated depreciation 2B (18213) (8633) (9,245) (12,237) 9178) (57,506)

Net carnying amount REFE 62,686 755 3072 2613 3000 72126

o i
LY
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYXE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January B AT ERERAEE 71,725 72,954
Transferred to owner-occupied property EEEETARWE (FE13)

(note 13) (10,931) -
Transferred to right-of-use asset (note 15) BEREEAEEE (M 15) (2,626) -
Fair value losses on investment properties BEWMERNAEEE (HEe)

(note 6) (912) (1,229)
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12A31 BREREE 57,256 71,725
The Group's investment properties consist of two commercial properties AREENKREYESIETRB AN RIE
and two industrial properties in Chinese Mainland. The directors of the FAMERMBIENE - ARAES
Company have determined that the investment properties consist of BBEZEMENEE  FHEEREE
two classes of asset, commercial and industrial, based on the nature, REMEPRERNERTEMBPAEE -

characteristics and risks of each property.

The investment properties are leased to the third parties under operating WEMERBLKEHERETE =7
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the BRAFHERE — SR ZH R MBI KM
financial statements. FE15 0

N/

QW
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYWZ (&)
Fair value hierarchy NABEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHAAREEREMEN AR EFE
the Group's investment properties: S

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2024 using
R2024F12A31 AN D AEHERAUTEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (X7 )] (Level 3)
WEBMIEN BEATERE EAFUEE
HE BWAHE BAHE
(B—FE) (B=JE) (B=FE)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR AR¥ETR AR%¥TrR

Recurring fair value measurement for. &R H AN EE

Commercial property R IES - - 15,144 15,144
Industrial properties TEME - - 42,112 42,112
Total wst - - 57,256 57,256

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using

R2023F12A3NBENAAEHERAUTEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RERMIZN  EAUBE EATITHE
WIE PN 67 8B AHIE
(B—FE) (FZE) (B=/2)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR%®TR ARETR ARETRT

Recurring fair value measurement for. &R M AR B2

Commercial property BEmE - - 15464 15,464
Industrial properties TEME - - 56,261 56,261
Total @t - = 71,725 71,725
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FAN - F-EBEF_ECEIYEQR
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2023: TEMER FEEASNEHE =
Nil). (20234 : £&) -

o i

§N,V
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWZ (&)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of NEAEAABERFPE=ENRIER
the fair value hierarchy: SR

Commercial Industrial

property properties

ik ZE S IXRME

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBEFT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 R2023F 1 A1 BREREE 15,877 57,077
Fair value losses on investment properties REMERNARBEEE (413) (816)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 and M2023F 12 H31 B K

1 January 2024 20244F 1 A1 HEYBREE 15,464 56,261
Transferred to owner-occupied property EEmE XTI aRAwE (MEE13)

(note 13) - (10,931)
Transferred to right-of-use asset (note 15) s AEEE (MiE15) - (2,626)
Fair value losses on investment properties REMERAEERE (320) (592)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2024 R2024F 12 A31 HHEREE 15,144 42112

N/
L \PY
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYWZ (&)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the WEYEGEBMRAGERNTEEE2S
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ABUE B EHTI T
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
B & 1l EXTAEHEHAHE & [E| ok A 19 2
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Commercial property Term and reversion Market rent 1.23 to 2.95 1.23102.95
[ElRZES FHRER (persgm.and permonth)  AR¥1.237t AR 1237
miHe ZAR¥295T ZEARK 2957
(BATFHK)
Long term vacancy rate 12.0%-15.0% 12.0%-15.0%
IS
Discount rate 4.6%-5.2% 4.6%-5.2%
ALIR &
Industrial properties Term and reversion Market rent 1.15to 2.03 1.15t02.03
T FHRER (persgm.and permonth) ~ AR¥1.1557t AR 1.157T
miEiHe ZAR¥2037T ZARK2037T
(BAGFAK)
Long term vacancy rate 12.0% 12.0%
Discount rate 4.5% to 9.5% 4.5% t0 9.5%
AhIR &K
A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent would result in MSHEREEMORD) KEBIRED
a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment ERARBEAREENCRD) - EHTE
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy rate IR BLER B ABIE N O ) BB
and the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease WEWEQARBERERD (3EM) o —
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties. Generally, a ms WEMENAABNE TS
change in the fair value of the investment properties is accompanied by mHEHEELRMER A MEEREHRE
a directionally similar change in the market rent and an opposite change ZEERRMRELRRAE L -

in the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate.
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%o
MRPABRARGARAT —E-NEFR 229




Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B EE

31 December 2024 2024412 H31H

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery,
motor vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of plant and
machinery generally have terms between 1 and 20 years, while motor
vehicles generally have lease terms of 1 year. Other equipment generally
has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group except for prepaid land lease payments,
which are further discussed below:

(@) Right-of-use assets:

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

15. # &

AEBERABEA
AEERARHEEBLBNEHER
MR AERHEMRBEEETAEEES
49 BIZATIEE — R MR ERUA A 2 I
BHEE L MEASE  MHRERS
+iEE MRS - SRS BE L TR
HIE o R R EOEEBE A1 E20
FoMAEMABMBEAIFE KR
TR A 1218 B AR R, (@
RIBEHEERE . —RTS  BEN
BRSNS BT A A E AS
ATHEERSHEEEEE AHE—5
FIES NS

(@) FEARAE:
FRAKEEREAENREE
KEZHMT :

Leasehold Plant and

land machinery Total

HE LT i R 2R et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T ARBT T

As at 1 January 2023 202351 A1H 4,892 35,093 39,985

Depreciation charge (note 6)  #T& xx H (Fiz¥e6) (128) (2,938) (3,066)

Exchange realignment ME 3 T - 509 509

As at 31 December 2023 M 2023F 12 A31 H 4,764 32,664 37,428

Asat 31 December 2023 and 722023412 A31H

1 January 2024 K2024%F 1 A1 H 4,764 32,664 37,428

Additions 0 - 3,128 3,128

Depreciation charge (note 6) #T & xx H (fizt6) (148) (2,943) (3,091)
Transfer from Investment HEAREYE (I

Properties (note 14) iE14) 2,626 - 2,626

Exchange realignment I 5 B - (2,974) (2,974)

As at 31 December 2024 2024 12 A31 H 7,242 29,875 37,117

<

N/
L\D
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERABA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities: (b) HESME:
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FAHEEENERENREEH WM
the year are as follows: N

2024 2023
2024 5 2023 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBTT

Carrying amount as at 1 January BT AT BERRAEE 35,163 35,753
Accretion of interest recognised during FRE R EIL  (FsE7)

the year (note 7) 3,390 3,280
Additions Yl 3,128 -
Payments LS (4,531) (4,498)
Exchange realignment b 3 (3,249) 628
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A3 BHRERTEE 33,901 35,163
Analysed into: Pakiiv=1

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Current portion mENEL 4,286 4,143
Non-current portion IEMBNEL S 29,615 31,020
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 32 to HEABENI MO T RERN IS
the financial statements. HWEMFE32 -
vy
LK) 154
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBERABEAE)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as () RIEZWMRANEEMREZAENT
follows:

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBT T

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HMEBEFE (H:E7) 3,390 3,280
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEENESL (Mie)
assets (note 6) 3,091 3,066
Expense relating to short-term leasesand ~ E2%2 #R7E & & E th f & FHRE &9
other leases (included in selling and S (R ASEE RAEHA S
distribution expenses and RATBRE) (Mise)
administrative expenses) (note 6) 812 917
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIERERNE LR 7,293 7,263
The Group as a lessor AEBERBEAA
The Group leases its two commercial properties and two industrial AEERBEEHELHEHEEMRIERY
properties (note 14) under operating lease arrangements. The terms AMERMIBIEDE ([iE14) - HE
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and BR—RELKBEPEZMNRES RRER
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing BERRITMALETEHESHEE K
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during SEFRERES WA AR 4162000
the year was RMB4,162,000 (2023: RMB4,463,000), details of which are 7T (20234F : AR #44630007T) * 715
included in note 5 to the financial statements. BB IS MR ES ©
At 31 December 2024, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by 2024512 A31 8 » A& B R K K E
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with MIRIBEEE P LN A REEEHE
its tenants are as follows: EMWHRBIREER AT ¢

2024 2023
2024 F 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —F R 3,345 4,305
After one year but within two years —FEMF 3,096 4,130
After two years but within three years MEE=F 2,824 3,686
After three years but within four years —FEMF 2,824 2,824
After four years but within five years MEERF 2,824 2,824
After five years AFMNE 4,425 7,249
Total #5 19,338 25018

N/

R\
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16. &

16. GOODWILL

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

At 1 January 2023

R2023F 1 A1H

Cost B 57,816

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (25,442)

Net carrying amount REE(E 32,374
Costat 1 January 2023, net of accumulated impairment 722023 1 1 BRI A » 1k RE0RE 32,374
Exchange realignment ME W S 607
At 31 December 2023 7202312 431 H 32,981
At 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 A31 H

Cost FAR 58,901

Accumulated impairment ZFHRE (25,920)

Net carrying amount BRI FEE 32,981
Cost at 1 January 2024, net of accumulated impairment 2202441 51 BHIAA A » 1k 25HRE 32,981
Exchange realignment PE 5 3% (2,958)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2024 202412 A31 BRI A KRR FAE 30,023
Cost at 31 December 2024 PR2024F 12 A 31 HEYRKAS ¢

Cost (DN 53,618

Accumulated impairment Z25FTRE (23,595)

Net carrying amount BREFE 30,023

ZE N FFR

/
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. EHE (&)

234

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to GHP
cash-generating unit (the “CGU") for impairment testing:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not recognise
any impairment loss in relation to the goodwill of the GHP CGU (2023:
nil). The respective carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the GHP
cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

GHP CGU GHPIR & EA BN

EERENR
BREBAHAMIKRBENEE N HE T
CHPR G ELEMN ((ReEEEEN]) I
TERE RIS

HE2004F 12831 BIEFE » KEET
EFCHPIR S E £ B BRI AR
15}&5?;(2023¢ D) o 2024 £} 2023
FNAJNBSEFCHPER S EE BN
EEMNEEREENT

2024 2023
2024 F 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBEFT

30,023 32,981

The recoverable amount of GHP CGU has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
Cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

For the GHP CGU with a significant amount of goodwill, the key
assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

FCHPIRSEAE BN MW E S BRIE
AN REREIES 7 F B TR
BEAKENRSREBAFENERE
BETE - BAHUIINNREREZR TS
TERHE R EETHSE -

HHREESHEEANGHIPREELEE
fif * 2024 F K 2023 12 A1 BEAEE
STEATRAMBERER  REMEX
FERIRZEMT ¢

Sales annual growth rate (%) HE F IR E (%)
Gross margin (% of revenue)
Long-term growth rate RARIE R &

Pre-tax discount rate % % BT BH I ==

EMXR(AKER D)

2%-12% 2%-10%
71%-72% 67%-69%
2% 2%

22.0% 23.2%

\r“,df
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. & (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant units.

Long-term growth rate

The long-term growth rates used are based on common industry
practice.

PR E R (8
VAT fié ot & 38 B HE 1T v R (EDR S 9 3R
EREFENFATRES BEREE

BEERNR

AREEDE FTHREENENEEMR
ANEERERREFEAN —FAME
B FHENE - AR FAHONRERET
RIEHMHTISHRMA MRS

BER R
PRABAIR R ARMBHIA  URREHE
13 B %5 € LR o

REHERR
FIAEMIEREEDU—RITEFRAE
# o

ERBReELEMMSEE BBRER
RRERENTIEBRRMETHNEERS
SNEBIE B RIR— 2K -

17. EMEFLEE

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of
the cash-generating units, the discount rates and long-term growth rate
are consistent with external information sources.

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Distribution Customer
Trademarks network Licence relationships Total

[GE: 7 HAR A EFHE st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR AR%®TR

31 December 2024 2024128310

Cost at 1 January 2024, net of PR2024% 1 A1 BRI -

accumulated amortisation ks REt#sE 2,553 485 45 - 3,083
Amortisation provided during FRETREE (Mite)
the year (note 6) (1,667) (328) - - (1,995)
Exchange realignment R (145) (27) 4) = (176)
At 31 December 2024, net of 2024124318
accumulated amortisation and M 2EH# 3 RORE
impairment M4 130 41 = 912
At 31 December 2024; R2024F12A318
Cost A 19,930 3,116 983 1,351 25,380
Accumulated amortisation and RErTEELRE
impairment (19,189) (2,986) (942) (1,351) (24,468)
Net carrying amount REFE 741 130 M - 912

\/]
(N ; \
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17. OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. BB EE (8)

Licence and
Distribution health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates  relationships Total

HARRRLE
BE S AREE  EFME foit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARRTT ARMTR AREFT ARBFR ARETR

31 December 2023 2023512318
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of R2023F1 B1HRIRA
accumulated amortisation Mk 2t 4201 812 44 - 5077
Amortisation provided during FRFREE (o)
the year (note 6) (1,676) (330) - - (2,006)
Exchange realignment R 8 3 1 - 12
At 31 December 2023, net of R2023% 128318
accumulated amortisation and MR 2508 85 R E
impairment 2,553 485 45 - 3,083
At 31 December 2023; R203F12A318
Cost % 21893 3423 1,080 1485 27881
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEERAE
impairment (19,340) (2,938) (1,035) (1,485) (24,798)
Net carrying amount FEFE 2,553 485 45 - 3083
N\ /S
QW
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18. INVENTORIES

FE

2024 2023

2024 2023 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREF T

Raw materials [EH 18,332 29,641
Work in progress EE M 1,523 229
Finished goods BUAK 99,144 78,461
Goods merchandise BREE 86 530
Total @5t 119,085 108,861

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. E 5 BWKIER

2024 2023

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBT T

Trade receivables B 5 WA 45,429 35,505
Impairment BB (3,527) (2,994)

Net carrying amount BREFE 41,902 32,511
In general, the entities in the Group have no credit period granted to BEmMS  AEEHNEETD T%T“E%Z\
the retail customers, and invoices would be due once they have been )5 ZEH . —&KEEBEZAEALN - A

issued. The credit period offered by the Group to its distributors is
generally 30 to 90 days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR

Elhfﬁ%nﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ’ﬂéf’f,ﬁﬁ RR30E
0K - BMERETE M B
ER EXFt Rk AEENE S RYWRIE
HEHTRAEFEAR AREHMEEX
EESTRR AKELEREE SR
WO IR 48 R B (LA R R s Ho A pn o

EEfER - BHRWHIBERRE -
i
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. EZEWRFIE (&)
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting RBEARREZEAHARNBREERE
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: Mg %F’&“HK/AIEE’J RO -

2024 2023
2024 F 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Within 1 month TE A A 38,962 28,136
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MEAZE3MEA 2,543 3,578
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3IEAEF 303 643
Over 1 year iBiE 94 154
Total Fe 41,902 32,511

2024 2023
2024 F 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBETT

At beginning of the year F1 2,994 2,674
Impairment losses accrued (note 6) R2EREEE (Hite) 759 279
Amount written off as uncollectible AR B SE « £ 58 - -
Exchange realignment ME WS (226) 41

3,527 2,994
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REREBRRBREEEETRED
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates Tﬁ NErEEHREEEBE - BEXDE
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments REBBEUBSERANZERT PS54
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, E\J (Bl - EHER - BFER &G
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other TARERFEREMEERRBREHR
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability- %@.) MEBESETE - ZTERER
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and TE)EL?—‘?JHTEM CEBRERAREAE
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past ABMEBBRESEE - BN RARR
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. i% BIGEHEANESERAIEER - — &
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one mE - BZRWFIBENGSABE —F&
year and are not subject to enforcement activity. ﬂﬁ R EIBTTIEE A T AN -

\r“,df
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. E5 EWFE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TR AEEFARBEBTENE
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: SEBIENEERR@O
As at 31 December 2024 7A20245F12A31H
Past due
B
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
BNE 1EAUR 1Z3{@A 3@AUL et

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEHEX 2.4% 11.4% 25.3% 68.8% 7.8%
Gross carrying amount BIETHE 31,814 8,960 3,335 1,320 45,429
Expected credit losses TEHEEEBE 756 1,020 843 908 3,527
As at 31 December 2023 202312 431 H

Past due
460 HA
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months

BNER 1fAAMR 1ZE31A8 3@AKE

Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX 42% 9.9% 15.8% 50.3% 8.4%
Gross carrying amount AR (B 19,487 11,572 3,481 965 35,505
Expected credit losses TEHEEEBE 812 1,146 551 485 2,994

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FANFIE  REREMEW
RECEIVABLES |

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Deposits and other receivables e &E M EREIE 4,583 5,238
Prepayments TEfF 5RIE 17,195 10,015
Value-added tax recoverable AT U Bl E - 1,084
Right-of-return assets REEEE 36 49
Total HEt 21,814 16,386
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial B B E s E SO E o 5T AR LA
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which BRESREEN LI ETHEDLEER
there was no recent history of default. JFE W FRIE o

» 1Y
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21. RERBRESEEY

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

240

2024 2023

2024 2023 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Cash and bank balances Be MRS 95,937 104,580
Time deposits TE BffF K 8,593 13,176
Subtotal INEF 104,530 117,756
Less: Restricted cash B XRHIR e - (200)
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEED 104,530 117,556

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARBTFIT

Denominated in RMB UARESHE 30,193 35,444
Denominated in NZD LA PR LRt E 34,095 42,115
Denominated in HKD LA TTETHE 2,197 2,146
Denominated in AUD LUBITEME 8,192 3,237
Denominated in USD AZFEITTEHE 29,365 34,547
Denominated in EUR AR TEHE 488 67
Total FEE 104,530 117,556

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

<

N/
L\D

ARBYFAEHLBIFLMER-
A - RIE A B A SN E E IR R DI M A
E-EELNEEERE AEEE#E
BERRENFEIINEXBORITEARE
RMREMBER -

RITHESBEBEEFARITFERMERF
BHNEGFE - RHAEHREFREBETRAY
B BFE-—BAE2=@A" BRRAEH
MBI & /K - WIRARE BTSN EF
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ENAAEERTHYEEHTERMNR
17 °

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

22. ESEMNRIE

RBERRZBEZAHNE S RN RA
MBI DM

22. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2024 2023
2024 F 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Within 1 month & A K 11,310 32,184
Over 1 month but within 3 months AR =31EA 124 201
Over 3 months but within 1 year IMEAEF 556 2
Over 1 year BiE1F 760 760
Total @t 12,750 33,147

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the credit terms are BoORNFEAREREERRE /30
normally between 30 and 90 days. EX I N

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HWENRERESEH

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Accrued payroll JE 5157 B 22,480 16,419
Contract liabilities GHBEE @ 10,075 11,288
Other payables Efth & A 318 (b) 5,030 4,601
Refund liabilities RRAR 3,170 3,862
Other tax payables o fth e AR IE 3,390 2,127
Total HET 44,145 38,297
Notes: MtsE -

@ Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@) ARBEFBIT -

2024 2023
2024 F 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARET T
Short-term advances received from customers BEISEEFSEGEAEN 10,075 11,288
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing. (b) HiEMNFELETE -
» 1Y
LK)
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24. PROVISION 24, 15

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T

At 1 January R1ATHE 811 774
Increase in discounted amounts arising from  BE B RS 38 5 W38 o0 2 BLIR 58
the passage of time 16 24
Exchange realignment ER (88) 13
At 31 December M12A31H 739 811
GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, has a restoration obligation under a AEE-HMBARIGHPIRBEMEEE
property lease agreement. mEBEREL -
25. DEFERRED TAX 25, EEBIIR
(@) Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated @ RERN TEHEAVBRAEXER
statement of financial position and movements during the year MIELERHITEEEARESF BN
are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets BEEREEE

Write-down Impairment
Lease of of trade Accrued
liabilities inventories receivables expenses Total

g5 kW

HERE MR & IR RaFX st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR

31 December 2024 R2024512H31H
At 1 January 2024 202451718 9,803 565 556 1,638 12,562
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to  REF W 182 (30FR), /5 A

profit or loss during the year RRIER 1 (242) 23 191 933 905
Exchange realignment fE 502 (870) (52) (59) (198) (1,179)
At 31 December 2024 R 20244128318 8,691 536 688 2,373 12,288

\\“ ]
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25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25, ELEHE (&)
(@)  Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated @ RERN TEHEEVUBRAKER
statement of financial position and movements during the year MIELERTEEENARESF B
are as follows: (Continued) T (8&)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) EEHIBEEE ()

Write-down Impairment
Lease of of trade Accrued

liabilities inventories receivables expenses Total

HERE HoRFE TERE 2EHAX At
RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTE ARBTE AREBTE ARETEH

31 December 2023 20235124318
At 1 January 2023 R203E1 A1 9,838 47 529 1331 12125
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to R R 182 (40FR) /A

profit or loss during the year R E (209) 125 16 270 202
Exchange realignment I 5, /B 174 13 11 37 235
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12A31H 9,803 565 556 1,638 12,562

(b)  Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated b)) RER EHREFBHRAKRER

statement of financial position and movements during the year FELEHIRBEREHFIENT

are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities ELEREEE

Fair value Fair value

adjustments  adjustments

Right-of-  arisingfrom arising from
use investment  acquisition of
assets properties  subsidiaries

RENE LEWERR

ELH EEH
EREEE AAEWE  QAAERER ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMETR

At 1 January 2024 R2014F1A1H 9,103 4,291 74 13,468
Deferred tax credited to profit orloss RERF ABROETHIE
during the year (713) - - (713)
Exchange realignment BEH AR (784) - (3) (787)
At 31 December 2024 R20214F12A318 7,606 4,291 7 11,968
» iY
§N,V
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25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25, EFEBLIE (&)
(b)  Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated b) RERN G ELEBMERIKRER
statement of financial position and movements during the year RECEHRIEBEREBFIBNT
are as follows: (Continued) (48)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EERIBEEF ()

Fair value Fair value

adjustments adjustments

Right-of- arising from arising from
use investment  acquisition of
assets properties subsidiaries

BANE HEKELT

B BN

BREAE OAEEE  DAEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTZ ARMTI ARETZ ARMTR

At 1 January 2023 R03F1A1H 9,665 4291 75 14031
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss RERNFABROELHE

during the year (717) - - (717)
Exchange realignment AR 155 - (1) 154
At 31 December 2023 M023%F12A31H 9103 4291 74 13468
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of REBRFPBEAARBEEA
RMB90,199,000 (2023: RMB143,869,000) that will expire in one to K% 90,199,000 7T (20235 = AR¥E
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred 143,869,000 70) # A — 2 h F A |
tax assets of RMB22,550,000 (2023: RMB35,967,000) have not HY - DA S R R FE SR B ) o JF M
been recognised in respect of the losses as they have arisen in TR E B A R 22,550,000 7T (2023
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not F: AR ¥ 35967,00070) AT MK
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against ERIBEEE  DTEEXRER —K
which the tax losses can be utilised. HERNEGEENHNBAR B

I 4% R 7% Pl BE 5 B R B0 A A
R HTH IR -

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. [RA
Shares 15

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Issued and fully paid: EBITREHHR
946,298,370 (2023: 946,298,370) 946,298,370 % (2023 4F :
ordinary shares 946,298,370 %) & i Ak 94,630 94,630
N\
QW
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27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the

28.

ARPEBSRNDARRQA

current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 167 to 168 of the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in
the PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
determined under the PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, before profit distributions are made. The
statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable and may be
used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issues by way of
paid-up capital.

Capital reserve

The amounts represented the balance of the credit amount arising
from the excess of the par value of the shares from the paid-in
capital contribution.

Other reserve

This resulted from the acquisition of non-controlling shareholder.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an
owner-occupied property to the investment properties carried at
fair value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions:

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB3,128,000 (2023:Nil)
and RMB3,128,000 (2023:Nil), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for plant and equipment.

ZE N FFR

27. #E
AEBRAFEERBEFENEESE

28.

ME

ARERDREA -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EEBRRRE

REBEFBEVER  PERAETA
A AL SN D IRAT - A EE
DREPE G EREE RN
BRENBRELIETARARFERES -
AEBRBRHERBES A DIK - A F
PR 8 B 18 S A B SR AN A AE
HEAREEETT -

EXRGFEE
M EEESRAHIE LK
DEERNERSBRER -

Htf# 5
U BB SF IR A A R T EE A o

EEEMEAE
BEELFREERSEEEN
MEBFEREREBEAAEBIRZ
BREWMEMESL -

RERTRERME

(a)

FEFBRERS :

RAEAFE HEEREHENHEE
ZHME ASEEEREEE
MEAENIERSAEARE
3,128,000 7T (20234 : &) K AR
3,128,000 7C (2023 £F : &) o

/
i
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28. MEBHERERKE (&)

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

246

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: (b) MEIBHEEEE

2024 2024 F

Lease

liabilities

HEEE

RMB’000

ARBT

At 31 December 2023 2023512 H31H 35,163

Additions N 3,128

Interest expense MEER 3,390

Changes from financing cash flows MERSRNELZH (4,531)

Exchange realignment ME W S (3,249)

At 31 December 2024 72024912 4318 33,901
2023 2023 %F

Lease

liabilities

HEBE

RMB'000

ARBT T

At 31 December 2022 20224612 A31H 35,753

Interest expense FMEER 3,280

Changes from financing cash flows MmERERNEF (4,498)

Exchange realignment ME W T 628

At 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 A31 H 35,163

N/
o7
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

28. ZERERERME (&)

(0 HERESRHARE

2024 2023
2024 & 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBTIT

Within operating activities KRB 812 917
Within financing activities BEEE A 4,531 4,498
Total B’ 5,343 5415

29. COMMITMENTS

The Group had no contractual commitments at the end of the reporting
period (2023: Nil).

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

29, 7KiE
AR EE RIS BRI A LR E (2023
o fm) o

30. BT IRE
B AR B TS R % Lt 205 S M) 3T S b
AREERNAFEE N EBE T ETUTR
%0

AEETEEEEABHNHMH

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% T ARET T
Basic salaries and bonus HEAFHE ML 9,983 7,857
Social insurance and housing fund ek RkEFAER 162 161
10,145 8,018
. 1%
LK)

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31. REAEINEMTA

R E PR S E R 2/ T AKREED

T

2024

Financial assets

2024 £
EWMEE

Financial

assets at

amortised cost

R E
NEemEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 41,902 41,902

Financial assets included in prepayments, ETATERFIE  Ee R

deposits and other receivables Hi e FIEN SR & E 4,583 4,583
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEED 104,530 104,530
Total HEt 151,015 151,015

Financial liabilities

TREE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

RAGHE
HERAE ‘et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR® T
Trade payables B 5 RS IA 12,750 12,750

Financial liabilities included in other payables &+ A EL 4t FE{ 518 & FE AT &

and accruals MNERBaE 5,030 5,030
Total HBEt 17,780 17,780

N/
W
048

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2024 2024912 H31H

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
2023

Financial assets

31. REHETNEMT A (R)

2023 &
EMEE

Financial

assets at

amortised cost

bivg s

ARG &
NEREE et
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®ETTT
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 32,511 32,511

Financial assets included in prepayments, FTABNFIE - e Rk

deposits and other receivables HEMBEWFIENSREE 5,238 5,238
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 117,556 117,556
Restricted cash ZRERE 200 200
Total #Et 155,505 155,505

Financial liabilities

TREE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
birgc s
ARG =
NERaE HRET
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARBET T
Trade payables =) ANEe 33,147 33,147
Financial liabilities included in other payables &t A E th & {<F 7018 &
and accruals EirERAMNEREE 4,601 4601
Total #st 37,748 37,748
o i
5@,’"

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written risk management policies and

guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to analyse
and formulate measures to manage the Group's exposure to market risk,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk. As the directors of the Company consider that the Group's exposure
to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used any

derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group's

risk management objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the Group by closely
monitoring the individual exposure as follows:

(a)

250

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

N/
o\

32. RIEMER

ZRER B0 M AT A E R R B IR ROR S
oA EFGEHBRTER O
Ko bl 5T HE i A B 3R AN 5% [ P T S O T 5
R BREERR RBERAR -
SNERBR RAERER - ARARBES
RAAEEREE N T SRR EFN R
EKF > ANEEIWEEAEAITERE
M TEAESE PR - AEENEARE
ERELBRREIBZAENEBEIEE
TR R - R E R RS AR
VEETNNEE

(a) FERMR
AEBEEENEZREERENSE
ZHETRG - AKBZHERR
MEEBRERGIETEERL
EFHARXEEERRER It
Sh - AEE R BB R UGRIA
f B 7K 5 B T B 10 3% IR AL B 3 D
EX-HRWIFNRBLEESEN
MM EBFENR S KRERE
EEETENRRME AEH
TeREHERERRK -

BAMORERBESE
TRBERRNAJNBENKAEE
FEERR (EBERNBAABREE
B BRIEFBHBAEBSHALEN
BNAl R M H b E kAl ) B H A
FEEEEREAEERBRH O KR
FAREEDHE -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Creditrisk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee
contracts.

As at 31 December 2024

12-month
ECLs
12{8A
RHEE
i)

Stage 1
F-KR
RMB'000

AR®T R

32. TRIARREIE ()

(a)

EE Rk ()
RAMOARFEREERDE(R)
2l RERmEENKREA
BEMEREREONEERRIKA -

202412 H831H

Lifetime ECLs

2HRAEERR

Stage 2
FRR
RMB'000

AR®T R

Simplified
Stage3  approach Total
BZRR R[4 Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARBTRT AR%®TR

Trade receivables* B HREWHIE" - - - 45,429 45,429
Financial assets included in STABRFE

prepayments, other receivables HioElZER

and other assets — Normal** HttEENSREE

_Fa 4,583 - - - 4,583

Cash and cash equivalents — Not ReRAEEEY

yet past due — AR 104,530 - - - 104,530
Total @t 109,113 - - 45429 154,542

ARPEBESRNAERLDE —T_MFEFR

/
wi?
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 32, eRiEMERE (&)
(a) Creditrisk (Continued) (@ FER (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BAM O RERERSDE (HE)
As at 31 December 2023 7202312 831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

HRBEERR

Simplified

Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
FER EZER LHlaz3 T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTIL ARETR ARETT ARMTR

Trade receivables* ECY e - - - 35,505 35,505
Financial assets included in AR -
prepayments, other receivables H A RN )2
and other assets — Normal** HtEENSREE
—EE* 5238 - - - 5238
Restricted cash — Not yet past due XBHRE — WAREH 200 - - - 200
Cash and cash equivalents — Not ReRkReEEN—
yet past due 18] 7K 480 2 117,556 - - - 117,556
Total @t 122,994 - - 35,505 158,499
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * BLANE B E A B R EITRENE
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes MESEKFEMNS - EREEER
19 to the financial statements. HERR B MERM T 19 EE
o The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other o FEATETFRIA © H A FE UK IE R H A
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not BENEMEEEYRBHERE
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a METHEEERG VS ERUR
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. EREANERAEEERIER] -
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELEK
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected REBHWERTEHEZENRR
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, FEHRHESFTRK  UREFE
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate EZFENBR  UBEREFT®
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to MNESHFBERIVSEFESRERE
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. EHHMERBEERE  NEFTK
REBRSHESHEK -
R
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 32. TRIERERE (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBBELREMR (E)
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual TERFII A EEeHmABEREE
maturities for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table BEHRTARMIBABEL T%
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of DIRBEAREE AR ERER &
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the earliest date FHHZRBReREEREERE
on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates ZAMBHESRNERR -2HE
for financial liabilities and lease liabilities are based on the agreed BEREEAENIEATDEZHE
repayment dates. EXBRHEE -

Total

contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within Over
amount cashflows  Ondemand one year one year

BARAKE
BEE ReRE  RERE  -ER -EUL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARMTE ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2024 2024512 A31H

Lease liabilities MEaE 33,901 55,418 = 4,330 51,088
Trade payables B 5 ENRE 12,750 12,750 = 12,750 =
Other payables Hib & HE 5,030 5,030 4,676 354 =
Total st 51,681 73,198 4,676 17,434 51,088

As at 31 December 2023 202312 A31H

Lease liabilities HERAE 35,163 61617 - 4363 57,254
Trade payables B 5 ENIE 33,147 33,147 - 33147 -
Other payables HAb e 3R 4,601 4,601 4229 372 -
Total mEt 72,911 99,365 4229 37,882 57,254
w ;Y
LX)
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

254

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals. The differences
are immaterial since the fair values are mainly equal to their
carrying amounts.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 72%
(2023: 61%) of the Group's sales were denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operating units making
the sale, whilst approximately 76% (2023: 62%) of costs were
denominated in the units’ functional currencies. The Group also
has certain bank balances denominated in NZD, USD and HKD.

<

N/
L\D

32. SRIEARREIE ()

(c)

(d)

EMIBEAAERDABER

EEEFEREIREEEY -
B5RWHIA BEHEMNHE -
AN Ze REMBER
RENETREE FFAHMEN
FELEHFEANERABENR
RE-BRAREARLEERH
FREE WERALTEKN -

SMNEE [ B
AREBARRZ 5 ROINERR

HERR ALK EEMEER
AN EBBEEMESL - A5 HE
SHERAA 4972% (2023 4F 1 61%) A
EHHERL L EMNINREEE A
HE®.ZY]  M4a76% (2023 F :
62%) IR AN A B RE BB A T e B
E25  c REBEESE TUMAA
BT - LB TLATERIRTI TS
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32. TRIARREIE ()
IMNEE R B (48)
TREFIEFEE 2B RBER
FHERT  REBEHRARE
HATEET E7 - RTRAET
MERSBRATAEHUAEER
B A% 1 (O & LABRTT R A RS £
EHSBTR) RAEXMERE (B
RENEEARAREES) -

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates against NZD, USD, AUD and HKD, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (arising
from EUR and RMB denominated financial instruments) and equity
(due to changes in the fair values of forward currency contracts).

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
RMBrate profit before tax in equity*
ARBER BR B A1 5 7 =M
EH(TH) #m,/ i) (R &) *
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T R
2024 2024
If NZD weakens against RMB AT E T AREREAE (1%) (374) (2,679)
If NZD strengthens against RMB i A T 5 A REFHE 1% 374 2,679
If USD weakens against RMB METEARERE (1%) (377) -
If USD strengthens against RMB £ X A REFE 1% 377 =
If AUD weakens against RMB BT AREEE (1%) (176) (43)
If AUD strengthens against RMB i} 7T i A R EEFHE 1% 176 43
If HKD weakens against RMB B TR AREEEAE (1%) (24) =
If HKD strengthens against RMB i/ 7T 5 A R FE 1% 24 =
If EUR weakens against RMB HET R ARKEEE (1%) (1) -
If EUR strengthens against RMB WL XA REFE 1% 1 =
2023 20234
If NZD weakens against RMB HATAETE AREERE (1%) - (1,002)
If NZD strengthens against RMB {4 FARE 7T 5 A R FHE 1% - 1,002
If USD weakens against RMB HETHARERE (1%) (499) -
If USD strengthens against RMB  f#ZE 7T 5 AR EEFHE 1% 499 -
If AUD weakens against RMB WRTHEAREEE (19%) - (10)
If AUD strengthens against RMB #3270 5 A R EEFHE 1% = 10
If HKD weakens against RMB WAETHAREEE (1%) (24) =
If HKD strengthens against RMB /& T i AR BEFHE 1% 24 =
If EUR weakens against RMB WA ARKEE (1%) = =
If EUR strengthens against RMB BT i A R EEFHE 1% = -
* Excluding retained profits * K’E%%%@Qﬁ;ﬂ‘ﬂ‘
S0
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

256

(e)

(f)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating
to pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried at prevailing
market rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as
these bank balances are all short-term in nature.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. The Group's
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio between 10% and 30%. Net
debt includes lease liabilities, trade payables, other payables and
accruals. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

32. SRIEARREIE ()

(e)

(f)

MERER

AEB T ES A RIZE A TSN
Kt B2 B EMBITHERLIRTT
Rz RS RENXER - A
MRZERITESKDEE AL -
&R SRR BN S BEM -

EXER

AEBEAER ZERBBRRR
BAEEZ FELERN MG
REEALEXIHERBERLE
AERREERKL-

REEEBHEERNERE  WRIE
FOBEIRRE L R AERE A E R T
BERHAE - BEFIFAERER
g AREET AR MR EIR
B AR EEER AT
A& BN ZAE ] S0 ED BE A & AR
BRI - & E2024F 128318
N 2023512 A31BIEFE B
BEMNEE  BERSEFEEE) o

AEEFEAEEBELR BIER
REER A AR E A INERFRE)
ERER - AEBEHBEXEEHE
EBELEREFNF10%ZE30% °
B FEARENEEE E5E
e EtENREREE
B-REHARMEEARBELEN
T

31 December

31 December

2024 2023

2024 F 2023

12HA31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT ARBTTT

Lease liabilities (note 15) HE & & (PFsE15) 33,901 35,163

Trade payables (note 22) B 5 AT 7IE (M5 22) 12,750 33,147
Other payables and accruals (note 23) Hin e RIBERETER

(B3 23) 44,145 38,297

Net debt B8R 90,796 106,607

Equity attributable to owners of the parent X A1 #E A A JE{G 25 394,096 378,069

Capital and net debt BEARRERF5E 484,892 484,676

Gearing ratio BEAMBLX 19% 22%

QW
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BEMRBE
AREMIEE AR FE -

34. AR FBIBEARRE

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has been no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group.

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial position of the RS
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

#95k  A MR D T BB RE
T

2024 2023
2024 & 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 1,126 2,051
Investment properties "EMHE 15,144 15,464
Due from subsidiaries JE U B /B A B) KA 118,955 -
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIEE 151,192 151,192
Total non-current assets EMEBEELRE 286,417 168,707

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Inventories BE 3,410 4,837
Trade receivables TT%F&“HK%\I@ 1,177 2,109
Due from subsidiaries JE Uk B BB A B 3R 0E 125,725 227,220

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B/ FIA Tﬁé&ﬁﬁﬂfg%mlﬁ 2,309 2,518

R R R A B

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFED 32,859 32,512
Total current assets mEEEAE 165,480 269,196
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEaE

Trade payables B N FRIE 127 360
Due to subsidiaries FE TR B A B FRIE 82,602 104,127
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERERTER 19,762 19,674
Total current liabilities nBEEERE 102,491 124,161
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 62,989 145,035
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERRBEE 349,406 313,742
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE

Deferred taxes liabilities RIEFIBAG 2,252 2,251
Total non-current liabilities BB EEE 2,252 2,251
NET ASSETS EEFE 311,491

EROBRAT —ZT_NFEFR

347,154 =
ﬂfi‘ ﬁ \iri
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34, AR BB REK (E)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBEFT

EQUITY R

Share capital & A 94,630 94,630
Other reserves E b 252,524 216,861
Total equity RS 347,154 311,491
Note: MsE -

A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows: RARNEHMBEFEREZLT -

Statutory Asset
Capital surplus revaluation Accumulated

reserve reserve reserve losses Total

HE B BEEM
BAMRE # i Rt & B Mgt
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTE ARBTT AR®TT ARETZ

At 1 January 2023 M2023%F1A1H 544,223 47,315 6,856 (419,413) 178,981
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBALTE

for the year - - - 37,880 37,880
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 544,223 47,315 6,856 (381,533) 216,861
At 1 January 2024 20241818 544,223 47,315 6,856 (381,533) 216,861
Total comprehensive income FRNEEBRALERE

for the year - - - 35,663 35,663
At 31 December 2024 7202412 431 H 544,223 47,315 6,856 (345,870) 252,524

35. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 35. #HLESZES M EERE
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for REMBRERESTEN2025F3H26
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2025. H A R TIE -

N/

QW
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HFEMBHRE

BB E N BRREXMBHRRALLES (HE
R)MAKESRIAEFBRFREZEENE
E - BEISFHERESEERIIMT -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and re-presented as appropriate, is set
out below.

RESULTS E 4

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2020 4F 20214 2022 5 2023 4F 2024 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTTT AREBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
REVENUE Uz 296,525 252,325 274,851 563,959 747,898
Cost of sales SHE R A (125,821) (113,522) (114,856) (184302)  (209,630)
Gross profit EF 170,704 138,803 159,995 379,657 538,268
Other income and gains HA A R s 12,735 15,094 7910 8,474 6,727
Selling and distribution expenses 58 & 4§55 (132,898) (105,984) (108,603) (249962)  (408,621)
Administrative expenses THRAX (77,571) (70,217) (63,924) (72,222) (88,603)
Other expenses Hin (15857) (10,110) (5,406) (4,574) (3,499)
Finance costs BEKA (1,275) (685) 472) (3,280) (3,390)
Share of profits of a joint venture DE—REERENE - - - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRI, (&) (44,162) (33,099) (10,500) 58,093 40,882
Income tax (expense)/credit sk (%) #He (5443) 1,392 (3,746) (5/491) (6,320)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AEEFE/(EE) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246) 52,602 34,562
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the parent SYNCIEZZ DN (49,605) (31,707) (14,246) 52,602 34,562
Non-controlling interests IR R - - - - -
(49,605) (31,707) (14,246) 52,602 34,562
\V ’ v
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L EHBEHRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BEE BEBERFERES
INTERESTS

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

20204 2021 5 2022 F 2023 % 2024 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETRT AR%¥TR

TOTAL ASSETS mAEE 449,731 390,112 436,987 505419 505,557

TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (87,368) (59,868) (113,187) (127350)  (111,461)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEIERR R - - - _ _

TOTAL HEr 362,363 330,244 323,800 378,069 394,096

/N 7
o\
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